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1. RESOURCES AVAILABLE TO YOU

We value our clients, and it is extremely important to know who to contact if you require any help
with CaseWare. To ensure we supports you effectively, there are following support channels are
available to you:

First contact the firm’s appointed -
CaseWare champion (If there is indeed e Help
a firm appointed champion).
Access the CaseWare online Help centre
from the Backstage View in the Working i
Papers, click on Help. Internet access is Casabane Webie
required to access any of the four-links : T
shown in the Help centre below. e

CASEWWARE ™"

'8 WORKING PAPERS

3.

The same applies for Audit related queries.

Browse the Knowledge Base on: success.casewareafrica.com/

1.1 CaseWare Africa Success Community

Getting help with CaseWare is just a click away. The CaseWare Community is our latest
innovation to help you achieve success when using CaseWare and all our associated products.
The community was developed to serve as the primary place for you to find information, updates
and other useful resources. Here you can gain quick access to the knowledge base, product
updates and your log in screen. It also comes with our search function to help you search for the
information you are looking for.

Pcapomiblc for company sccretarial dutics? Our CoudSc prochuct spexiokat il be toking you througihsome new functionsity ond fonturcs.

‘We vl b reemsing s Spring 19 upeistes smon I you st e recent whars rew webinars you can

Cogiies  adaptiT

Welcome to the CaseWare Community!

Below is a quick video that explains all the features and benefits of the CaseWare Africa Success
Community and it will provide you with an overview of how to use it to help you achieve success.

Click here to play our introduction video


http://www.downloads.cqs.co.za/CaseWare_Community/Videos/CWCommunity/Master_Introduction_to_the_CaseWare_Community_03102016.mp4

1.2 Jumpstart to CaseWare Working Papers

There are three applications within CaseWare Working Papers:

This is the main application used as client engagement file.

This is a separate word processor application with
CaseWare Working Papers. This is the application that is
used to create the financial statements and other audit
documents.

This is a separate application to help manage CaseWare
Working Papers files without having to open the files.

1.3 How to install CaseWare Working Papers on your Personal
Computer (PC)

Installing CaseWare Working Papers is very easy and can be done via the Cloud (Software as a
Service). If you do not have CaseWare Working Papers 2016 installed on your computer, you can
access the CaseWare Africa Success Community and access the “My Software” section to find the
link to your new software including your Download and Authorisation codes.

Access all the collateral from the community to help you install CaseWare Working Papers

Video | How to download install and register Ware Working P r | installer

i How wnl install and register CaseWare Working Papers from the cloud
installer

a silent install Kk r


https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Video/CaseWare-2016-Getting-Started-How-to-download-install-and-register-CaseWare-2016
https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Video/CaseWare-2016-Getting-Started-How-to-download-install-and-register-CaseWare-2016
https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Manual/CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-How-to-download-install-and-register-CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-from-the-cloud-installer
https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Manual/CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-How-to-download-install-and-register-CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-from-the-cloud-installer
https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Manual/CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-How-to-download-install-and-register-CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-from-the-cloud-installer
https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Manual/CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-How-to-download-install-and-register-your-CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-from-a-silent-install-packager
https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Manual/CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-How-to-download-install-and-register-your-CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-from-a-silent-install-packager
https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Manual/CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-How-to-download-install-and-register-your-CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-from-a-silent-install-packager
https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Manual/CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-How-to-download-install-and-register-your-CaseWare-Working-Papers-2016-from-a-silent-install-packager

Downloading the Software

Upon clicking on the above link in the email, you will be routed to the CaseWare Africa
Success Community. Here you will see information on the release including a summary of
the changes or enhancements to the software. Further down the page, you will also have
access to Install instructions and system requirements. There will also be the option to
download release notes for even more details.

You will be required to log in to have access to download the software.

After logging in and opening the “My Software” page, click on the button to Launch the
Download Packager.

The CASEWARE AFRICA cloud download packager will launch and require a download
code (usually auto-populated) and your email

address to continue to the next step.

The next step is to select he applications you wish to install. This will in most instances
include the most recent version of the working papers and the template. Select the
applications and click on Next to generate the package. Once generated, you will be able to
click on Download to start the download process. The install package will download to the
default Downloads folder on your machine and will be a zip folder. Go there to access it.
Right -click on the zip folder (it will be named CASEWARE AFRICA Installer) and “Extract
All”.

When all your files are extracted, open the folder and double click on the “Setup” file to
begin the installation.

This will prompt the “CaseWare Working Papers Setup Wizard” screen.

The CaseWare Working Papers Setup Wizard

A

Step 1: Welcome

This setup wizard will guide you through the process of installing CaseWare Working Papers on your computer.

CaseWaRE A

THE LEADING AUDIT WORKING PAPERS SOLUTION

Click Next to begin the installation process




o Step 1 — The Installation wizard should start automatically once the Cloud download is complete. If it
does not start automatically, use Windows Explorer to find setup.hta to start the installation wizard
manually. It will bring you to the welcome screen shown here.

o Step 2 — Here you accept the terms in the license agreement and click next to continue

o Step 3 — If the new license key is not pre-populated, just copy and paste the Download code from the
“My Software” section in the CaseWare Africa Success Community. You will also be asked to confirm
your email address and click next.

e Step 4 — Now you have reached the fourth and final step which is also known as the “Installation” step. Here a
summary of all templates selected is displayed. If you are satisfied with the components listed to be installed, click
on “Install” to execute. Your software will start to install. Once each component is finished, it will be highlighted
in green. Note that some templates may ask you to confirm the country you will be using this template.
South Africa will be selected by default. Once all your templates have been successfully installed, you
can click on the Finish button to exit the Wizard.

How do | know what version | currently have?

Open the financial statements and check the version number on the Freeze pane in
the top right-hand corner. The CaseWare Africa Success Community has a “Product
Updates” section that you can access to find all the information on what the latest
versions of CaseWare and the templates that apply to you. To access the “Product
Updates” page on the community click here to access

Register your software

When you open CaseWare Working Papers for the first time, you will receive this pop-up screen. CaseWare
can be run for 60 days on a demo account, however we recommend that you register and confirm your
license credentials as soon as possible. To register, click on “Get license” and furnish the field with the
license key that was supplied to you in the email.

Vi Audit International | 01 Intr ion to Audit
International


https://success.casewareafrica.com/CQS_productUpdatesHome?PageToSearch=Updates
https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Video/Audit-International-01-Introduction-to-Audit-International
https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Video/Audit-International-01-Introduction-to-Audit-International
https://success.casewareafrica.com/articles/Video/Audit-International-01-Introduction-to-Audit-International

2. GETTING STARTED

2.1 Objectives

When the course is complete, users of the Audit Template will be able to:

o Create files incorporating Audit into either existing or new client files

Create and track risks, controls and reportable items throughout the audit process

Customize work programs and checklists to meet client requirements

Review client files using Audit and Working Papers tools

Update client files with changes in content

2.2 Introduction to CaseWare Working Papers

The CaseWare Working Papers template ("Audit") provides an automated approach to the audit
engagement. It is designed to automate many of the processes within the audit engagement while
allowing quick and efficient access to the entire working paper file.

Always consider the standard procedures provided considering the specific needs of each engagement. It
is the firm's responsibility to ensure that there are no new pronouncements or changes in existing
literature that need to be addressed.

Audit provides several schedules to document the work carried out. It is the auditor’'s responsibility to
ensure the extent of work carried out and the evidence obtained and documented in the file is enough to
comply with required documentation standards.

When working in the Audit template, the software can be used by two user types. The first type is the
Author or Firm Author, who customizes the content in the master template and repackages the template
for use by the firm's engagement teams. The second type is the User or Engagement Team, who works
on client files, either based on the master template or in corporate documents from the master template
brought in through the document library.

This training is targeted to the content expert in a firm who acts as the Firm Author. As such, your role is
to come to a consensus on firm standards and then customize the content and layout of for the user /
engagement team. By doing so, you streamline the decision-making process and ensure that accounting
and auditing standards are available to the user. With a customized template, you can keep content
current, modify content to meet your firm’s requirements, determine how much flexibility to give users to
modify the firm’s standards, and make it easier for the user to complete the engagement.

As the firm author, you will:

¢ Define the default settings that are applied globally to all client engagements.

Customize existing content or add new content to work programs and checklists.

Add or remove new work programs and checklists (i.e. for industry specific content)

Customize the Document Manager to meet the needs of your organization including adding any
additional documents deemed necessary.

Repackage and distribute the customized firm audit template to your engagement teams.



2.3 Audit International Overview

CaseWare Africa content provides non-authoritative guidance on applying International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB).

Developed by the authors of IFAC’s Guide to Using International Standards on Auditing in the Audits of
Small- and Medium-sized Entities, these forms will assist you in meeting the needs of individual
engagements according to IFAC's international auditing standards and provides you with the added
functionality of completing them electronically.

Condensed versions of the standard forms (where consider points and instructions have been omitted)
have been provided for use by highly knowledgeable auditors (on ISA requirements) and on smaller
audits where some of the ISAs requirements may not be relevant to the particular entity. However, when
using condensed form or a structured memorandum, the standard forms that contain more details about
the requirements should be used as a reference guide. Compliance with ISA requirements is required
regardless of what forms (standard, condensed or memos to file) are used."

For further information on applying ISAs to various sized entities, please see the IAASB articles, which
are available on their website, www.ifac.org.

The sample forms, checklists, work programs, and tools provided in the template are useful practice aids
that can save time and money while ensuring completeness and consistency. However, these practice
aids do not address the wide range of circumstances, risk factors, or specific industry issues that may
exist for a client or groups of clients (such as those operating in a specialised industry).

Consequently, forms should always be tailored to address the known facts and circumstances of each
engagement.

Disclaimer

These forms are designed to assist practitioners in the implementation of the International Standards of
Auditing (ISAs) on the audit of small- and medium-sized entities. The forms are not intended to be a
substitute for the ISAs themselves.

A practitioner should utilise these forms considering his or her professional judgment and the facts and
circumstances involved in each audit. CaseWare Africa. disclaim any responsibility or liability that may
occur, directly or indirectly, because of the use and application of these forms.

Copyright

The Audit International template is copyrighted by CaseWare Africa. Use of this template is subject to
CaseWare Africa’s end user license agreement. All intellectual property rights in the software and content
remain the exclusive property of CaseWare Africa. When using this template, you must comply with the
law, including without limitation, copyright laws.

2.4 Audit System Overview

Audit System provides a standardized framework within which firms can create content and manage
internally developed methodologies. Firms can take advantage of the built-in automation which promotes
efficiency in the audit process.

The System comes equipped with standardized:
¢ Work programs and checklists
¢ Financial statement areas worksheet

¢ Risk dialog and risk report


http://www.ifac.org/

¢ Controls dialog and control matrix(ces)

e Reportable items dialog and management letter report

¢ Partner and manager summary document

e Document version report

¢ Firm setup documents (Firm option and Firm information)
e Many automatic documents including lead schedules

e Standard CaseView document

o Materiality document

2.5 Audit Features

Audit provides a standardized framework within which firms can customize and create content or use
Audit International content right out of the box. Firms can take advantage of the built-in automation which
promotes efficiency in the audit process.

Audit is friendly and easy to use and helps engagement teams gain efficiencies through its automation
and powerful functionality. Engagement profiles are configured to utilize various combinations of the
template components including:

Content Authoring

Standardized programs and checklists make it easy for firm authors to create and manage content. Right
click menu options provide simple to use functionality to add or customize existing content. Permissions
exist to define work program/checklist presentation format and terminology. Customization options are
available to define:

o Work program responses

¢ Procedure sign-off behavior

¢ Work product/sign-off retention policies on year-end close process
¢ Define Assertions

¢ Define Risk options

o Define Control options

¢ Define Reportable Item options

o Engagement Profiles

Content Management

Version tracking functionality exists within Audit to enable content to be tracked at the document and
procedure level, ensuring that client files are always up to date with the latest firm and CPA content. As
the firm author, you define globally how future content updates are to be addressed in client files. The
version tracking document provides a concise report of documents/procedures that differ from the master
firm template.

Tracking Risk

A centralized risk tracking system allows you to create, manage and report identified risks. Record risks
as they are identified throughout the audit by clicking in any document. Risks are stored centrally then
conveniently presented in the Risk Report and at the top of each work program. Risk properties and
attributes are easily customizable by the firm author.



Tracking Controls

Combined with the centralized risk tracking system, Audit enables you to create, manage and associate

controls to the relevant risks. Record controls by clicking the in any document. Controls are stored in the
central database and then reported in control matrices, displaying the relationship with risks and grouped
by business cycle.

Tracking Reportable Items

As part of the client engagement process, reportable items may be identified. The accumulation of
reportable items has been automated to help you easily manage and track them. Record reportable items
as they are identified throughout the engagement process by clicking in any document. Reportable items
can be added from any work program or checklist and from other selected forms. Reportable items can
also be linked to specific letters.

Efficient Partner/Manager Review

Preset the Partner Manager Summary document in the customized template to present the information
deemed important by the firm author for engagement executives. Multiple versions of the document can
be created by copying and pasting and setting the filters to define the desired content.

Dashboard

The dashboard is a powerful tool that ensures engagement teams follow the firm approved approach to
conducting audits. Create a customized workflow and link your documents to the workflow to help guide
your teams through the audit or use the existing workflow as is.

Financial Statement Areas (FSA) Worksheet

This worksheet provides a central source for reviewing material accounts, setting up business cycles,
defining relevant assertions and referencing to the appropriate work programs. Used in the planning
process, the FSA helps teams quickly and easily identify material accounts.

Risk Report

A comprehensive report providing detail information of all risks identified in the engagement. Apply filters
and views to present high-level information that is important to engagement executives or present detail
information for engagement team members.

Control Matrix

A comprehensive report displaying detail information about the controls and the association to relevant
risks. Create multiple matrices to display the controls by business cycle or manage within a single matrix
by applying business cycle filters.

Work Programs and Checklists

Fully automated documents that are easily customizable by the firm and the engagement teams. Right
click menu options provide simple to use functionality to customize content, add existing content from the
firm library, link procedures to identified risks, efficient sign-off, automatically create an issue based on
pre-defined responses and much more.

Management Letter Report

The management and presentation of audit findings can be organized into a collection of reportable
items, summarized in a Management Letter Report. A reportable item dialog enables you to collect audit
findings and make recommendations. The Management Letter Report displays all these findings in an
easy-to-view format. You can then decide which findings are to be published to the management letter.

Audit Optimizer
Assists engagement teams in building an effective audit by removing:



Unnecessary documents based on checklist responses, industry selections, or materiality
considerations in the Financial statement areas worksheet

Risks that are not applicable for the client

Unassociated controls

Work program procedures based on checklist responses or those that do not meet the assessed
level of risk for the financial statement area

¢ Inserting procedures linked to a risk

Engagement Profiles

Specifies a set of documents, and, optionally, general options that enables the engagement team to tailor
a client file for a specific type of engagement. The firm can customize the engagement types found in any
jurisdiction or use CaseWare’s pre-defined engagement profiles. When an engagement team creates a
new client file from the template, an engagement profile can be selected from the list of available profiles.



3. AUTHORING IN AUDIT

3.1 Introduction

The firm’s customized Master Template should be updated by the Firm author. Once updated, the Master
Template can be further customized, repackaged, and distributed to your users. The update includes
changes for both functionality and content.

In this section, we will examine how the firm author can:
o Access the Master Template.
¢ Use and disable the Work Flow Panel (if available).

¢ Access the Document Manager.

This section will also identify some of the common menus and buttons used in CaseWare Audit.

3.2 Master Template

The template installs with a master template and a library accompaniment.

The master template contains all standard documents, mapping and leadsheet groupings, and all
customized settings. It serves as the base template that the engagement team will use. As the firm
author, ensure that you are working in the firm's master file when you are making any customizations for
your firm.

The library acts as a content database containing all the audit procedures for Work Program and
Checklist documents. The default location of the library is C:\Program Files
(x86)\CaseWare\Library\AuditInt, but direct access is not required. Adding new procedures or
customizing existing procedures is done through the work program and checklist documents in the master
template. Any procedures removed from the documents can subsequently be added back from the
library.

To access a document from the Document Manager:

1. From the Navigation Toolbar in Working Papers, click Documents.

Documents lssues Trial Balance  Adj. Entries @ (Y]

2. Click I* to expand a folder and display its documents and sub-folders. Click a to collapse the
folder.

3. To open a document, double-click the document.

Tags

Some documents within the master template have been tagged with one or more document tags. When a
user first creates a new client, file based on the master template, you may allow the user to select an
engagement profile that keeps only those documents tagged with the document tags assigned to the
selected profile.

You can tag documents within the master template and assign tags to engagement profiles to meet firm
standards. Document tags are also used to create document manager filters. Tagging done at the master
template level will not be seen in the end user client file.



To add tags:
1. Right-click the document and select Tags.

4 | WORKING PAPERS
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2. Use the Tags dialog to assign tags.

3.3 Interface

The advanced documents within template are created using CaseView, a revolutionary tool that takes any
type of document or working paper to top-notch publishing quality. CaseView's "smart technology"
supports full object-oriented decision logic to automatic formatting, rounding, diagnostics, account
amounts, text, account balances, and information from other CaseView documents. Due to the advanced
calculations and automations built into template, some of the design functionalities of CaseView are not
available.

— — — Navigation Tabs "_ — —» CaseView Menus
¢l O H ruc v Audit_Demao - Caseliew for Windows - [FSA - Financial statement areas worksheet (Core) *] ‘ S
’ Home | view Brocumens Tools o -==x
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Common areas found in most documents are as follows:

Area Description
CaseView Menus You can access the available CaseView features here.
Menus and Buttons You can access -specific features using these context sensitive menu
items.
Navigation tabs For work programs and checklists, you can select to display certain

areas of the document using the navigation tabs.

Form The main body of the document displays in this area.

Note: Documents within the template make use of context-sensitive right-click menus throughout each
document. Right-clicking within an area will bring up the most often used functions that are available from
the Menus and Buttons area.

2.3.1 Common Buttons

The following common buttons appear throughout the Audit template.

Button Description
0 Open the "Risk Dialog" on page 130 to document risks identified throughout the audit.
The drop-down menu next to the New Risk button provides the following options:
Option Description
New Risk Same action as the New Risk button: open the New Risk
dialog
Import Risk Import risks from another file.
CaseWare Working Papers Import risks from CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace.
RiskSpace
(" Opens the "Controls Dialog" on page 142 to document controls identified throughout the audit.

The drop-down menu next to the New Control button provides the following options:

Option Description
New Control Same action as the New Control button: open the New control
Import Controls Import controls from another file.
CaseWare Working Papers Import controls from CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace.
RiskSpace
y Opens the "New Reportable Item Dialog" on page 149 to document reportable items identified

throughout the audit.

#7 Populate the report based on options selected.



Button Description

b’ Opens an area where options for the report are configured. Use the drop-down lists to select
items.
i Opens an area where additional business cycles can be defined. Cycles can be added or

deleted, and relevant control matrix and walkthrough documents can be defined.

"‘", Refreshes the opening balances from the engagement trial balance and update planning
balances in the Financial Statement Areas Worksheet.

Refreshes the Management Letter with pre-defined reportable items and specified
configuration settings.

B2 Inserts/removes the risk report area in Financial Statement Areas Worksheet and Work
Programs/Checklists. When included, the risk report information displays at the top of the
worksheet and shows risks that are applicable to all financial statement areas affected (Entity
level risks).

& Inserts/removes the management letter report area in Work Programs/Checklists.

™ Shows/hides the ruler at the top of the work program. The ruler can be used to resize column
size within the work program.

New! Shows/hides the document/procedure guidance.

{35 -

Al Select the desired paper size and orientation. Options for orientation are portrait or landscape
and for paper size A4 or letter paper.

O Opens CaseWare RiskSpace. RiskSpace is an online community that lets you quickly download
free content to help you identify risks, related controls and management letter comments.

;d Saves a view based on selected filters in Risk Reports or Control Matrices.

& Deletes a view previously saved in Risk Reports or Control Matrices.

1] Opens the risk report in a new window.



Button Description
| Launches Constellation
3]
Opens the Financial Statement Areas worksheet in a new window.
Opens the Audit Optimiser Confirmation Report.
2 Opens the online help specific to the current template document.
) Returns to the Working Papers Document Manager/Work Flow Panel.
- Select an item from a predefined list.

In some circumstances, you can select Other from the list to display an input cell where you can
type your own description.

2.3.2 Common Menus for Work Programs and Checklists

Document Menu

Item

Properties

Check for
Updates

View Check
for Updates
Summary

Check for
Based on

Procedure
Status

Description

Displays the name of the document and industry selection for the document. Select the
industry for the document for authoring industry-specific content. Select the items to
show for the user, such as showing the notes row and changes to the response types.
For checklists, there are further additional options such as show / hide of some
columns in the checklist.

Compares the content in the master template document with the Content Library to
ensure the latest procedures included in the document. The template initializes the
update process according to selections made by the firm. Procedures set by the firm as
"required" will always be updated and added to the document.

Displays a page, in your web browser, that summarizes the results when Check for
Updates has been performed.

Enables author to view which procedures are based on another procedure. When
changes are made to the base procedure, you can compare the procedures and make
changes accordingly.



Display
Highlight
Options

Risk

New Control

New
Reportable
ltem

Lock Author
Mode

Lock User
Procedure
Customization
S

Configure
Document
Prerequisites

Highlights procedures based on selected criteria. Highlights procedures display unique
colors/outlines for updated procedures, inserted procedures or out of date procedures.
See "Managing the Content" on page 186.

Display a submenu listing options for adding or imported identified risks. The available
options are:

Option Description
New Risk Add a new identified risk.
Edit Risk Edit a risk that was previously created, when the curs

on the risk on the risk report (if inserted).

Delete Risk Delete a risk that was previously created, when the
cursor is on the risk on the risk report (if inserted).

Import Risks... Import risks from another file.
CaseWare Working Papers Import risks from CaseWare Working Papers
RiskSpace... RiskSpace.

This menu item is available only if you have enabled the creation of new risks in the
AO - General Options document in the master template.

Add a new identified control. This menu item is available only if you have enabled the
creation of new controls in the AO - General Options document in the master
template.

Add a new identified reportable item. This menu item is available only if you have
enabled the creation of new reportable items in the AO - General Options document in
the master template.

Locks documents in the master template such that no content changes can be made
into the content library. Lock Author Mode is a global option to lock menus in the
master template such that procedures cannot be modified. Changes are still allowed at
the engagement level by the users.

Enables firm authors and users to lock customized procedures added to a specific
document to prevent changes. The lock can be applied to existing procedures or to all
procedure customization. If locked by the firm author, the time and firm author's initials
are displayed at the top of the document and users require a password to unlock
procedure customization in that document.

Options for author to specify document dependency. Authors define which documents
must be signed off by which roles before the current document can be worked on. The
document prerequisites will not be applied to the master template, and it will only be
used when a new file is created based on the master file or files from the master file is
brought into a file through Content Library.



Apply Applies document prerequisites dependencies at the engagement level. Option is
Document checked on by default.

Prerequisites

Procedure Menu
Item

Import Procedures

Review Deleted
Procedures

Allocate
procedures to
groups

Edit Procedure
Action

Modifiable

Bold

Procedure Number

Procedure
Guidance

Insert New
Reference

Insert New
Procedure from
Content Library

Description

Import procedures from work program or checklist documents. Selecting this menu
option opens the Import Procedure Dialog, in which users can specify the import
source.

Any deleted procedures and sub procedures will show in the original location, in
the CaseView skip text color, and note numbering will be shown as {N#}. If you
want to restore any deleted procedures or sub procedures, right-click the deleted
procedure and select Restore Procedure or Restore Sub Procedure.

Display a dialog that enables you to allocate procedures in this checklist to groups
defined in Working Papers. This menu item appears only when procedure
allocation has been enabled in the AO - General options document in the master
template.

Edit the action to be performed by the Optimiser when the engagement team
responds to the procedure. The items that can be deleted by a procedure action
are specified in the Optimiser section of the AO - General options document in
the master template.

Enables editing of the procedure that the cursor is currently on. If you set a
procedure that is not owned by the firm author to Modifiable, you will be asked
whether you want to change ownership of the procedure. Changing ownership will
create a copy of the procedure for the firm author to modify and will delete any
custom procedure action defined for that procedure.

Displays the procedure that the cursor is currently on in bold text. If you wish to set
only parts of the procedure text to bold, change the procedure to Modifiable first.

Show/hide procedure numbering for the procedure or sub procedure the cursor is
currently on.

Display guidance text for the procedure or sub procedure that the cursor is
currently on. To modify the guidance, you must make the procedure Modifiable.

Add a reference to the procedure or sub procedure that the cursor is currently on.
This menu option may not appear if the reference is turned off in the document
properties.

Insert a procedure from the content library. Items that appear in the content library
may be optional procedures.



Insert New Sub
Procedure - 1st
level

Insert New Sub

Procedure - 2nd

level

Delete Procedures

Delete Procedure -

XXX

Delete Sub

Procedure - XXX

Sort Groupings

Sort Sub
Groupings

Sort Procedures

Sort Sub
Procedures

Areas Menu

Risk Report

Control Matrix

Item

Insert a new procedure as a sub procedure of the procedure that the cursor is
currently on. If you do not own the procedure to which you want to add this sub
procedure, you will be asked whether you want to change the ownership of the
procedure. Changing the ownership will create a copy of the procedure for you to
modify. Sub procedures are limited to a maximum of 30.

Insert a new procedure as a 2nd level sub procedure of the sub procedure that the
cursor is currently on. This menu item will not be available if the cursor is not on a
1st or 2nd level procedure. Sub procedures are limited to a maximum of 30.

Display a dialog to select one or more procedures to be deleted. Note that required
procedures will not be listed, as they cannot be deleted, and their sub-procedures
not be deleted either. To delete required procedures, unselect the Required
checkbox prior to deleting.

In this dialog, the procedures deleted will be deleted from the document only, not
from the content library. To also delete procedures from the content library, use
Delete Procedure.

Delete the procedure that your cursor is currently on. You can specify whether the
procedure is to be deleted from the document only, or from both the document and
the content library. Procedures owned by other authors cannot be removed from
the content library.

Delete the sub procedure that your cursor is currently on. You can specify whether
the procedure is to be deleted from the document only, or from both the document
and the content library. Procedures owned by other authors cannot be removed
from the content library.

Sort the order of the groupings. To use this menu item, the cursor must be on a
grouping title.

Sort the order of the sub groupings. To use this menu item, the cursor must be on
a sub grouping title.

Sort the order of the procedures. To use this menu item, the cursor must be on a
procedure.

Sort the order of the sub procedures. To use this menu item, the cursor must be on
a sub procedure.

Description

Insert/delete the risk report area. When included, the risk report
information displays at the top of the work program. For more
information on the risk report, see Risk Report.

Add a Control Matrix table to checklists and work programs for
quick access to the controls you are testing in the document.



Detailed Audit Response

Insert List of Assertions

Insert List of Objectives

Edit Objectives

Edit Conclusion

Notes

Insert/delete the detailed audit response area. There are some
optional layouts for this area included with the template and the
firm can create/modify alternate layouts.

Insert/delete the financial statement assertion area. Note overall
settings to display financial statement assertions are defined in
firm settings.

Insert/delete the objectives area. Note overall settings to display
financial statement assertions are defined in firm settings.

Edit the objectives area when the cursor is on the objectives
area.

Edit the conclusion area text.

¢ Objectives and assertions will only show if they are selected in AO - General Options document

in the master template.

¢ Checklists only have the options Risk Report and Edit Conclusion.

Author Menu

Item

Import Procedures

Insert New Procedure

Delete Procedures From Content
Library

Description

Import procedures from work program or checklist documents.
Selecting this menu option opens the Import Procedure Dialog, in
which users can specify the import source.

Insert one or more procedures into the checklist. When you select
Insert New Procedure, a dialog box appears that enables you to
specify the number of procedures to insert. The New Procedure
Dialog then appears, enabling you to specify the properties of the
procedures.

When you insert multiple procedures, they will be given the same
name by default. An index number, such as (2), is provided to
distinguish one procedure from another. To change the name of a
procedure, type the new name in the field in the Name column.

The inserted procedures are added below the procedure the
cursor is on if they are in the same group/sub group. If the group
is different or the cursor is not on a procedure, the procedure(s)
will be added at the bottom of the group.

Remove procedures from the Content Library in bulk.



Set Procedure Availability

Manage Groupings

Manage Sub Groupings

Procedure Properties

Insert All Procedures
Insert All Author Procedures

Author's Action Report

Reset Procedure Status

Options Menu
Item

Content Library Path

Display Completion Details

Display Document Guidance

Display Headings
Display Procedure Sign Off

Display a dialog box that enables you to specify the procedures
that are to be made available. The unselected items will not be
seen by users when they are trying to insert from the content
library.

Groups enable the author to keep procedures of similar types
together. Selecting the Manage Groupings menu item displays
the Manage Grouping dialog box, in which you can add, rename
Or remove groups.

Sub groups enable the author to further organize grouped
procedures. Selecting the Manage Sub Groupings menu item
displays the Manage Grouping dialog box, in which you can add,
rename or remove sub groups.

Edit the properties for the procedure that the cursor is currently
on. Properties include the name of the procedure, industry,
grouping, sub grouping, version number, and the procedure on
which the current procedure is based, if any.

Inserts all procedures from the content library.
Inserts all firm-authored procedures from the content library.

Displays the Author's Action Report in your web browser. This
report summarizes all the procedure actions that you have
defined. This menu item is visible only when deletion based on
checklist responses is enabled in the Optimiser.

Clears the status indicators used in "Procedure Highlighting" on
page 186. This is useful if the engagement team is creating a new
client file based on the updated template and does not need to
know what changes have been made to the template.

Description

Define the path of the location of the content library.

Display the completion details at the top of the document. Hiding
the completion details does not keep them from being printed.

Display detailed instructions on how to complete the document
or authoritative guidance. The author can supply the desired
instructions.

Display column headings at the top of the document.

Display the procedure signoff area.



Display Procedure Sign Off Below
Procedures

Display Procedure Tags

Display Select Response Button

Print Risk

Display Interactive Guidance

Print Authoritative Reference

Print Firm Name in Footer

Print Firm Logo in Footer

Print Current Date/Time in Footer

Print Client Path in Footer

Highlight External Cells

Import External Data

Specify whether to display the procedure signoff area below the
procedures or in a separate column.

Specify whether to display tags that have been added to
procedures. This menu item appears only when procedure
tagging has been enabled in the Optimiser.

Display or hide the select response button.

Prints the risk report. This menu item appears only when the risk
report is inserted at the top of the checklist.

Display instructions that indicate the next step to take when
working with this document. These instructions appear at the top
of the document in a status bar located just below the function
buttons. This menu item is enabled only if instructions exist for
the current document status.

Print authoritative references added by the author.

Prints the firm name in the footer, as defined in the firm settings,
if the firm author has specified that the firm name is to be
displayed.

Prints the firm logo in the footer, as defined in the firm settings, if
the firm author has specified that the firm logo is to be displayed.

Print the current date and time in the footer of each page of the
document. The date and time format are as set in your Windows
regional settings.

Print the client path in the footer of each page of the document.

Highlight all externally linked cells in the document. A report is
opened in your web browser that displays each externally linked
cell, along with the group, form, and ID of the CaseView
database entry to which the cell is linked. This enables the firm
author to easily track values that are written to the database and
retained on an update or year-end close.

Imports external data from another file. A browse window will
appear to select an applicable .ac file.
Notes

e The versions of both current and target client files should be
the same.

o If the external data client file is locked, a dialog will appear
prompting to unlock the file before proceeding with the
import.



Reapply Styles

Risk Report View

Change the document fonts to the character set in use on your
computer. This makes it possible to type information in both
English and one other language that uses non-Western
characters.

Specify the type of mini risk report to be displayed at the top of
the checklist. Select Risks Identified to list all risks that have
been identified in the checklist, or select Risks Addressed to list
Entity level risks and risks addressed in the checklist.



4 GENERAL OPTIONS

4.1 Introduction

The Audit template provides functionality to allow firms to include their own customized work programand
checklist content and to manage the firm'’s desired responses, roll forward options, and update
processes. The Firm Author works within the Firm Information and General Options documents prior to
release of the Audit template to their engagement teams.

In this section, we will examine how the firm can:
° Complete firm information and attach a firm logo to all work programs and checklists.

° Define the properties and options for the firm that controls how engagement teams view,
complete and update their engagement work programs and checklists.

To access the General Options document:
1. Open the Master File template.

2. From the Document Manager, open the AO - General options document located within the
Control Documents folder.

4.2 General Options

The AO - General options document is used to define and customize the structure and properties of the
work programs and checklists and to manage the firm’s default settings for many of the automated
features. The firm settings are applied globally and, for the most part, cannot be changed at the
engagement file level. The general options document consists of ten different sections that need to be
completed prior to distributing the master template file to the engagement team. These areas include the
following:

4.2.1 Engagement Profile

Engagement profiles allow Firm Authors to define unique profiles for different types of
engagements, whether it is for different industries or for different assurance levels. When
engagement profiles are enabled, each profile determines the documents to be included for the
engagement, and can also set global settings for risk options, control options, reportable items
options, and other settings in the AO - General options document.

When a new client file is created based on the master template, the engagement team selects a
profile from the list of engagement profiles that have been made available. Each engagement
profile is designed to provide the engagement team with the necessary documents to start an
engagement. As the use of any document is a matter of professional judgment, the engagement
team can subsequently add any additional documents from the master template.

For more information, see "Specifying and Creating an Engagement Profile" on page 25.
4.2.2 AllForms

All Forms section contains setting that affects what is displayed in the documents such as sign
offs and form footers.

For more information, see "Defining Setting for Forms " on page 30
4.2.3 Materiality
Materiality section contains settings that affect what is displayed in the Materiality documents.

For more information, see "Setting the Display Settings for Materiality " on page 30



4.2.4 Work Programs and Checklists

4241

4242

4243

Industry

You have the option of selecting the industry codes that are appropriate for your
market. Five of the most common classifications are listed in the drop-down list. The
selection made here specifies the industry classifications listed in the work program and
checklist documents.

Rollfoward

A firm can define whether Note rows, Completion responses (including any explanations),
References and Conclusions are to be cleared or retained during the year-end close roll
forward process. Any information marked to be retained will automatically appear in the
following year’s work program or checklist. Note: The rollfoward options set here only
relate to work programs and checklist. Unless otherwise noted, all other documents in the
file are cleared when rolled forward to the subsequent period.

Check for Updates

You can select the process that the engagement team will use to update the client file
with procedure and document properties updates for work programs and checklists.
This update process is initiated in each work program or checklist in the engagement
file.

The engagement team can also automatically update procedures in all work programs
and checklists from the Document Version Report. The firm can choose whether
procedures that are not marked as Required are to be automatically updated or
manually updated. If a procedure that is to be updated has been customized, the
engagement team can decide, on a procedure by procedure basis, whether to update
the procedure or retain the existing customizations. If procedures are automatically
updated, the firm can also specify whether to automatically add new procedures from
the content library or allow the engagement team to add new procedures as needed.
Procedures marked as Required are always automatically updated.

For more information, see "Specifying Settings for Work Programs and Checklists" on page 31

425 Work Programs

4251

4.2.5.2

4253

Areas

This section allows the firm author to define the areas and columns available within work
program document, specify area headings and their names and abbreviations including
entity level risks and assertions for the work program.

Completion Responses

This section allows the firm author to select between Audit built-in typical completion
responses to work program steps or create your own.

Procedure Allocation

Enabling Procedure allocation provides the ability to assign procedures in a work program
or checklist document to specific users and allows only those users to complete their
assigned procedures. This capability is useful if a checklist or work program is to be
completed by multiple members of the team. In addition, if responses to procedures could



4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.2.9

4.2.10

potentially contain sensitive information, the procedures can be marked as Sensitive and
their responses hidden from other members of the team.

From the master template, the firm author has the option to provide guidance by
assigning procedures to a recommended security group, and in the engagement file,
procedures can be assigned to specific users within the group recommended by the firm
or to any other member of the engagement team.

For more information, see "Defining Standards for Work Programs " on page 34
Optimiser

Optimiser assists engagement teams in building a more effective engagement by removing
unnecessary documents, risk and controls that are not applicable for the client and work
program and checklist procedures that are not applicable and do not meet the assessed levelfor
the financial statement are.

For more information, see "Configuring the Optimiser" on page 40
Risk

Risk options allow the author to define various attributes of risk. When accumulating risks in
client files engagement teams access a risk dialog that will display the attributes of a risk as
defined by the firm author. The risk attributes are then compiled for display in various risk
reports.

For more information, see "Defining Risk Options" on page 43

Control

The controls options allow the author to define various attributes of controls. When accumulating
controls in client files, engagement teams access a control dialog that will display the attributes
of a control as defined by the firm author. The control attributes are then compiled for display in
various control reports.

For more information, see "Defining Controls Options" on page 43

Reportable Items

The reportable items options allow the author to define various attributes of reportable items.
When creating reportable items for client files, engagement teams access a reportable item
dialog that displays the attributes of a reportable item as defined by the firm author. The
reportable item attributes are then compiled for display in management letters and the
Management Letter Report.

For more information, see "Defining Reportable Items" on page 45

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

This section allows the firm author to customize and configure what is to display in the Financial
Statement Areas worksheet.

For more information, see "Defining the Settings for Financial Statement Areas Worksheet" on
page 45

When you change a setting in the AO - General options document, you must change the document
version to ensure that the changed setting is updated in client files.



4.3 Specifying and Creating an Engagement Profile

As the Firm Author, you can specify whether engagement profiles are to be enabled for client files, and
what settings they are to contain.

Procedure
1. In the AO - General options document, specify the settings, select Engagement Profiles.
2. From the Engagement profile setup drop-down, select one of the following options:
Option Description

Documents  Engagement profiles can be used to remove documents from the Document Manager and

and global automatically launch documents when a new client file is created based on the master

settings template. In addition, the new client file uses the global settings saved with the profile to
configure the firm options, including risk options, control options, reportable item options,
and other settings defined in the AO - General Options document.

Documents  Engagement profiles can be used to remove documents from the Document Manager and
only automatically launch documents when a new client file is created based on the master
template. This is the default option.

Note: Any global settings associated with the profile are not used in the new client file.
Instead, the global settings defined in the AO - General Options document of the master
template, at the time the client file is created, are copied.

No Disable the use of engagement profiles in the template and client files generated from this
engagement template.
profiles

w

. In the Engagement Profiles pane, scroll down to the first empty engagement profile definition.
4. In the Profile field, in the first text field, type the name of the engagement profile.

5. In the Description field, type a description of the engagement profile.

6. Click |§| to display a list of document tags that you can associate with your profile. If a tag is
included in the Assigned pane of the Tags dialog, documents marked in the DocumentManager
with this tag will be included in the client file when this engagement profile is selected.

= Tags @

e

Assign Tags
+  Click here to assign a new tag
Assigned
Unassigned
audit condensed cwi210 cw 0220 cw 0400 cw 0500 cw0G00

cw0810 cw0820 cwD&30 cw 0840 cw 1100 cw 1200 cw 1300

small

If no tags are included in the Assigned pane, no documents will be deleted from the client file if
it is created using this engagement profile.



10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

To assign a tag to the engagement profile, in the Unassigned pane, click the + icon at the left of
the tag. This moves the tag from the Unassigned pane to the Assigned pane.

Unassigned

Dud'rt condensed cwi210 cwi220 cw 0400 cwi500 cw 0500
cwia310 cwia20 cwia330 cwi340 cw 1100 cw 1200 cw 1300

small

To create a new tag for the engagement profile, in the Assign Tags pane, type the new tagname
in the text field, and click . The new tag is added to the Assigned pane.

Repeat steps 6 through 7 if you want to assign more tags to this engagement profile. Adocument
is included in any client file created from this profile if it is tagged in the Document Manager with
any of the tags you have assigned.

To unassign a tag that you have previously assigned, in the Assigned pane, click the X icon at the
right of the tag. This moves the tag back to the Unassigned pane.

i "

Tags @

Assign Tags

+  Click here to assign a new tag

Assigned
audD big =mall
Unassigned
condensed cw210 cwlZ20 cw 0400 cw0500 cw 0800

cwia10 cwig20 cwig30 cwid40 cw 1100 cw 1200 cw 1300

Close the Tags dialog when tagging is complete.

Select the Available check box if this engagement profile is to be made available to client files
that are created from this template. To view the Engagement Profile dialog that displays afterthe
client file is created, click Preview.

Select the Pre-selected radio button if this engagement profile is to be the default profile for client
files created from this template.

If you want to select documents to be opened when a client file created from this engagement

profile is opened, in the Start Document column, click Ll In the Document Manager window
that appears, expand folders as necessary and select the documents or folders to be opened. If
you select a folder, all the documents and sub-folders in that folder are selected. Click OK
when you have selected all the documents to be opened.

If you have provided a more detailed explanation of an engagement profile in an externalweb
site, in the Extended Explanation field, type the URL for this web site.

Click ‘ﬂ/ to save the profile. All document tags are saved. If engagement profiles have been
configured to use global settings, the settings in the AO - General Options document are also
saved in the profile.

To view the engagement profile options that will be available to the engagement team when a
new file is created, click Preview. A sample Engagement Profile dialog appears. The textthat



you specified in steps 3 and 4 is displayed, along with all other previously defined engagement
profiles, including the default profiles provided with the template. If you specified a web site in
step 14, a link to this site is displayed. Close this dialog when you have finished viewing it.

18. Click ‘ﬂ to load a previously defined profile. All document tags and global settings saved in this
profile are loaded into your template.

19. Your master template may include several predefined engagement profiles which have the Owner
property set to Distributor. You can edit these profiles to create a Firm profile, but there are also
spaces to create your own. To reset a profile back to its original settings, click Default.

4.4 Engagement Profiles

Engagement profiles allow authors to define unique profiles for different types of engagements. Profiles include documents and
global settings and will be specified upon creation of new client files.

Engagement profile setup: Documents and global settings =
Last loaded profile:

Cwner:
Check the preview of engagement profile dialog: Preview
Profile Description
) Minimal "Minimal" profile includes automatic documents and work = '5 [a)
programs. The default documentation included is not ISA
compliant.

Extended Explanation URL documentation.caseware.com/2014/Audit/16_00/en/Audit.htm#cshid:
Documents % cwpro,optmin
Start Document . "400-3"

Launch dashboard



Section

Instructions

Engagement Profile Engagement Profile Setup

Profile

Description

Select to enable the engagement profiles feature and determine its behavior when
the template author creates profiles and when the user creates a new client file
based on the master template. The following options are available:

e Documents and global settings - Profile definitions include documents and
global settings.

¢ Documents only - Profile definitions include documents. Global settings will be
identical for all profiles as defined in the template.

¢ No engagement profiles - Profiles are disabled. Global settings and documents
will be identical for all profiles as defined in the template.

Last Loaded Profile

Indicates the current engagement profile used in the master template when any of
the Save, Load or Default buttons are selected.

Owner

Indicates whether the Last loaded profile is a Firm created engagement profile or a
predefined Distributor engagement profile.

Note: Modifying a predefined Distributor profile changes it to a Firm profile.

Check the preview of engagement profile dialog

Click Preview to review the list of available profiles in the Engagement Profile
dialog. This dialog displays when a new client file is created based on the master
template.

Indicates the current engagement profile used in the master template when any of
the Save, Load or Default buttons are selected.

Owner

Indicates whether the Last loaded profile is a Firm created engagement profile or a
predefined Distributor engagement profile.

Note: Modifying a predefined Distributor profile changes it to a Firm profile.

Check the preview of engagement profile dialog

Click Preview to review the list of available profiles in the Engagement Profile
dialog. This dialog displays when a new client file is created based on the master
template.

Enter a long description of the profile in the second text input field.



Section

Other Engagement
Settings

Save, Load and
Default

Instructions

Extended Explanation URL

Enter a URL to an external web site, to provide a more detailed explanation of the
engagement profile.

Documents
Click |E| to display a list of document tags that you can associate with your profile.

Documents with this tag in the Document Manager will be included in the client file
when a new client file is created based on the master template.

If no tags are associated with the profile, no documents will be deleted from the
client file if it is created using this engagement profile.

Start Document

Click |_| to display a list of documents from the document manager. Select the
document(s) to automatically launch when a new client file is created based on the
master template.

Launch Dashboard

Select to launch the dashboard when opening a file under this profile.

Save

Click |ﬂ| to save to the profile, all the global settings from the AO - General
options document and all the engagement profile settings.

Note: With the Engagement profile setup option set to Document Only, the
global settings will still save to the profile.

Load

Click |£| to load the profile settings into the master template.

Note: With the Engagement profile setup option set to Document Only, the
global settings in the AO - General options document will not be overwritten in the
master template.

Default button

Click |i| to reset the Firm profile back to the original Distributor profile. The Firm
created profile will be lo



4.5 Defining Setting for Forms

General options

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

Materiality

Work Programs and Checklists
Work Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

You can specify that the sign-off boxes are to appear on the first page of the form only.

Procedure
1. In the AO - General options document, select All Forms.

2. Select the On First page only check box to specify that the sign-off boxes are to appear on the
first page only or clear the check box to have the sign of boxes display at the top of each page.

3. In the Form Identification section, type the footer that will appear on all documents. The
information entered in the three-description field is joined together to make a single footer. This
footer can also be modified in the document properties for each document.

4.6 Setting the Display Settings for Materiality

General options

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

Materiality

Work Programs and Checklists

Work Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet
As the Firm Author, you can set the materiality terminology used in the file. You can also specify whether
the preliminary and final materiality values are to be displayed at the top of each form in client files

generated from your template. You can also set the file to calculate performance materiality based on a
specified percentage.

Procedure

1. In the AO - General options document, select Materiality.



2. Replace the terms if you require in the text fields for Overall, Performance, and Adjusted
materiality.

3. Select the Preliminary Materiality check box to display preliminary materiality values at the top
of each form. Clear the check box to hide them.

4. Select the Final Materiality check box to display final materiality values at the top of each form.
Clear the check box to hide them.

5. Select the Adjusted Materiality check box to display adjusted materiality values at the top of
each form. Clear the checkbox to hide them.

6. Select the final check box to calculate performance materiality based on a preset percentage.
Once you select this check box you can specify the description and the percentage to use forthe
calculation.

4.7 Specifying Settings for Work Programs and Checklists

General options

Engagement Profiles

All Forms
Materiality

Work Programs and Checklists
Industry
Roll Forward
Check For Updates

Work Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Waorksheet

Procedure

1. In the AO - General options document, select Work Programs and Checklists to collapse the
available options for Work Program and Checklist.

2. Select Industry and from the drop-down select an industry classification system to be used inthe
work program and checklist documents. Once completed, select the check when completed
checkbox.

3. Select Roll Forward and in the Work Programs and Checklists section, for each area listed,
select the Retain radio button if you want to retain this work program area during the year-end
close roll forward process, or select the Clear radio button if you do not want to retain this work
program area. Once completed, select the check when completed checkbox.

4. In the Check for Updates section, select an applicable radio button option. For more information,
see "Check for Updates" on page 32. Once completed, select the check when completed
checkbox.

Results



The industry classification code listing, the areas that are to be cleared or retrained during the year end
close and update settings are now set for work programs and checklists.

4.8 Check for Updates

The following options are available in the Check For Updates section of the AO - General options

document:
Option

User selects
individual
procedures to
update in each
document.

All existing
procedures are
updated. New
procedures are
stored in the
library.

Description

All procedures marked as "Required" are automatically updated in each
engagement.

No other procedures are automatically updated, or new procedures added.
Users can update procedures in a document in two ways:

o As part of the client file update process, click Update in the Procedures
dialog. This updates all procedures in any document in which updates have
not been set to be ignored.

o Open the document and select Check for Updates from the Document
menu. This enables the user to update procedures on a procedure-by-
procedure basis based on the status of the procedure.

Document properties are updated when Check for Updates is performed.

All procedures marked as "Required" are automatically updated in each
engagement.

Automatically updates all existing procedures in an engagement file if they have not
been modified at the engagement level.

Procedures that have been customized at the engagement level have an optionto
update or retain on a procedure-by-procedure basis.

New procedures remain in the content library and must be added to the
engagement as needed.

Document properties are automatically updated.



Option

All existing
procedures are
updated. New
procedures are
added to the
document.

Description
All procedures marked as "Required" are automatically updated in each
engagement.

Automatically updates all existing procedures in an engagement file if they have not
been modified at the engagement level.

Procedures that have been customized at the engagement level have an option to
update or retain on a procedure-by-procedure basis.

New procedures are automatically added to each work program or checklistand
must be deleted in the engagement as needed.

Document properties are automatically updated.



4.9 Defining Standards for Work Programs

Procedure

1. In the AO - General options document, select Work Programs to collapse the available options
for work program areas.

2. Click Areas and fill in the applicable options.

Audit response table (ART)

Enabrle ART in work programs: v

Celumns to display

Show assertion column: It

Show objective column: ¥

Date completed column; td

Conclusion

Diisplay accountant's electronic signature: O

Titles

Assertions title lang form: Financial Statement Assertions =

OCbjectives title lang form: Other &
Objectives

Objectives title short form: Obj

Conclusions title: Other =
AUDIT COMCLUSIONS (based on prefessional judgement]

Number of assertions: 4 - four assertions =

Terminclegy Firm Standard Abbr.

Pervasive risks

Pervasve Pervasive = P =

Assertions

Completeness Completeness = C z

Existence Existence id E ¥

Accuracy Accuracy = A =

Valuation valuation B v B

Section Instructions
Audit Enable ART in work programs
Response

Table (ART) Select to display detailed audit responses in the work programs.



Section

Columns to
Display

Conclusion

Instructions

Show assertion column

Select to display the Assertions area and columns in work program documents. When
selected, the Assertions area is available to appear as a separate table at the top of
each work program. A separate column automatically appears in the work program for
association with an individual procedure.

Show objective column

Select to display the Assertions area and columns in work program documents. When
selected, the Assertions area is available to appear as a separate table at the top of
each work program. A separate column automatically appears in the work program for
association with an individual procedure.

Date completed column

Select to include the completion date in work programs.

Display accountant's electronic signature

Select to include signature in the conclusion area. When selected, an option appears in
the work programs to use an electronic signature. Note: There is no security to control
the use of the electronic signature image.



Section Instructions

Titles Assertions title long form

Type the title for the Assertions column header. This field displays when creating your
own long form.

Assertions title short form

Select the Assertions title from a list of available options or create your own. The default
short form used in the column header is Assert.

Objectives title long form

Type the title for the Objectives column header. This field displays when creating your
own long form.

Objectives title short form

Select the Objectives title from a list of available options or create your own. The default
short form used in the column header is Ob;.

Conclusions title in work program
Select the Conclusion title from a list of available options or create your own.
Number of Assertions

Select up to 6 built-in Audit assertions and add up to 9 custom assertions in the work
programs. Default is four assertions. If you select more than five assertions, fields will
appear in the table that will enable you to specify the additional assertion names and
abbreviations. You can also modify the name and abbreviation for any pre-defined
assertion.

3. Click Completion Responses and fill in the applicable fields. A maximum of ten standard
responses can be defined by the firm. To add a custom response, select Other. Once
completed, select the Check when completed checkbox.



Document sign offs

Sign off an incomplete document: Yes 5
Issues

Default issue type: Review notes >
Default issue due date: 14 days after creation =
Responses

Mumber of responses: & - eight responses o

Firm Standard e * = = =]
1. Completed, no exceptions - O [ [+ L
2. Completed with exceptions noted below - [+ [+ [ ] s
3. Mot possible to complete - [+ O [+ O
4. Yes - [w [ [ [ o
5. Mo - [+ O [+ (. u
6. MJA - [+ [ [+ T 1
7. Completed, no exceptions - [+ O [+ ] 1
2. Other - [ [ [+ [ (]

Section Description

Document Sign off an incomplete document
Sign-offs o Select Yes to allow users to sign off a work program or checklist that is incomplete.

o Select No to only allow users to sign off a work program when all procedures and
conclusions are complete.

Issues Default issue type

Select from Audit built-in issue types which include: review notes, team planning discussion
action steps, notes on significant audit procedures, and audit findings and matters for
discussion.

Default issue due date
Select from 7, 14, or 28 days after creation to apply as the due date.



Section

Responses

Description

Number of Responses

Select the desired number of completion responses. A maximum of 10 responses can be
applied.

Firm Standard Table

Select from Audit built-in responses which include:

Completion, no exceptions

Completed with exceptions noted below
Not possible to complete

Yes

No

N/A

User Defined

Other

Note: If your choice is not available, select Other and enter your own customized response.

Each response provided for a work program step can have any of the following attributes

added for it:
Attribute Icon Description
Explanation ) Users can enter an explanation, but it is not mandatory in
order to sign off the procedure. If selected, an explanation
field will appear when this response is selected.
Eaxpdﬁr;?jtmn IS " An explanation must be provided by the user before the
q procedure can be signed off as completed. Note that the
Explanation attribute should also be checked when this
attribute is selected.
Automatically sign 2 A procedure will automatically be signed off as completed.
off procedure Note that this selection cannot be used if the Explanation is
required attribute is also selected.
Response can be  #¢ This attribute will autofill the response type to the associated
automatically procedure. This attribute will assign the same response type
selected to multiple sub-procedures within a procedure or multiple
procedures in a group/sub-group. For example, if selected at
a sub procedure level, all sub procedures are completed
with the same response. If selected at a title level, all
procedures below that title are completed with the same
response.
Response requires % This attribute requires the user to create a new issue for the
a new issue procedure. These issues flow through to the Partner and

Manager Summary document.



Notes:

¢ Attaching a Response requires a new issue attribute to a completion response then defining the
Default issue type and Default issue due date in the drop-downs will complete these fields inthe
issue in the client file.

¢ These options apply only to work program responses.

o If a firm creates a checklist to follow the work program response area, it will also follow these
options.

¢ Hovering over response type icons provide a tooltip with an explanation of the responsetype
function.

e Completion Responses are retained when updating a procedure.

4. Click Procedure Allocation and if applicable enable procedure allocation. From the Assigner
and Reviewer drop-down, select the Working Papers group that you want to grant the privileges.
Once completed, select the Check when completed checkbox.

Procedure allocation, which is specified in the AO - General options document, enables the ability to
assign procedures in a work program or checklist document to specific users, and allows only those users
to complete their assigned procedures. This capability is useful if a checklist or work program is to be
completed by multiple members of the team. In addition, if responses to procedures could potentially
contain sensitive information, the procedures can be marked as Sensitive and their responses hidden
from other members of the team.

From the master template, the firm author has the option to provide guidance by assigning procedures to
a recommended security group, and in the engagement file, procedures can be assigned to specific users
within the group recommended by the firm or to any other member of the engagement team.

To use procedure allocation, the Working Papers protection feature must be turned on, with users and
groups defined. The firm author then assigns each of the following privileges to a defined security group:

Assigners can:
e assign or reallocate work program and checklist procedures to members of the engagement team
e complete procedures assigned to any team member
e mark procedures as Sensitive
o view all responses to procedures marked as Sensitive

¢ specify procedure allocation options in the AO - General Options document

Reviewers can:
e complete procedures assigned to any team member
e mark procedures as Sensitive

o view all responses to procedures marked as Sensitive

Assignees can:
e complete procedures assigned to them

¢ view only those responses to procedures marked as Sensitive that are assigned to them



Note:

¢ Since members of the Assigner group have all the privileges of the Reviewer group plus the
ability to assign procedures to users, the Assigner group is usually not the same as the Reviewer

group.

¢ Within the engagement file the Assigner can determine whether unassigned procedures can still
be completed by Anyone or No one.

4.10 Optimiser

Optimiser assists engagement teams in building a more effective engagement by removing:
4.10.1 Unnecessary documents
4.10.2Risks and controls that are not applicable for the client
4.10.3 Work program and checklist procedures that are not applicable or do not meet the
assessed level of risk for the financial statement area
The Optimiser must be configured by Firm Authors prior to release.

3.10.1 Configuring the Optimiser

Procedure
1. In the AO - General options document, in the General options pane, select Optimiser.

2. Select or clear the checkboxes as needed.



Check when completed: O

Optimiser assists engagement teams in building a mare effective audit by defining documents to delete, apply predefined risks
and control conditions and maodify procedures based on specified criteria. Once components are activated firms can configure
the various documents.

Financial statement areas worksheet (F5A)

Delete documents based on materiality in the FSA:
Delete procedures based on risk thresholds in the FSA:
Delete procedures based on audit responses in the FSA: O
Optimiser Checklist

Delete documents based on checklist responses:
Delete procedures based on checklist responses:
Delete risks based on checklist responses: O
Other

Insert procedures linked to a risk:
Delete industry specific documents: O
Delete unassociated controls: O

The Optimiser feature enables the Engagement team to enhance or customize the template program by
removing:

e Unnecessary documents,
¢ Risks that are not applicable for the client,

e Work program procedures that do not meet the assessed level of risk for the financial statement
area, and

o Procedures from checklists or work programs based on checklist responses.
The table below lists the capabilities that you, as the Firm Author, can include in the Optimiser. Each
option can be selected or unselected as needed.
Optimiser options:
Option Description

Financial statement areas worksheet (FSA)

Delete This option deletes documents if the financial statement area is not material (as
documents determined in the materiality assessment) in the FSA worksheet. Only documents
based on associated in the Working Papers reference (W/P ref. column) are affected.
materiality in

the FSA y Optimiser includes all documents suggested for deletion in the Audit Optimiser

Confirmation Report.
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International Inc.- 4



Option

Delete
procedures
based on risk
thresholds in
the FSA

Delete
procedures
based on
audit
responses in
the FSA

Description

This option deletes procedures if the assigned risk threshold is higher than the
determined risk for the financial statement area in the FSA worksheet.

When selecting this option, procedures are also deleted if their assertions are not
included in the list defined in the FSA worksheet.

Documents must be associated to the financial statement area in the W/P ref. column of
the FSA worksheet.

This option deletes groups of procedures by assertion based on the audit response.
Rather than manually deleting individual procedures, use this option to automate the
process.

Optimiser Checklist

Delete
documents
based on
checklist
responses

Delete
procedures
based on
checklist
responses

Delete risks
based on
checklist
responses

Other

Insert
procedures
linked to a
risk

Delete
industry
specific
documents
Delete

unassociated
controls

This option deletes documents by document tags based on the checklist response. You
must enable document deletion in procedure actions and then proceed to define an action
for deleting documents with or without specific tags. The action is triggered when your
checklist response matches the recommended action.

This option deletes procedures by procedure tags based on the checklist response. You
must enable procedure tagging in documents and procedure deletion in procedure
actions, and then proceed to define an action for deleting procedures with or without
specific procedure tags. The action is triggered when your checklist response matches
the recommended action.

This option deletes risks and controls in the master template based on the checklist
response. You must enable risk and control deletion in procedure actions, and then
proceed to define an action for deleting specific risk and controls in the master template.
This action is triggered when your checklist response matches the recommended action.

This option inserts procedures into documents based on risk. You must link the procedure
to a risk. This action is triggered when you open a document linked to that risk (the
procedure is then automatically inserted)

Note: This option is only available when Risks is enabled in AO | General Options.

This option deletes all documents that are not related to the industries specified in the
client file.

This option deletes all controls that are not associated with any of the defined risks

Note: When procedure actions are defined in a checklist, the % icon displays at the top left of the
document and Optimiser will not delete any tagged procedures.



4.11 Defining Risk Options

General options

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

Materiality

Work Programs and Checklists
Work Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

Procedure
1. In the AO - General options document, select Risks.
2. To enable risks, select the Enable Risks check box. To disable risks, clear this check box.
Note: If risks are disabled, controls are also disabled.

3. Ifrisks are enabled, click the General Risk Options button. Select or clear to add the available
properties to the risk dialog. For more information on the risk options, see "Risk Dialog" on
page 130.

4. (Optional) For fields that have a list box to the right, you can modify the scoring terminology by
selecting an applicable one from the list. Note: Selecting a numeric scoring for Likelihood to
occur and Monetary Impact will result in an automatic calculated Combined Score.

5. (Optional) For Significant Risk indicators and Entity level Categories fields, click the + or -
field to add or delete indicators or categories from the risk dialog. You can add up to 10
significant risk indicators.

6. Click OK to register changes.

4.12 Defining Controls Options

With controls enabled, the General Control Options allow the firm author to define various attributes of
controls for the control dialog and various documents that show controls. The control dialog allows the
firm author or engagement team to identify and accumulate controls in the master template or client files,
respectively. These options are defined once and are applied globally.

For more information on Controls, see Chapter 5 - Risks, Controls and Reportable Items.



General options

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

Materiality

Waork Programs and Checklists
Waork Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

Procedure
7. Inthe AO - General options document, select Controls.

8. To enable controls, select the Enable Controls check box. To disable controls, unselectthis
check box.

Note: If risks are disabled, controls are also disabled, and this check box cannot be selected.

9. If controls are enabled, click General Control Options button. Select or clear to add the
available properties to the risk dialog. For more information on the control options, see"Controls
Dialog" on page 142.

10. (Optional) For the following fields, you can enter your own list in the input box to its right:

Maturity Level

Manual/Automated

Frequency of Control

Changed since Previous Evaluation

You can also separate list items by using a comma. For example: Manual, Automated, Both.

11.When the changes are completed, click OK.



3.12 Defining Reportable Items

General options

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

Materiality

Waork Programs and Checklists
Waork Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

Procedure
1. In the AO - General options document, select Reportable Iltems.

2. Select the Enable Controls check box to enable reportable items. To disable reportable items,
clear this check box.

3. Click the Reportable Items Options button. Select or clear to add the available properties to
the reportable item dialog. For more information on the reportable item options, see "New
Reportable Item Dialog" on page 149.

4. (Optional) For Ratings and Statuses and Classifications fields, click the + or - field to add or
delete indicators or categories from the risk dialog.

5. Click OK to save the changes.

4.13 Defining the Settings for Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

The FSA Worksheet provides an input area where the engagement team can document other
considerations that may impact significant accounts, financial disclosures and sensitive areas. As the
Firm Author, you can determine whether this column displays or not. You can also specify the name of
the column.

Procedures

6. Inthe AO - General options document, click Financial Statement Areas Worksheet.

7. Fill'in the applicable fields and options:



Financial statement areas worksheet settings (FSA)
Terminalogy and scoring for four risk columns to include in the FSA report are customizable by defining attributes below.

Row - Entity level and IT general weaknesses and controls
Terminalogy: Entity level and IT general weaknesses and controls
Risk assessment at entity level:

Materiality Warning Indicators
Show materiality related warning indicators:

Additional Column
Include column: r

Terminalogy: Other control processes (that impact account/disclosure)

Risk Columns
Terminalogy and scoring for four risk columns to include in the FSA report are customizable by defining attributes below.

Risk Terminology Scoring System Include Include Warning
Risk Type 1 Inherent Risk 7| High/Medium/Low M O T T
Risk Type 2 Control Risk -|  High/Medium/Low =

Risk Type 3 Residual Risk -|  High/Medium/Low - O

Risk Type 4 R -/ High/Medium/Low -

Summarize Summarize the reasoning for the assessed level of risk -

Choose to automatically suggest a risk assessment level for assertions in the FSA report. Suggestions will be based on the risks and controls in the
engagement:

Automate the assessment of Inherent Risk

Default assessment if no risks associated with an assertion Med -
Automate the assessment of Contral Risk

Automate the assessment of RMM and Audit Responses £

Audit Response Columns
The firm has the option to have audit response columns display in the FSA report or to appear at the top of each work program and checklist. The
terminology and response type can be customised for the audit responses to be included in FSA report by defining the attributes below.

Includle Audit Response In FSA

Audit Response Terminology Abbr. Audit Response Type Include :E: Other than Substantive
Basic Procedures Other -|A  ~|Checkbox - = Ol O
A, Substantive procedures - bas
Extended, Other Substantive Other -8B ~|Checkbox - 4 Ol O
B. Substantive procedures - exte
Test of Controls Other -|C  ~|Checkbox - =, = [

C. Substantive analytical proced

&
&
&
&
©
&

Sampling Other /D ~| Checkbox -

D. Tests of controls (operating ¢
AR Field 5 Checkbox 0O O Ok
AR Field 6 Checkbox A0 O O
AR Field 7 Checkbox A0 O O
AR Field & Audit Response Finalisation Input =

& &

Initial Risk assessment completed =



Fields/Options

Row - Entity level
and IT general
weaknesses and
controls

Materiality Warning
Indicators

Additional Column

Risk Columns

What to do...

Terminology
Type a new entity level row title in the Terminology text field.
Risk assessment at entity level
New! Select the Risk assessment at entity level to automate RMM on an entity level.
Notes
o If the Inherent and Control risk columns are included, the proposed RMM

value of the Entity level and IT general weaknesses and controls row is
based on the Defined RMM Scoring dialog

o If the Inherent and Controls columns are included, the proposed RMM value of
the Entity level and IT general weaknesses and controls row is the highest
RMM score assigned to an entity level risk

Note: The Include Audit Response in FSA option needs to be enabled for
indicators to display.

Select the Show warning indicators when Final materiality and Overall
materiality are different check box if the warning indicators are to be displayed or
clear this check box if they are to be hidden. The default is to display the indicators.

Select the Include column checkbox to provide an input area where the
engagement team can document other considerations that may impact significant
accounts, financial disclosures and sensitive areas.

Click the Terminology field and type the name of the column if you want to change
the name.

Terminology

Select the default risk type or modify the risk terminology by selecting Other from
the drop-down menu.

Scoring
Choose the appropriate scoring using the drop-down menus.
Include

Select to include the risk type in the FSA.

Note: To have the assessed risk populate in the work programs rather than
populating the RMM in the FSA, ensure that the Include checkbox for Risk 4 - RMM
is cleared.



Fields/Options

Automate Risks
Assessment

What to do...
Automate Risks Assessment

Select to automatically suggest a risk assessment level for assertions to populate in
the Financial Statement Areas report. The suggestions will be based off the risk
and controls in the engagement

Automate the assessment of Inherent Risk

Select to populate inherent risk from the "Risk Dialog" on page 130 to the FSA. It
accumulates the sum of all the assertions for each risk assigned to a specific FSA
area and takes the highest value per FSA and assertion.

Default assessment if no risks associated with an assertion

Select the inherent risk assessment that will be assigned when an automated
assessment can't be determined. You can choose from the scoring for inherent risks
defined in the scoring system column.

Automate the assessment of Control Risk

Select to populate control risk based on the auditor's conclusion from the control
matrix.

Automate the assessment of RMM
Select to populate the RMM based on the scoring defined in the Define RMM

Scoring dialog. Click |i'/7{to open the Define RMM Scoring dialog. New! Audit
response columns can now be automated based on RMM, inherent and control risk
scoring. Select from the following letters:

e A. Substantive procedures - basic
e B. Substantive procedures - extended (sampling, fraud, significant risks, etc.)
e C. Substantive analytical procedures (proof in total, etc.)

e D. Tests of controls (operating effectiveness)

Z| Define Scering X
‘When the assessment of RMM is automated, the level of rizk is based on a combination of the assertion’s Inherent and
Control Risks. For each combination of Inherent and Control Risk, setthe equivalent RMM scoring to display.

The required audit responses can also be automated based on each combination of RMM, Inherent and Control Risks. For
each combination of risks, select the audit responses required.
RMM
Inherent Risk
High Medium Low
High  [High | Medium | [ Medium v
B CD B CD AlB CD
Medum | Medium | Medium w|[Low v
Control Risk
B CD B CD AlB CD
Low  [Medium w|[Low w|[Low v
ABCD ABCD AlB CD
| oK | | Cancel | | Help |

- Copyright © 2019 CaseWare Ao

Note: If inherent and control risks are not automated, then the automatic
assessment of RMM will be populated from the Risk dialog. It accumulates the sum
of all the assertions for each risk assigned to a specific FSA area and takes the
highest per FSA and assertion.



Fields/Options What to do...

Audit Response Terminology Select the default terminology name by select other and typing a new
Columns value.

Audit response type

Select an applicable audit response type from the drop-down.

Include

Select or clear to include the response type to the FSA. Click the|£| icon to select
the corresponding groupings/subgroupings. The selections determine which

procedure groupings should be included or excluded, depending on the responses
given in the FSA.

Note: If there are no procedures that match the response type in the client file, a
warning will display.

8. Select the Check when completed check box.

Results
You have now specified the settings for the Financial Statement Areas Worksheet.



5 FORMS

5.1 Introduction

CaseWare provides users with a variety of sample forms, checklists, work programs, and other useful
practice aids that can save time and money while ensuring completeness and consistency. These forms
however, should always be tailored by the firm author to ensure that the known facts and circumstances
of each engagement are addressed.

In this section, we will examine how the firm author can:
e Change form settings, including those for Firm information and logos.
o Set document prerequisites.
o Create and modify letters, work programs and checklists.
¢ Create and modify procedures.

o Generate and customize the Financial Statements Areas (FSA) worksheet.

5.2 Form Settings

5.2.1 Firm Information

The Firm Information document contains basic information about the firm that is established for the
practice unit. This information automatically populates correspondence, including the engagement,
representation, and management letters. Once completed in the master template, this information is
replicated in all engagement files and will only require modification by engagement teams where there are
multiple offices. You can also choose to add a firm logo and firm name to the footer of each document.
Logos are only accessed through the master template and cannot be changed in a client file.

Missing or incorrect data in these letters at the client engagement level should be rectified in the firm
master template.



Firm Information

Mame of the practicing unit
Address of the practicing unit

City

Prov/State
Country
PastalfZip Code
Telephone number
Facsimile nurnber
E-mail address

Practicing umit is referred to as Firmn
Firm designation Mone
Logo Cwinterface\FIRM.EMP

Browse...| |Preview
| Show the firm lego in all documents
<] Shew the firm name in all documents

5.2.2 Completing Firm Information

Procedure
5.2.21 In the Document Manager, open the Control Documents folder and open the Firm Information
document.
5222 Fill in the appropriate fields. Tip: Press Enter to move to the next input boxes.
5223 (Optional) In the Logo area, click Browse to find the path where the firm logo is located.
Notes

5.2.2.3.1 When a logo is selected, a copy of the image will be copied into the appropriate
folder and willbe repackaged with the template for distribution).

5.2.2.3.2 You can preview the logo by clicking Preview to ensure that it is showing in the
correctlocation on the sample page.

5.2.2.4 Select/clear the Show the firm logo in all documents checkbox to insert/remove the firm
logoin the footer of all documents.

5.2.2.5 Select/clear the Show the firm name in all documents checkbox to insert/remove the firm
name in the footer of all documents.

5226 In the upper right-hand corner, select the Check when completed check box.

I‘
5227 “*Click to return to the Document Manager.

5.2.3 Logos

The firm has the option to include their firm name and/or logo at the bottom of documents included with
the template. This option populates the name and/or logo globally; however, the name and/or logo canbe
suppressed where desired on individual documents. Note that these options will be available in client
files, and they will only show in the master template.



5.2.4 Document Prerequisites and Dependencies

As a quality-control measure, firms may want to prevent users from working on certain documents until
other documents have been completed. For example, a firm may want to ensure that documents key to
the planning phase are completed before documents from the performing phase are started. Users can
also specify the dependencies for a document. Dependencies prevent any further changes from being
made to a document once another document has been signed off by a specified role. Therefore, once the
document has been signed off, none of the sub-documents that are dependencies can be modified.

The firm can specify the consequences of not meeting the prerequisites including:

¢ No consequences — an information icon @ is displayed to advise users thatdocument
dependencies exist, but users can continue to work on the document.

e Warning - warning text (customizable by the firm author) will pop up in a dialog upon opening,
along with what documents needs to be completed prior to working on the currentdocument.

e Lock document - the user cannot work on the document unless a password is entered, or
the dependent document has been completed.

Note:

¢ Prerequisite conditions are defined in the firm’s master template but are only applied when
working in an engagement file.

o If the prerequisites feature is not enabled for the document, the document opens normally, and
the user is not prohibited from working on it.

5.2.5 Configure Document Prerequisites and Dependencies

Prerequisites
The following attributes are available when configuring document prerequisites:

Attribute Description

Document Prerequisites  Select a document or a combination of documents by selecting the role
signoffs that must be met before the current document can be worked on in an
engagement.

Action Select actions to take if prerequisites are not met.



Attribute

Display a warning icon

Display alert message

Lock document

Exceptions
Ignore missing
documents

Notify user

Note:

Description

Displays a default warning message before the document launches and a

notification warning icon in the open document’s header area. The User
will not be prevented from editing the document. This option will always be
selected and cannot be changed.

rWarning [-i!_?—f

Prior to working in this document, the following documents should be
completed:
FSA.: Reviewed by, Completed by

e A

Displays custom text in addition to the default warning message. The User will
not be prevented from editing the document

Locks the document until the prerequisite conditions are met or the User
enters the password by selecting the CaseView Tools menu and choosing
Lock | Form Mode.

Select actions to take when the required documents do not exist in the
engagement client file.

Missing documents are ignored when the prerequisite conditions are
evaluated.

Message displays stating that there is a missing document that is set as a
prerequisite. This message will pop up each time the document is opened until
the user inserts the missing document through the Document Library from
the master template.

¢ The default is set to two signoff roles. To change and define the Number of Roles, select the
Working Papers Tools menu and choose Options | Roles.

¢ The Apply Document Prerequisites option is selected by default in all documents. Care should
be taken by the firm in removing this option.



Dependencies
The following attributes are available when configuring document dependencies:

Attribute Description

Select a Role to prevent Ensure that this check box is selected in order to specify dependencies.
sign off removal

Select arole When this role is signed off on this document the dependent documents
selected below will be signed off and the sign offs cannot be removed.

Prevent sign off removal Selecting the documents in this list will make them dependent on the current

on document. These documents will be signed off with a sign off that cannot be
removed when the specified role is signed off on the current document.

As the firm author, you can specify prerequisites for a work program, checklist or other document.

Prerequisites are other documents that must be completed before working on this document.

To specify document prerequisites:

5.2.51 In the Document Manager, open the document for which you want to specify prerequisites.

5252 From the Document menu, select Configure Prerequisites and Dependencies.

Configure Prerequisites and Dependencies

Prerequisites Dependencies

Complete

by
Reviewed

- by

O

3 0 Working paper index

>

Instructions
Optimizer
General
Audit
Planning
Risk Assessment
Risk Response
Audit Plans and Procedures - Assets
Audit Plans and Procedures - Liabilities and Equity
Audit Plans and Procedures - Income Statement
Completion Decuments
«=-- CaseWare Audit System Documents (do not delete) ----- b

Display a warning icon ® |gnore missing documents

iy

Display alert message ) Motify user

Lock document

| oK ] Cancel | Help
5.2.5.3 In the Document Prerequisites pane, expand the folders to locate the documents that
are to be prerequisites.
5.2.5.4 For each prerequisite document, select Completed by if the document must be
completed. Select Reviewed by if the document must be completed and reviewed.
To specify document dependencies:

1. Select the Dependencies tab



n

Ensure that the check box for Select a Role to prevent sign off removal is selected.

w

Select a role using the drop-down. When this role is signed off on this document the dependent
documents selected below will be signed off and the sign offs cannot be removed.

4. Select the documents where sign off removal will be prevented when the current documentis
signed off.

5. To remove dependencies, open the dialog again and change your selections.

5.3 Letters

Depending on your version of Audit and jurisdiction, one or more sample letters are included with the
template. As the firm author, you can add additional letters based on these samples or on a blank sample
letter under the New Master Documents folder. The blank sample letter is unlocked and can be fully
edited in design mode. The other sample letters may also be unlocked, depending on your jurisdiction.
You may elect to lock the letters prior to distributing the template to your users.

Like all the advanced documents within Audit, the Letter documents are also created using CaseView.
However, unlike all the other Audit documents, which only allow access to the Form Mode of
CaseView, Letter documents allow you to access the Design Mode.

Design Mode provides you with all the features of CaseView, allowing you and your users to fully
customize the document. Form Mode is normally used by the end user of a document and provides
minimal abilities to modify the document.

As CaseView is a robust, full-featured application in and of itself, to provide a full understanding of this
tool is beyond the scope of this section. Instead, we will look at some of the features of letter documents
and some CaseView basics. For more information on using CaseView, visit the CaseView Online Help.

Each letter has the following properties that the author can define:

Property Description

Name The letter name, which appears at the top of the letter. It can also be changed
in the Headings Extended Description for CaseView in the Document
Properties dialog in the Working Papers Document Manager.

To insert a line break to create multiple lines, use Shift-Enter.
Structure Version This field is used for version tracking for updates.

Description 1, 2, 3 In the Form Identification (Footer) section, you can specify the footer that will
appear on this document. The information entered in the three description
fields is joined together to make a single footer. If information exists in the
fields, it has been specified in the AO - General Options document for the
firm. This footer can still be modified for the current document, replacing the
footer specified in the general options.


http://documentation.caseware.com/latest/CaseView/en/Content/Introduction/Welcome_to_CaseView.htm

Supported Industries

Select the industries specific to the letter when creating and showing industry-
specific content. For any additional industries selected, all available required
industry-specific procedures will be added to your current document.

For any industries removed, any industry-specific procedures associated with
the removed industry will be deleted from your current letter. Note that the
contents will be available in the content library when the industry is re-
selected.

Click Select All to select all industries and Unselect All to unselect all
industries. These may be useful for authors who would like all supported
industries available when creating industry-specific procedures.



Property Description

Document uses only Select this option if the letter will only include procedures related to the
industry-specific selected industries. Any procedures not associated with any industry or
procedures associated with industries that are not selected will be removed from the letter.

Authors can use this tool to create industry-specific letters. When the letter is
opened, the = icon appears to the left of the document number.

You can use the following common cells when drafting the letter:

Cell Description Cell Cell Calculation
Name

Name of firm ACFIRM1 cvdata ("CQ010010_010
ll)

Address 1 ACFIRM2 cvdata ("CQ010010_020
ll)

Address 2 ACFIRM3 cvdata ("CQ010010_030
ll)

City ACFIRM4 cvdata ("CQ010010_040
Il)

Province/State ACFIRM5 cvdata ("CQ010010_300
ll)

Postal/Zip Code ACFIRM6 cvdata ("CQ010010_060
Il)

Firm Designation CAFIRM1  cvdata ("CQ010010_100
0 ll)

”our” vs” my” used in a letter (lower case form). Option is triggered WEI2 if (SING1=0,"our","my")

from the menu to use singular or plural tense

”we” vs” I” used in a letter (lower case form). Option is triggered WEI3 if(SING1=0,"we","I")
from the menu to use singular or plural tense

”We” vs” I” used in a letter (capitalized form). Option is triggered ~ WEI4 if(SING1=0,"We","I")
from the menu to use singular or plural tense.

"Our” vs "My” used in a letter (capitalized case form). Option is WEI5 if(SING1=0,"Our","My")
triggered from the menu to use singular or plural tense

"us” vs "me” used in a letter (lower case form). Option is triggered  WEI6 iif(SING1=0,"us","me")
from the menu to use singular or plural tense

Consolidated

Cell to be referred to consolidated when selected from the menu. CONSOL iif(CONSOLID1,"
consolidated "," ")



Cell Description Cell Cell Calculation
Name

Other

Client name as defined in Engagement Properties CLIENT Clp2

You can populate external data entries from EP7 document. The following entries include:

Cell Description Cell Calculation
Country cvdata("CQ010010_045")
Telephone number cvdata("CQ010010_070")
Facsimile number cvdata("CQ010010_080")
E-mail address cvdata(" CQ010010_085")
Practicing unit is referred to as cvdata("CQ010010_090")

5.3.1 Creating a new letter

Procedure
5.3.1.1 From the Document Manager, open the New Master Documents folder.
5.31.2 Right-click the LETTER Sample Letter document and select Copy.

Note: You can also copy an existing letter in the Document Manager to use as its base.

53.1.3 Right-click the location in the Document Manager for the new letter and select Paste.
53.14 Right-click the new document and select Properties.
53.1.5 Change the document Number and Name and click OK.

5.3.1.6 Open the new document and, from the top menu, go to View | Design Mode to
create the content for the letter.

5.4 Work Program and Checklist Documents

Audit includes automated Work Program and Checklist document types. Work Programs contain audit
procedures for each specific financial statement area as provided by the content author. Checklist
documents are like Work Programs but contain fewer components and are used where the procedures
and responses require less detail such as for Yes/No and input type procedures. Within Audit,
Checklists are predominantly found in the Planning, Risk Assessment, Response to Assessed Risks and
Completion Documents folders.

As the Firm Author, you can modify the display of Work Program and Checklist documents and create
new Work Program and Checklist documents. You can also add, modify, delete and allocate procedures.
Modifying any original procedure in Audit changes the ownership of the procedure from the template
provider to the firm.

When engagement teams open a work program or checklist for the first time, the content and areas that
display are based on the selections made by the content author and your firm.

Work programs and checklists may include the following areas, depending on your product:
1. Risk report



Document guidance

Detailed Audit Response (only available in work programs)
Objectives (only available in work programs)

Financial Statement Assertions (only available in work programs)
Procedures

N o o bk~ 0w DN

Audit Conclusions

As the Firm Author, you can modify these areas or elect not to have them display for your Users.

Tabs located at the top of each work program and checklist enable you to access a specific area of the
document. When you select a tab, only that area is displayed. To return to displaying all areas, click the
All tab. If an area is hidden or disabled, its tab is not displayed. Clicking the Audit Procedures tab
displays an additional row of procedure tabs, enabling you to select a specific group of procedures.

The top of the work program also displays important information for this account, such as overall
materiality, performance materiality, adjusted performance materiality, or current balance.

5.4.1 Creating a Work Program

Procedures:
New Work Program

5.4.1.1 In the Document Manager, click on the location (document or folder) where you
would like toadd the Work Program.

5.4.1.2 Click the Work Program button on the Template toolbar to create a new Work Program.

g Industry 8 Engagement Details _": Pane Setu;[ A Work Program IJ’ Checklist = yaarly -

5.4.1.3 Complete the "The document name, which appears at the top of the document. It
can also be changed in the Headings Extended Description for CaseView in the
Document Properties dialog in the Working Papers Document Manager. To insert a line
break to create multiple lines, use Shift-Enter." on page Error! Bookmark not defined.
for the new work program and click OK.

5.4.1.4 Customize the new work program and then save it. It will be assigned a document
identifier anda position in the Document Manager automatically.

Work Program based on Master Document Library

1. From the Working Papers menu, select Document| New. Select From Document Library and
click OK

2. In the Source box, select the desired source.

3. Highlight the desired work programs and either click Add or drag and drop them onto the
Document Manager.

Notes:

¢ [f you cut and paste content from another document, the formatting will be corrected when you
Save the document.

¢ Authors should ensure that they do not delete the master document NWPG - New work program
from the master template, as this document is needed to create additional work programs.



e Copying a document from the Master Template Document Library does not override the
engagement file’s loaded Profile.

Work Program Document Properties

General Addtional Details

Name: [New Work Program|

Structure Version: |2-0-D

Form |dentification (Footer)

Description 1: |

Description 2: |

Description 3: |

Procedure Response

[+] Completed, no exceptions [+] Completed with exceptions noted below
Mot possible to complete [+ ves

VMo [vInga

[¥] Other

Other

[ Use Input Response

Show Mote Row

QK | | Cancel | | Help

Option/Field Description

Name and Name

Structure ,

Version The document name, which appears at the top of the document. It can also be changed

in the Headings Extended Description for CaseView in the Document Properties dialog
in the Working Papers Document Manager. To insert a line break to create multiple
lines, use Shift-Enter.

Structure Version

This field is used for version tracking for updates.



Form
Identification
(Footer)

Procedure
response

Other

Form Identification (Footer)

Specify the footer that will appear on this document. The information entered in the
three description fields is joined together to make a single footer. If information exists in
the fields, it has been specified in the AO - General Options document for the firm. This
footer can still be modified for the current document, replacing the footer specified in the
general options.

Select from a list of work program responses that are to be made available to the user.
See Defining Standards for Work Programs for more details.

Use Input Response
Select to set the Work Program to respond to user responses.
Show Note Row

Select to display note rows below each procedure/sub-procedure in the Work Program.

General

Type:
Topic:

Reference:

URL:

Additional Details

Supported Industries: Select all || Unselect All |

> D Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing
I [] Mining and quarrying
|:| Manufacturing
D Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning supply
D Water supply; sewerage, waste management and remediation activities
D Construction
D Whaolesale and retail trade; repair of motor vehicles and motoroycles
D Transportation and storage
|:| Accommodation and food service activities

D Infarmation and communication

~

Document uses anly industry-specific procedures




Option/Field Description

Additional Type

Detail Field
elal relds The Document Type is used to group work programs and checklists for display in the

Work program/checklist progress report. For example, if you set the type as Field Work,
all work programs/checklists tagged with this type will appear together in the progress
report.

Topic

Organize the presentation of the progress report by providing a topic. For example,
adding a topic of Current Assets would group work programs/checklists with this topic
together in the progress report.

Reference
Type the text to a link that may be useful when completing a document.
URL

Type the URL for the linked text that may be useful when completing a document.

Supported Select the industries specific to the program when creating and showing industry-

Industries specific content. For any additional industries selected, all available required industry-
specific procedures will be added to your current checklist. For any industries removed,
any industry-specific procedures associated with the removed industry will be deleted
from your current document. Note that the contents will be available in the content
library when the industry is re-selected. Click Select All to select all industries and
Unselect All to unselect all industries. These may be useful for authors who would like
all supported industries available when creating industry-specific procedures.

Document Select this check box when only procedures related to the industry selected are to be
uses only included in the checklist. Any procedures not associated with any industry or associated
industry- with industries that are not selected will be removed from the document. Authors can

Sf:czgﬁres use this tool to create industry-specific checklists. When the checklist is opened, the &=
P icon appears to the left of the document number.

5.4.2 Creating Checklists

Blank checklists can be added by the author by copying the master checklist. Authors may enter the
procedure text by copying/pasting from another document or manually entering the content.

Procedure

5.4.2.1 In the Document Manager, click on the location (document or folder) where you
would like toadd the Checklist.



54.2.2 Click the Work Program button on the Template toolbar to create a new Checklist.

0O 0 @ Constellation @ Industry @ % Page Setup E:Eff‘."'."l:url-:F"n:ugrar'ﬂ

54.2.3 Complete the "Checklist Document Properties" on page 73 for the new checklist and click OK.

5.4.2.4 Customize the new checklist and then save it. It will be assigned a document
identifier and a position in the Document Manager automatically.

Notes

o If you cut and paste content from another document the formatting will be corrected whenyou
save the document.

¢ You can also right-click on NWPG New Checklist in the New Master Documents folderand
copy/paste the file to create a new checklist.

o Authors should ensure that they do not delete the master checklist document NCHKLST - New
checklist from the master template, as this document is needed to create additional checklists.

For additional help, see the Audit QuickVid — Creating New Work Programs and Checklists.

Checklist Document Properties

Each checklist has the following properties that the author can define:

General Tab
Property Description

Name The document name, which appears at the top of the document. It can also be
changed in the Headings Extended Description for CaseView in the Document
Properties dialog in the Working Papers Document Manager. To insert a line
break to create multiple lines, use Shift-Enter.

Structure Version This field is used for version tracking for updates.

Show Column

Property Description

Procedure Sign-off Select this check box to require the user to enter initials and date beside the
procedure when completed.

Reference Select this check box to include the reference column. The reference column
allows cross-references to be added by the user and the related drill-down to
the document referenced.

Show Row

Property Description

Notes Select this check box to include the notes row. The notes row provides an
input area where users can type text.

Heading


http://www.caseware.com/caseware/support/caseknowledge/creating-new-work-programs-and-checklists

Property Description

Procedure The text of the column heading for the procedures.
Result The text of the column heading for the results.
Conclusion The text of the column heading for the conclusion.
Other
Property Description
Response Type The response type for the Result column. Select the required format from the

drop-down list:

e Work Program Responses - display the Procedure Response panel,
which lists the responses defined in the Completion Responses area of
the AO - General Options document. Select check boxes to specify the
responses that are to be made available to the user that is completing this
checklist.

¢ Yes/No/NA/Other (No requires explanation) - when a No response is
selected, an explanation is always required.

¢ Yes/No/NA/Other (Yes requires explanation) - when a Yes response is
selected, an explanation is always required.

¢ Input Type Response - create an input area for the response.

¢ Yes/No/NA/Other (No explanation required for Yes/No) - no
explanation is required if a Yes or No response is selected.

¢ Yes/No/NA/Other - an explanation is required only if the Otherresponse
is selected.

e Yes/No

Conclusion Area The author specifies the conclusion options. Select the required option from
the drop-down list:

e Do not use - no conclusion area is included.

¢ Conclusion & Sign-off - a text area for a conclusion and a sign-off area
are included.

o Sign-off Only - only the sign-off area is included.
e Conclusion Only - only the text area for a conclusion is included.

Form Identification (Footer)

In the Form Identification (Footer) section, you can specify the footer that will appear on this document.
The information entered in the three description fields is joined together to make a single footer. If
information exists in the fields, it has been specified in the AO - General Options document for the firm.
This footer can still be modified for the current document, replacing the footer specified in the general
options.

Procedure Response



When Work Program Responses is selected as the Response Type, select from a list of work program
responses that are to be made available to the user that is completing this checklist.

Additional Details Tab

Property
Type
Topic
Reference
URL

Supported Industries

Document uses only
industry-specific
procedures

5.4.3 Risk Report

Description

The Document Type is used to group work programs and checklists for display
in the Work program/checklist progress report. For example, if you set the type
as Field Work, all work programs/checklists tagged with this type will appear
together in the progress report.

Organize the presentation of the progress report by providing a topic. For
example, adding a topic of Current Assets would group work
programs/checklists with this topic together in the progress report.

The Reference and URL fields provide a link to guidance that may be useful
when completing a document. The Reference field provides the text of the link.

The Reference and URL fields provide a link to guidance that may be useful
when completing a document. The URL field provides the URL for the link.

Select the industries specific to the program when creating and showing
industry-specific content. For any additional industries selected, all available
required industry-specific procedures will be added to your current checklist.
For any industries removed, any industry-specific procedures associated with
the removed industry will be deleted from your current document. Note that the
contents will be available in the content library when the industry is re-
selected. Click Select All to select all industries and Unselect All to unselect
all industries. These may be useful for authors who would like all supported
industries available when creating industry-specific procedures.

Select this check box when only procedures related to the industry selected
are to be included in the checklist. Any procedures not associated with any
industry or associated with industries that are not selected will be removed

from the document. Authors can use this tool to create industry-specific

checklists. When the checklist is opened, the = icon appears to the left of the
document number.

As you accumulate risks, you can view, edit or copy them in the Risk Report. This report summarizes
risks in various views and includes procedure responses.

In the Risk Report, shading is used to highlight risks that are more severe. The colors used, in order from
least severe to most severe: white (least severe), grey, violet, magenta, scarlet, bright red (most severe).

Different Views can be created and saved by selecting various Filters, applying a Layout, adding and
removing columns, and changing column widths.



Document  Report  Options  Help

0-0-0 | aAi- | W4Adac([{e BDRlva

< view: Training View Default

Categories: All - Potential RMM: All -
Date ldentified: All - Business Cycles: All -
Risk Determination: All - Materiality: All -
Assertions: All -

To add or remove columns for display, right-click the risk report and check or uncheck the column name.

To resize the columns in the Risk Report Table, click the ruler button 3“. Click on the worksheet heading
that you wish to resize, then drag the bars on the ruler.

Once Filters and Layouts have been applied, the View can be saved and become available from a drop-
down list. Firms can define custom views and use the drop-down to save these views. Auditors can then
easily view risk reports and include them in the documentation of risk analysis in their engagement files.

Document  Report  Options  Help

0-0-0 | ag- Kac/ ([F ol B @l

[ % View: Training View -
Detaunview ——————gp
Categories: Erf"t U!ew 1 Potentia
Date Identified: an.ut .\hew.z = Business
raining View
Risk Determination: | pisk Identification Material
Assertions: Fraud Risk
Business Risk
[ | Risk Assessment (Work Programs) = [ a0 o0 dnddaidIsea a0

5.4.4 Document Guidance

The content or Firm Author can provide guidance for users at the document level. For example, this could
be in the form of authoritative details, instructions for a specific document or procedure, or any
information that would be of use to the user. Annotations, hyperlinks and CaseView cells can also be
added to the guidance area. Procedure level guidance can also be provided and will be explained in the
Audit Procedures area.

Document guidance is provided at the top of the work program or checklist and provides overall guidance
for the document.

To show or hide the Document Guidance area, select Display Document Guidance from the Options
menu.



Document  Procedures  Areas Author  Options  Help

& ~ [ | o - Q- @ Content Library Path

. o "o ¥ | Display Completion Details
v Display Document Guidance I
Risks Addressed v Display Headings
Display Procedure Sign Off Below Procedures

Document Guidance v Display Select Response Button
The Audit Response Table] v' | Display Interactive Guidance

1. Record the assessed level of risks (financ

2. Determine the appropriate audit response Print Authoritative Reference

a) Assessedrisks atthe financial Print Rick

b) Risks of fraud Risk Report 5320
c) Each relevant asserion
3. Where a combined approach (tests ofcorl ¥ Print Firm Logo in Footer

v | Print Firm Mame in Footer

extents of testing and related evidence po Print Current Date/Time in Footer
1 i ) )
The Audit Plang] Print Client Path in Footer
1. Ensure that the audit procedures outlined Highlight External Cells
2. Remove any audit procedures that are not
Form 675, which provides some example Rick Report View b

You can insert your own custom Document Guidance with a version to control whether it should trigger
an update in the engagement file. To do this,

5441 From the Areas menu, select Insert Document Guidance.
Note: If the guidance was created by a different author, you will obtain the following error:

Warning

This guidance was created by a different author (Distributor).
Editing this guidance will change the ownership of the guidance to the editor
(you - Firm).

Are you sure you want to change ownership of this guidance?

es Mo

Click Yes to proceed.

5.4.4.2 New! Change the first digit to propagate the update to the engagement file or
change the second digit to save it to the master template only.

Document _Guidance
Version: (2/00

Major 4J I—p

5443 Enter the new guidance text in the green input box.

5444 Save and close the document.



5.4.5 Detailed Audit Response

Found only in work program documents, the Detailed Audit Response area allows your engagement
teams to plan and design a work program that responds to assessed risks at both the financial statement
and assertion level.

The audit response table is located at the top of each work program. Several default formats are available
in the content library for inclusion, or Firm Authors can choose to create their own format.

Note:

¢ [f you save an existing or new format to the library, this format becomes available for inclusionin
all work programs.

By default, all detailed audit response formats are available to your users.
5.4.6 Objectives

Found only in work program documents, the Objectives area defines the objectives for each work
program. This area is optional and can be turned off in each work program document or globally from the
AO - General Options document.

You can associate objectives with audit procedures and sub procedures. Associated objectives display in
a column next to the procedure.

All Document Guidance Detailed Audit Response Objectives Procedures
|
Objectives
1. Torespond appropriately to assessed risks atthe financial statement level (overall responses) and atthe a
procedures,
—
Procedure Obj | Assert Threshold Ref Hame

Procedures

A. SUBSTANTIVE PROCEDUREP - BASIC

1. Analytical procedures CEA Default { Low ) Analytical
procedures

Develop and document
expectations for revenue
balances based on risk
factors identified and
other information
obtained from
understanding the entity.

Investigate significant
changes or trends in the

To show or hide the Objectives area, select Insert List of Audit Objectives from the Areas menu.
Hiding the Objectives area will not affect the associated objectives displaying in the Procedures area.

To delete the Objectives area and the list of objectives, right click in the Objectives area and select
Delete Objectives. Deleting the Objectives area will clear the objectives displaying in the Procedures
area.

To insert, edit, delete, or sort an objective from the Objectives area, right click and select the
appropriate item.



5.4.7 Financial Statement Assertions

Assertions are representations by management, explicit or otherwise, that are embodied in the financial
statements. An auditor must obtain enough competent evidence to support the financial statement
assertions.

Found only in work program documents, the Financial Statement Assertions area displays all available
assertions and their abbreviations. This area is optional and can be turned off in each work program
document or globally from the AO - General Options document. Audit defaults with the Assertions area
available but not displayed in the work programs.

Audit defaults with four assertions: Completeness, Existence, Accuracy, and Valuation. As Firm
Author, you may change or include other assertions. Additional assertions cannot be added by the
engagement team.

To show or hide the assertions area, select Insert List of Assertions from the Areas menu or click the
toolbar button .

5.4.8 Audit Procedures

The Procedures area contains the steps to be performed by the engagement team to obtain enough
audit evidence that the statements are not materially misstated. You can insert, modify, and delete
procedures and sub-procedures.

When authoring content in the work programs in the master file, the columns visible to the author are
different from those visible in client files. The columns in the author view help to manage version and
procedure naming information. Version information is only displayed at the engagement level during
content update through Check for Updates, as it is used solely to manage the content. Similarly, the
author does not need to view results, sign-off information, and notes while creating/editing content.
Therefore, those columns only display in an engagement file.

All Document Guidance Detailed Audit Response Objectives Procedures AUDIT CONCLUSIOMS (based on prof

Assert Ver

‘ Procedure | Obj

Threshold | Ref | Hame | Req

Modified
Date

A. SUBSTANTIVE PROCEDURES - BASIC

1. Analytical procedures CEA Default ( Low ) Analytical r 2.00 31/07/2010

Develop and decument procedures
expectations for revenue

balances based on risk

factors identified and

Except as noted, the Procedures area in work program and checklist documents includes the following
columns:

Column Description

Procedure A procedure has three possible levels. The numbering structure of these levels is predefined
and cannot be modified. You can insert, modify, or delete procedures from a right-click
menu or from the Procedures menu. Procedures marked as Required  cannot be deleted.

If a procedure has been defined for specific industries, an ﬁicon appears at the left of this
column. Hover over this icon to display the industry and industry code for this procedure.




Column

Obj (Work
Program
only)

Assert
(Work
Program
only)

Threshold
(Work
Program
only)

Ref

Name

Req (Work
Program
only)

Ver

Modified
Date

Description

Objectives from the Objectives area are associated to procedures or sub procedures. To
change objectives, right-click the procedure and select Objectives, or select Objectives
from the Procedures menu. The Obj column only appears when set in the AO - General
Options document.

Assertions from the Assertions area are assigned to the individual procedure or sub
procedure. To change the assertion, right-click the procedure and select Assertions, or
select Assertions from the Procedures menu. The Assert column only appears when set
in the AO - General Options document.

Note: You can enable Optimiser to delete procedures from a work program associated to
the FSA, if none of the procedures' assertions match the FSA's Relevant Assertions. To
configure the Optimiser to delete these procedures, select the Delete procedures based
on risk thresholds in the FSA option from the Optimiser pane of the AO - General
options document.

The Threshold column appears only when the Optimiser feature in the AO - General
Options document is configured to enable deletion of procedures based on risk thresholds.
It specifies the minimum risk assessment threshold for each procedure. If the RMM for the
work program is lower than the procedure's threshold, the procedure is deemed to be
unnecessary and deleted from the work program. The RMM is specified in the Financial
statement areas worksheet. To change the threshold, right-click the procedure and select
Assertions, or select Assertions from the Procedures menu, and select the appropriate
threshold.

Create document reference links to documents where audit work would be performed. To
enter a reference, right-click the procedure and select Insert New Reference or select
Insert New Reference from the Procedures menu.

The Name is used to identify the procedure in the content library. Sub procedures do not
have a Name, as they belong with the main procedure.

The firm or content author can set the procedure as Required for all engagements,
preventing users from removing the procedure or any of its sub-procedures. Required
procedures are automatically updated on a check for updates.

The version is used to identify when changes are made to the content. When a user checks
for content updates, the user will be advised that the content is out of date only if the version
numbers differ. The firm author must ensure that they change the version number if they
modify content.

Provides a calendar date for the author to track the date the content was modified.

5.4.8.1 Authoring New Procedures

Procedures can be authored and added to a work programs / checklist.

Note: If a document does not contain any procedures, a message window will appear to confirm that no
procedures have been found to import.



Procedure

1. Place your cursor on any procedure or sub procedure.

2. Right click and select Insert New Procedure. You can also use the Author menu at the top of
the work program / checklist or click «? . Additional alternatives are available from the drop-
down next to the “? button.

3. Select the number of procedures to insert and click OK.

4. In the New Procedure dialog, define the properties of the procedure.

|=| Mew Procedure =
Mame: || |
Industry: e
Grouping: |A. SUBSTAMTIVE PROCEDURES - BASIC Vl +| Manage |
Sub
L
Grouping: | Mone | £ | Manage |
Wersion: |1.DD |
[] Procedure is always required for the work program
[] Procedure is library only
[] Procedure is based on an existing procedure
OK || Cancel || Help
Property What to do...
Name Type a name to identify the procedure.
Industry Select an industry if the procedure is specific to an industry. Industry drop-down is
disabled if no industries are selected in the Document Properties dialog.
SL:%U%TJQ iind Select a grouping or subgrouping to define where the procedure should appear.
grouping For more information, see Adding Procedures to Grouping or Subgrouping.
Version Type the Version number to assist in tracking changes. For more information, see

Procedure is always
required for the work
program

New! Procedure is
library only

Procedure is based
on existing procedure

Content Management.

Select to make the procedure to be a required procedure for the Work Program.
Required procedures cannot be deleted. Procedures marked as required will

3

display near the procedure.

Select to make the procedure optional for the Work Program. Procedures marked
as optional will display near the procedure.

Select if a procedure is to be created based on an existing procedure within the
work program.

Note: You can remove all marked optional procedures ( ) by selecting
Remove All Library Only Procedures from the Author menu.

5. Type the required procedure text.



PEnog.

* Depreciationfamortization expense compared to the
previous period.

* Additions during the period compared to the approved
capital budget (if available)

* Reazonableness of current period additions, dsposals,
retirements and depreciation/amertization policies in light of
the entiy's operations and business plans.

6. Sort the procedures as required.

7. Ensure that the version number and modified date are set as desired. See Updating Procedures
in the Master Template Only for more information on versioning.

Note: You can remove all marked optional procedures ( “" ) by selecting Remove All Library Only
Procedures from the Author menu.

utho Options Help

Import Procedures

u Insert Mew Procedure...

i Set Procedure Availability...

] Set Audit Response Availability...
u

] Manage Groupings

u

[ Manage Sub Groupings

| Procedure Properties

f Insert All Procedures

1: Insert All Author Procedures

it Author's Action Report

" Remowe All Library Only Procedures l:
t Reset Procedure Status

itk

5.4.8.2 Adding New Sub Procedures to Authored Procedures

Procedure
8. Place your cursor on any procedure or sub procedure.

9. Right click and select Insert New Sub Procedure - 1st Level or Insert New Sub Procedure -
2nd level. You can also use the Procedures menu at the top of the work program / checklist or



the drop-down next to the Y button. You can specify the number of procedures to add, butsub
procedures are limited to a maximum of 30.

10. If you require the sub procedures at the second level, you must start with your cursor on asub
procedure.

11. Type the required text or copy and paste text from another document. You can use the CaseView
Style Bar to bold, italicize or underline any text added. Tip: if text is copied from another
document, the font may not look the same upon copying. Save the document when complete,
and the sub procedure will be applied with the font to match the rest of the procedures.

12.Sort the sub procedures as required.

5483 Importing procedures from a work program or checklist

Note: You can only select one document during the import process. If you wish to import from multiple
sources, importing must be done one document at a time.
Procedure

13.1In the menu bar, click Author and select Import Procedures. The Import Procedures dialog will
open with the current client file as the Import Source.

14.If the work program or checklist that you wish to copy is in another client file, click Browse to
change the import source. Select the client file (.ac) from which you want to copy.

15. The Import Source Document Manager below will show the document manager of the sourceyou
have selected. Refresh the list, if necessary, by clicking Refresh.

16. Select the document source from which to import the procedures and click OK.

17.The Import Procedures dialog will open with the list of procedures that can be imported. Select
the check box beside each procedure you wish to import.

18.Click OK.
4.4.8.2 Selecting Procedures to Make Available

Procedure

1. From the Author menu, select Set Procedure Availability. The Select Procedures dialog
appears.

2. Click the individual formats to preview. Ensure that the Preview Content check box is selected.

3. Select the Available check box beside each format if you want to make it available to users.
<l

Select the procedures available in this work progr

View: | Waork Program W

Ayailable [ncluded M ame
-| A SUBSTAMNTIVE PROCEDURES - BASIC

Analytical procedures
Folicies
Schedule




4. Once all content has been reviewed, click OK to save your changes.
4.4.8.3 Editing Procedures

Procedures can be edited in the work program or checklist. Changing the version number of a modified
procedure will help the end user identify procedures that are out of date during the update process. Page
breaks can also be added for printing purposes.

If you have procedures that are appearing in the wrong group or sub group title, you need to change the
group or sub group of the procedure using the procedure properties. Note that if the procedure is not
owned by you, you will not have access to modify the group or sub group in the procedure properties. In
this case, edit the procedure to change ownership prior to modifying the group or sub grouping.

Note:

Be sure to review the procedure availability to ensure the correct procedures are available tothe
user.

If you do not own the procedure you are trying toedit, you will be warned to change ownership of
the procedure when you try to edit the procedure. During the change in ownership, a new
procedure is created based on the original procedure, and the original procedure will be marked
as unavailable. For end users who already have client files with the original content, the check
for updates will show the original procedure as deleted and a new procedure has been added
by the firm author. It is the firm’s responsibility to alert the user of the change, as the end user
may not understand why a procedure has been deleted and another procedure has been
added, and the client file is not showing the original procedure as updated.

If the ownership is changed for a procedure that has been defined for a checklist, any custom
actions defined for that procedure will be deleted.

You can change the procedure to Require without changing the authorship. Note, however, that
this may need to be reviewed to ensure they are set properly after any content update is
released by CaseWare.

Modifying Existing Procedures

Procedure

1. Place your cursor on the procedure or sub procedure to be modified.

2. Right-click and select Modifiable. You can also place the cursor on the procedure to modify and
select Modifiable in Procedures menu at the top of the work program. Type the required
changes.



Notes
If you are modifying an original procedure, then you will receive the following prompt:

This procedure was created by a different author (Distributor),
Editing this procedure will change the ownership of the procedure to the editor
(you - Firm).

Are you sure you want to change ownership of this procedure?

Audit will create a new procedure under the ownership of the firm instead of the content provider. The
original procedure is no longer available and is only accessible through the Set Procedure Availability
feature.

4.4.8.4 Procedure Guidance

Like Document Guidance, the content or firm author can provide procedure level guidance in the
Procedures area. The guidance displays below each procedure or sub procedure and will never print.
You can also include annotations and hyperlinks from the CaseView Insert menu. By default, the
template displays all procedure guidance; however, you can elect to hide some or all guidance.



Note:

o If a firm author adds guidance to procedures that are not owned by the firm, the ownership ofthe
procedure changes to the firm. This process creates a new procedure based on the original
procedure, and the original procedure will be set to be unavailable.

Procedure

1. Place your cursor on the procedure or sub-procedure and select Modifiable from the right click
menu.

N

. Right-click and select Procedure Guidance. You can also use the Procedures menu.

Type the procedure guidance text next to the book icon {3}

> ow

. Right-click and clear Modifiable when complete. Saving the document will also clear Modifiable.

Authoritative References

Instead of adding hyperlinks to the guidance below each procedure, you can quickly add them to the right
of the procedure with the option to have them print.

Note:

o By default, Authoritative References do not print. To enable printing, select Print Authoritative
References from the Options menu for each document.

¢ To edit the Authoritative Reference, right-click on the hyperlink and select Edit | Edit
Hyperlink.

o If a firm author adds guidance to procedures that are not owned by the firm, the ownership ofthe
procedure changes to the firm. This process creates a new procedure based on the original
procedure, and the original procedure is set to be unavailable.

Procedure

1. Place your cursor on the procedure or sub procedure and select Modifiable from the right click
menu. You can also use the Procedures menu.

2. On the right side of Modified Date, the blue (add) link will appear. Click on it to bring up the
Hyperlink dialog.

3. Type in the desired Display Text, and if there is a page to display, the URL.
4. Click OK.

5. Right-click and clear Modifiable when complete. Saving the document will also clears
Modifiable.
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5.4.9 Conclusion Area

The Conclusion area provides an area to document conclusions and, where applicable, sign off the
document. The conclusion area will always display in work program documents but is optional in
checklist documents.

Firm authors can allow engagement teams to sign off incomplete work programs and checklists by setting
the Sign off an incomplete document option in the AO - General options document. If this setting is
disabled, the work program conclusion area cannot be signed off until all procedure steps are completed.

The Conclusion title for this area is defined globally in the AO - General options for work programs. For
checklists, it is defined in individual checklist document properties from Properties in the Document
menu.

To make changes to the conclusion text, select Edit Conclusion when you right click in the Conclusion
area or by selecting the = button.

AUDIT CONCLUSIONS (based on professional judgment)

The audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to reduce audit risk to an acceptably low levelq]
Completed by:
Reviewed by:

You can insert your own custom conclusion with a version to control whether it should trigger an update
in the engagement file. To do this,

1. From the Areas menu, select Insert Document Guidance.
Note: If the conclusion was created by a different author, you will obtain the following error:



Warning

This conclusion was created by a different author (Distributor).
Editing this conclusion will change the ownership of the conclusion to the editor
(you - Firm).

Are you sure you want to change ownership of this conclusion?

Yes Mo

Click Yes to proceed.

2. New! Change the first digit to propagate the update to the engagement file or change the second
digit to save it to the master template only.

Document Guidance
Version: (200

Major -.—l I—..

3. Enter the new guidance text in the green input box.

4. Save and close the document.

4.4.10 Locking Work Program and Checklists

Once you have completed all necessary customizations, you have the option to lock the master template
and/or lock the work program and checklist procedures prior to distributing the template to your
engagement teams. Locking the template prior to distribution protects the template from unauthorized
access and restricts the amount of customization that teams can perform at the engagement level.

4.4.10.1 Lock Author Mode

Locking the author mode prevents certain accidental or unauthorized modifications in the firm and user's
copy of the master template file and content libraries. This is a global setting that locks the AO - General
options document and limits functionality in all work program and checklist documents. Engagement
teams are still able to customize work program and checklist documents in the engagement client files
that they create.

Before locking author mode, you have the following menus available in work program and checklist
documents:

Document  Procedures Areas Author Options __Help

@~ @ 3 Q- - @~ = & | @~ = A - = B - | 0 B8 & f ] Search On-line Help

After locking author mode, you are restricted to the following:



#l

Help .

4.4.10.2 Lock User Procedure Customizations

Locking user procedure customizations prevents accidental and unauthorized modifications to work
program and checklist procedures at the engagement client file level. Each work program or checklist
document must be locked independently. This functionality can be used, for example, to ensure that the
engagement team completing the document does not modify the original procedures and completes the
document with the authored content as is. Note that locking procedure customizations will not have any
effect on authoring in the master template.

When user procedure customizations have been locked, the Optimiser does not delete procedures when
the work program or checklist is opened, even if the procedure threshold is above the overall assessed
risk.

If user procedure customizations are locked by the engagement team, the lock is automatically removed
after year end close has been performed. User procedure customizations that have been created by the
firm author are retained after year end close.

[

: e
The locked state of the document is indicated by the unlocked “# or locked ™I icon to the left of the
document name. Hovering over the icon displays a tooltip indicating the lock state, while clicking onthe
icon launches the feature.

Note:

e Lock User Procedure Customizations locks only the document you are currently in. The content
author/engagement must manually lock each document individually.

o When the content author locks user procedure customizations in the master template, the content
author can still make modifications in author mode.

¢ For firms using the Working Papers Protection feature, the Lock User Procedure Customization
feature requires the user to belong to a group with a CaseView Access Level of 6 or higher.

For more detailed information on protection, users, and groups in Working Papers, refer to the
Working Papers help topic.

4.5 About Partner and Manager Summary Report

The Partner and Manager Summary Report provides key information in the engagement audit file and
summarizes it in a customizable report. This summary assists reviewers by consolidating key information
and issues in the audit in one document for review. If more detail is required on an item, the reviewer can
then review the relevant individual documents.

As the Firm Author, you can customize the default report included in or create other reports with different
options. Once created, your Users can generate the report as required.

Procedures

1. Open the relevant Partner and Manager Summary Report.

2. Click 4 to display the options.

3. In each section area, from the drop-down list, select the type of section to include.



Section Settings

[= Materiality
Section Type:
=| Financial Statement Area Materiality
Section Type: Financial Statement Area Gr

Other lssues by
Alzo search for suppor Other Risks

4. If FSA or Other Issues is set as the section setting, select from the list the type of issues tobe
included.

G_TUD oz Client Izsue; Review Notes E]
by:

“Group and Fitter lzzues
oy ALL lssues [

Audit defaults to display ALL Issues.
5. To add additional sections, click \'—iﬂ.
6. To sort sections to an alternative order, click 2 .
7. To delete sections from the report, click x beside each section.
8. When complete, click %

9. Click ﬂ or from the Document menu, select Generate.

Note: To lock configurations, click & or from the Document menu, select Lock/Unlock Settings.

As the firm author, you can create reports with different options or reports to be generated by your users
at different times during the engagement. For example, a report can be generated after the planning
stage and another near the end of the audit. You can also create additional partner and manager
summary reports to show different sections of the report, such as Materiality only. Once generated, the
contents of the Partner and Manager Summary Report will not change unless the user regenerates the
report
Procedures

1. From the Document Manager, open the New Master Documents folder.
Right-click the NPMSD Partner and manager summary document and select Copy.
Right-click the Completion Documents folder and select Paste.
Right-click the new document and select Properties.

Change the document Number and Name in the General tab and click OK.

2 e

Open the new document and Configure as required.



The following sections are available when configuring the Partner and Manager Summary Report:
Section Description

None Creates a blank area for input only. The engagement team could highlight or
add additional information for the reviewer.

Materiality Summarizes materiality information from the Materiality document.

Financial Statement Area Displays the Risks and Issues associated with documents that are linked to
items on the Financial statement areas (FSA) worksheet. Risks and Issues
are grouped by the related FSA, with information such as planning balance,
current balance, and materiality types from FSA.

Also search for supporting documents option: When this item is selected,
any Risk or Issue associated with documents that share the same folder as the
document referenced to the FSA are also included.

Other Issue(s) Includes issues from work programs or checklists that are not attached to an
FSA. Issues are ordered in the order of the document manager.

Other Risk(s) Includes risks that have not been attached to any FSA and issues recorded in
the associated FSA line item are detailed.

includes the document PMSD - Partner and manager summary in the Document Manager and defaults
to include the Materiality, Financial Statement Area, Other Issue(s) and Other Risk(s) sections.

5.5 Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

As part of the planning process, the Financial Statement Areas (FSA) Worksheet can be used to identify
significant or high-risk accounts that may require substantive procedures and accounts where the auditor
can rely on performing test of controls. The FSA Worksheet also provides your engagement teams the
ability to:

¢ Link significant areas to work programs.

Associate applicable business cycles.

Define relevant assertions.

Evaluate Inherent, Control, Residual and RMMs at the assertion level.

Develop the audit approach.

The Audit template includes the document FSA - Financial statement areas worksheet (CORE) in the
Document Manager. As the Firm Author, you can modify the default configuration and pre-generate the
worksheet to be used by your engagement teams. Pre-generating the FSA Worksheet and associating
each financial statement area item to the appropriate work program saves time and provides consistency
across all client files.

In this section, we will examine how the firm can:
¢ Modify some default columns from the AO - General options document.
¢ Configure the FSA Financial statement areas worksheet (CORE).

o Pre-generate the FSA Worksheet to be used by your engagement teams.



The Financial Statement Areas (FSA) Worksheet accumulates all the financial statement areas in a
central location for assessment and analysis.

The following table lists the columns in this worksheet. If a column is not displayed, use the Areas menu

to display it.
Column

Group number

Accounts/disclosures or other matters
considered significant

Planning Balance as of [date]

Final Balance

Unrecorded AJEs

Prior Year

Prior Year 2

Description

The grouping used is based on the selection made in
Configure options. This will be blank for manually added
items.

The description of the account/disclosure.

The unadjusted balance on the date when the worksheet was
generated. These figures will not update unless the Refresh or
Generate button is selected.

If you double-click on an amount in this column, a popup
window appears that lists the individual accounts that produce
the amount.

The final balance after adjusted journal entries have been
included. Note that the planning balance and the current
balance may differ, and the current balance should be
reviewed for any impact on planned procedures from the
original planning balance.

If you double-click on an amount in this column, a popup
window appears that lists the individual accounts that produce
the amount.

The unrecorded proposed adjusted journal entries in the
current year.

If you double-click on an amount in this column, a popup
window appears that lists the individual accounts that produce
the amount.

The final balance from the prior year.

If you double-click on an amount in this column, a popup
window appears that lists the individual accounts that produce
the amount.

The final balance from two years ago.

If you double-click on an amount in this column, a popup
window appears that lists the individual accounts that produce
the amount.



Column Description

Materiality assessment The summary of whether a financial statement area is material.
This check box is automatically selected if any of the check
boxes in the Overall Materiality and Performance Materiality
columns are selected. When you hover over this check box, a
tooltip appears that displays which of the overall materiality and
performance materiality check boxes are selected. This
indicates why this area is material.

In the client file, the engagement team can select the
Materiality assessment check box to indicate that a financial
statement area is material or clear the check box to indicate
that it is not.

Materiality warning indicators can be enabled in the Financial
Statement Areas Worksheet section of the AO - General
options document.

If the planning balance is not material and the final balance is
material, an A indicator appears in the Materiality
assessment column, indicating that there is a risk of
insufficient audit work.

If the planning balance is material and the final balance is not

material, an % indicator appears in the Materiality
assessment column, indicating that there is a risk of over-
auditing.

Entering an explanation in the Audit Response Finalisation
field removes the warning indicator.

Overall Materiality Indicates whether the financial statement area is material
based on the overall materiality.

This column contains two sub-columns, Preliminary and Final:

e The check box in the Preliminary column is automatically
selected if the planning balance exceeds the preliminary
overall materiality.

e The check box in the Final column is automatically
selected if the final balance exceeds the preliminary
overall materiality or the final overall materiality.

When you hover over a check box that has been selected, a
tooltip appears that displays the calculations used to determine
that the area is material.

You cannot select or unselect these check boxes. To manually
override the materiality for this financial statement area, select
or unselect the Materiality assessment check box.



Column

Performance Materiality

Specific Materiality by

Relevant Assertions

Business Cycle

Other control processes (that impact
account/disclosure)

Description

Indicates whether the financial statement area is material
based on the performance materiality.

This column contains two sub-columns, Preliminary and Final:

e The check box in the Preliminary column is automatically
selected if the planning balance exceeds the preliminary
performance materiality or the preliminary adjusted
performance materiality.

e The check box in the Final column is automatically
selected if the final balance exceeds the preliminary
performance materiality, the preliminary adjusted
performance materiality, the final performance materiality,
or the final adjusted performance materiality.

When you hover over a check box that has been selected, a
tooltip appears that displays the calculations used to determine
that the area is material.

You cannot select or unselect these check boxes. To manually
override the materiality for this financial statement area, select
or unselect the Materiality assessment check box.

Manually select the appropriate check box if the financial
statement area is determined to be material for the specific
circumstance:

¢ Classes of Transactions
e Account Balances

e Disclosures

e Other

Right-click and select Change Assertions where applicable.
Changes will automatically affect the Detailed Audit
Response section in the associated work programs and in the
Risk Report documents.

Note: You can enable Optimiser to delete procedures from a
work program associated to the FSA, if none of the procedures'
assertions match the FSA's Relevant Assertions. To configure
the Optimiser to delete these procedures, select the Delete
procedures based on risk thresholds in the FSA option from
the Optimiser pane of the AO - General options document.

Right-click and select Insert Business Cycle or click the icon.
In the Risk and Control dialogs, when the line item is selected
in the Financial Statement Areas section, the associated
business cycles automatically populate the dialog.

Input area to document other considerations.



Column

Inherent Risk
Control Risk
Residual Risk

RMM

Summarize the reasoning for the
assessed level of risk

Description

Select from the drop-down list the assessment of risk. The
assessments automatically populate the same line items in the
Risk Report documents.

The names of these risks can be changed in the Financial
Statement Areas Worksheet section of the AO - General
options document.

Note: When a line item has been assigned an inherent risk
assessment, you can point to the assessment to view a tooltip
that may inform you that it is a default assessment.

If a manually assigned inherent risk assessment has replaced
a default one, the cell with the assessment features a red
border.

Select the assessment of risk from the drop-down list. When
this Optimiser feature has been enabled, a procedure is
deleted from a work program if its Threshold value is higher
than the RMM for that account and user procedure
customizations have not been locked.

The assessments automatically populate the Detailed Audit
Response section in the associated work program.

The name of this risk can be changed in the Financial
Statement Areas Worksheet section of the AO - General
options document.

The inputted values automatically populate the same line items
in the Risk Report documents.

The name of this field can be changed in the Financial
Statement Areas Worksheet section of the AO - General
options document.



Column

Audit Response Columns

Audit Response Finalisation

Initial each assertion to indicate the
planned audit response is sufficient to
address the assessed level of risk

Annotate

W/P Ref

Risk Ref.

Note:

Description

If they Include Audit Response in FSA check box is
selected in the Financial Statement Areas Worksheet
section of the AO - General options document, the audit
response columns specified in the document are included in
the Financial Statement Areas Worksheet.

The audit response type for each column (for example, a check
box, a Yes-No response, or scoring from 1 to 5) is also defined
in the AO - General options document.

By default, there are four audit response columns included:

e A. Substantive procedures - basic

e B. Substantive procedures - extended (sampling, fraud,
significant risks, etc.)

o C. Substantive analytical procedures (proof in total, etc.)
e D. Tests of controls (operating effectiveness)

In the AO - General options document, you can rename any
of these audit response columns or create additional columns.

An input field in which the user can explain the audit risk
response to this area. In the work program for this financial
statement area, the text in this field appears in the Audit
Response Finalisation row of the Audit Response Table.

This field can be changed in the Financial Statement Areas
Worksheet section of the AO - General options document.

The data automatically populates the Detailed Audit Response
section in the associated work program.

Click to add a note, tickmark or reference annotation from the

- - 1 >R
CV toolbar. ( O e 7L
select Annotate - Annotate.

v ) or right-click and

Annotate to one or more relevant documents. Right-click and
select Insert New Reference. Select the appropriate
references to create a link to the related document.

This column displays a button when there are risks associated
to the material FSA line. Clicking the button will launch the risk
report document and take you to the risks for that financial
statement area.

o If a mapping or group number is deleted, it is automatically removed from the Financial Statement
Areas worksheet. Any document associated with this mapping or group number is marked for
deletion in the Assessment section of the Audit Optimiser Confirmation Report.



e The W/P Ref column should be populated with the appropriate audit work program document.

o If foreign exchanges rates have been defined in Working Papers' Working Trial Balance, these
rates are used in all balances displayed in the Financial Statement Areas Worksheet.

Procedure

5.5.1 Click Configure 4 to access the configure options area.
5.5.2 Modify the configure options to suit your firm. >>Quick Reference

Note: Ensure that Include zero amount is checked. Since the master template should not contain
any balances in the trial balance, this setting will ensure that all necessary groupings display.

5.5.3 7—=|Click Generate |, or from the Document menu, select Generate. The
Configure options area will close automatically after generation.

5.5.4 Once generated, columns such as Business Cycle and W/P ref. can be pre-generated. Click ©
to assign business cycles for each FSA. Right-click and select Insert New Reference to assign
each item to a work program reference.

Configure Options
Configure options enable you to customize the Financial Statement Areas Worksheet. These options are
organized into two groups:

o Refresh options, which are applied when the Financial Statement Areas Worksheet isrefreshed
or regenerated.

¢ Regenerate options, which are applied only when the Financial Statement Areas Worksheetis
regenerated.

To hide the Regenerate options and disable regeneration of the Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

[Pl
from within client files, click @' to lock the Regenerate options. To unlock the options after they have
been locked, click @|

Author options

Option Description
Allow columns headings  Select to enable the ability to edit column headings in the Financial statement
to be modified. areas worksheet.

Allow assurance types to  Select to enable the Assurance type drop-down and select between a
be modified. reasonable or limited assurance type.

Refresh options
Option Description

Sort by Col From the drop-down list, select the sorting order on the initial generation of the
report. Click the arrow to sort in either ascending or descending order.

Planning From the drop-down list, select the planning balance on which the Financial
statement areas worksheet is to be based. Select Current Year to use the
current year preliminary import or select Prior Year to use the prior year final
balance.



Option
Round To

Regenerate options
Option
Include zero amount

Grouping:

Include From
Include To:

Mask Level

Include Parent Numbers

Notes:

Description

From the drop-down list, select the rounding to use. Select 1's (the default) to
round to the nearest dollar, 1000's to round to thousands, or 1,000,000's to
round to millions.

The rounding selected from this drop-down list is used in the Financial
statement areas worksheet, the Risk Report, the Partner and Manager
Summary, and all work programs.

Note: Rounding difference may occur as the apply rounding relations feature
is not set.

Description

Use the check box to include line items with zero amounts in both planning
and current balances in the worksheet.

From the drop-down list, select the mapping / grouping used in the
engagement file. The default is by Leadsheet.

From the drop-down list, select the starting point of the grouping number.
From the drop-down list, select the ending point of the grouping number.

From the drop-down list, select the grouping mask level to generate. For
example, say a grouping uses three levels (e.g. XXX XXX.XXX), where the
first level represents the financial statement type (Balance Sheet), the second
level represents the financial statement line items (Cash and Cash
equivalents), and the third represents account details (Bank - foreign). You
would likely set the mask level at 2. If you are unsure of your full mapping
mask, double click the cell to open a dialog that displays the mask.

Select this check box if you want to display the parent numbers of the group
numbers specified by Mask Level. For example, suppose that Mask Level is
3, which means that group 140.101.1 is displayed. If Include Parent Numbers
is selected, parent groups 140 and 140.101 are also displayed.

¢ Leaving the Include From and Include To fields blank will generate all items.

¢ [f the worksheet is regenerated, all details entered related to each financial statement areaand

/l
assertion will be deleted. To only update the balances, users should use ¥ Refresh.

5.5.1 Business Cycles

At the top of the Financial Statement Areas Worksheet, business cycles can be added and deleted for
the master template. Business cycles represent the process that initiates, records, processes, and
approves transactions and entries that comprise account balances or disclosures.



Once created, the underlying business cycles should then be attached to each financial statement area in
the worksheet. You can also reference each business cycle to the relevant Control Matrix and
walkthrough documents. Business cycles are also used in the assessment of internal controls.

During the engagement, business cycles and financial statement areas are used when identifying risks
and controls. These properties allow the linkage of risks to controls and the assessment of internal
controls.

(

é‘: FSA. Financial statement areas worksheet (C

Document Areas Options  Help

7’_‘]%; Q- 0- @ = || O

Revenue, Receivables, Receipts ("RRR") - E]

To add a business cycle:

1. To open the Cycles area, click S

2. Click Add.

3. Type the new description for the cycle and an appropriate abbreviation.
4

Click OK. Tip: Ensure that the abbreviation given is unique — you will get a warning to selectan
alternative abbreviation if a duplicate abbreviation is used.

To delete a business cycle, select the cycle to be deleted and click Delete.

Procedure

1. From the drop-down menu, select the cycle to attach the document to.

2. Click - and select/deselect the relevant control matrix and walkthrough documents.

3. Click OK.
.’f F5A. Financial statement ara: feor bnd Cempcted] by
Docurnent Manager
Cocument Argas Optians _ Helg 1
A e I-T,.r ‘= ﬂ - 0O~ 8 = . :.r{l;.rt relevant Controd katrix and Walithrough documents.
= Conrtrod Dhesign
Finescsad Rpmiing (7R u € s Pervasive (entity level) contrals - Designyfimplemer
fdd Dnbeoke, H 540 Controd design/fimplementatian - Entity leved and ¢
g 548 Controd design/implementatian - Revenues, recehs
Thes form is used to identey significant accounts, inandal disdd € s Coréred designfimplemsentation - Purchases, payal i
ﬁmizﬁz"amﬂ"ﬂkfﬂ'ﬁf"ﬂw;T:.T.:ﬂr: LI 5= Control design/implemsentation - Payrod (Core) !
The relevant F4°s relabed to this doosment indwde: 194 300, I54) £ 580 Control designfimplementatian - Frandal repartn
Materiality worksheet document: 420 a [rmpd o of b Walkthroasgh Procedures
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5.5.2 Materiality Worksheet Documents

The Financial Statement Areas Worksheet (FSA) automatically links to the Materiality document included
with the CaseWare template. If you are using a template that has a customized materiality document
included, no further customizations are required.

If your firm chooses to use an alternative document for the materiality document, key items in your
custom materiality document should be saved to the CaseView database to ensure that the materiality
calculations will flow through to the appropriate documents.

When creating your materiality document, the cells for the various materiality items should be saved to
the CaseView database. When creating the cell, the Calculation Properties should be selected as an
"Input Cell” and "External Data Access”. For more information on Calculation Properties, see.

Use the external data area of the cell definition to define the parameters. In the External Data tab, the
data type should be set as "Form Cell Data (Short ID)".

For more information on the External Data Tab cell parameters, see.

If you have elected to use an alternative material worksheet document, use the drop-down list in the FSA
Worksheet to specify the materiality document that is used in your firm.

Procedure
5.5.2.10pen the FSA. Financial statement areas worksheet document.

5.5.2.2 Within the document, modify the materiality worksheet document by clicking on the
dropdown box that appears beside the text 420.

5.5.2.3 Find the alternative materiality document to use and click to select. This will
changethe materiality document from 420 to your materiality document.

The key materiality items that must be defined in any custom materiality document and saved to the
CaseView database are as follows:

Cell Description Group Form Identifier
Preliminary overall materiality WPG MATERIAL VALUE
Final overall materiality WPG MATERIAL FINAL
Performance materiality (PY) WPG PMATERIAL PVALUE
Performance materiality (AY) WPG PMATERIAL VALUE
Performance materiality (Final) WPG PMATERIAL FINAL
Trivial materiality WPG TRIVIAL VALUE

Materiality document value WPG MATERIAL MATDOC



6 RISKS, CONTROLS AND REPORTABLE ITEMS

6.1 Introduction

The risk-based audit approach requires that engagement teams identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement in financial statements. Auditors must also obtain an understanding of controls and the
control environment relevant to the audit and determine whether these controls prevent or mitigate
assessed risks. Audit provides auditors with the ability to create risks and manage them in risk reports as
well as the ability to easily record controls, associate them to identified risks, and indicate whether the
identified risks have been addressed. In addition, Audit’s reportable item feature allows for the
accumulation of management automatic reporting of reportable items.

In this section, we will examine how the firm can:
6.1.1 Define the properties and options for how engagement teams view and work with risks.
6.1.2 Create predefined common risks for all engagement files.
6.1.3 Link procedures to risks.
6.1.4 Import risks into the template.
6.1.5 Create risk reports and define risk report views.
6.1.6 Define the properties and options for how engagement teams view and work with controls.
6.1.7 Create predefined common controls for all engagement files.
6.1.8 Import controls into the template.
6.1.9 Create Control Matrix documents.

6.1.10 Define the properties and options for how engagement teams view and work with
reportable items.

6.1.11 Create predefined common reportable items for all engagement files.

6.1.12 Create a management letter that uses reportable items.

6.2 Risks

As part of the audit process, risks must be identified for your client engagements, and your audit must be
designed to address these risks.

As a Firm Author, common risks can be pre-defined in the master template to be used and modified by
the engagement team in each client file. Risks can also be linked to specific audit procedures to indicate
where the risk has been specifically addressed. Note: all risks identified are accumulated in the Risk
Reports.

Pre-defined risks provide your engagement teams with a library of risks to help them in identifying all
relevant risks to the engagement. As well, some of the fields can be completed in advance and linked to
common procedures, providing further time savings at the engagement level. As a best practice, you may
wish to add an identifier to the pre-defined risks in the template to differentiate them from risks identified
during the engagement.



Risks appear in the following areas:
6.2.1 In the Risk Report document. Filters may exclude risks.

6.2.2 In the Risks Addressed or Risks Identified mini risk report at the top of work program
and checklist documents. The Risks Addressed report displays risks if the document
has been marked in the Addressed risk field or the risk is Entity level. The Risks
Identified report displays risks if the document has been marked as the Source.

6.2.3 In the Risks Addressed or Risks Identified mini risk report at the top of the Financial
Statement Areas worksheet. The Risks Addressed report displays Entity level risks. The
Risks Identified report displays risks if the worksheet has been marked as the Source.

6.2.4 In the Control dialog as risks addressed, if either the financial statement area or business
cycle affected in the risk match with what is selected in the control.

6.2.5 Inthe Control Matrix as the risk factors. Filters may exclude risks.

6.2.2 Adding a Risk

Prerequisites
Before adding risks, ensure Risks are enabled in the AO - General options. Also, some risks options are
enabled and disabled by default. For more information, see "Defining Risk Options" on page 43.

Procedures

1. From within the applicable document, or from the Working Papers toolbar, click the Risk icon “
2. Complete the fields in the New Risks dialog.

3. You can click Apply to save changes already completed in the dialog.

4

. When the information is complete, click OK.



Risk Dialog

Risk

New risk name * < 3

[,

Control ¢ Risk Identification
Edit association New risk name Identifier
Reportable ltem & New risk description
Edit association What Can Go Wrong
Source/ Reference FSA.

Financial Statement Areas
Business Cycles Affected

Assessment
Significant Risk Indicators
Procedures other than Substantive O

Likelihood to occur | v
Monetary Impact [ v]
Inherent Risk [ V|
Control Risk [ v]
Potential RMM [ V|
Residual Risk [ v]
Overall Risk [ V|
Significant Risk

Roll forward

Risk Response

Management Response

Risk treatment/mitigation | v|
Audit Response

Audit has properly addressed this risk | v|
Addressed

Associations

Control & Reportable Item &

OK Apply Cancel Help



Section Instructions

Risk Doormat _ _ E o
Click the doormat icon ( ) to open the Risk Doormat menu. The menu lists risks,

Menu controls and reportable items that have been defined. You can create, delete and edit
a risk, controls or reportable items from this menu.
RISKS CONTROLS REPORTABLE ITEMS
Create New (item) Create Mew (item) Create Mew (item)
SInventory clerk * Cut-off procedures Reportable ltem test
“ Poor control *~ Credit manager ap... Establish credit ...
Revenue recognition Accounts over 90 .. Develop accounts ...
* Receipts not depo... * Cheques received
*® Use of related party - Sales and a/r report
= Salesman's bonus Aged a/r listing
Title Type a description in the New risk name field.
Navigation Click the arrows to display the previous and next risk. The order in which risks are
Buttons displayed is specified in the risks drop-down. This field is visible only if you have

accessed this dialog from within a risk report.



Section

Risk Identification

Instructions
New risk name
Type a short description of the identified risk.
Identifier

The identifier field is automatically populated with the user ID and a sequential
number so that each risks, controls and reportable items are unique. This field can be
enabled in the AO - General Options in the master template.

New risk description

Type a detailed description of the risk.
What Can Go Wrong

Type a description of the possible impact.
Source/Reference

The Source/Reference field is automatically populated when creating the risk from
within a document.

Financial Statement Areas

Click to display a list of Entity level risks and material financial statements areas
(FSAs). From the dialog, select one or more items that affect the identified risk. Once
the relevant items have been selected, check off the related assertions within the
Financial Statement Areas Affected area. As the material FSAs and assertions
populate from the Financial Statement Areas worksheet, the worksheet must be
generated before they can be selected.

Note: Any assertions that are not relevant to the FSA will be greyed-out.

Business Cycles Affected

Click to display a list of affected business cycles associated with the risk. The list in
business cycles is defined in the Financial Statement Areas worksheet.

Note: If an FSA item in the Financial Statement Areas worksheet is already
associated with a business cycle through the Financial statement areas worksheet,
this area will be automatically filled out with the selection of Financial Statement
Areas Affected.

New! Entities

In a consolidated file, select the applicable entity the risk relates to. This field can be
enabled in the AO - General Options in the master template.



Section

Assessment

Instructions
Significant Risk Indicators
Click to display a list of significant risk indicators.
Procedures other than Substantive
Select to indicate if the risk requires procedures other than substantive.
Test of Controls
Select to indicate if the risk requires test of controls.
Likelihood to occur
Select the likelihood of the risk to occur from a range of 1 (low) to 5 (high).
Monetary Impact
Select the monetary impact of the risk from a range of 1 (low) to 5 (high).
Inherent Risk
Select to rank the inherent risk as high, medium or low.
Control Risk

Select to rank the control risk as high, medium or low. In AO — General options, you
can also change the scoring system for this assessment so that you can rank it as
either significant, medium, or low.

Potential RMM

Select to rank the potential RMM as high, medium or low.

Residual Risk

Select to rank the residual risk as high, medium or low.

RMM

Select to rank the RMM as high, medium or low.

Significant risk

This is automatically selected when a significant risk indicator is added to the risk.
Roll forward

Select to include the risk in the next year's file. This is automatically selected for new
risks.



Section

Risk response

Instructions

Management Response

Type the details of any response from management and any controls they have
implemented to deal with the identified risk.

Risk treatment/mitigation
Conclude whether the risk has been mitigated by these controls.
Audit Response

Type the details of the detailed audit response that will respond to the identified risks
and provide the evidence necessary to support the audit opinion. The detailed audit
response would include the type of test that would be planned: test of control, specific
procedure, substantive analytical procedure, or substantive sampling.

Audit has properly addressed this risk
Conclude whether the risk has been addressed by the audit response.
Addressed

The Addressed field is automatically populated when an item is selected from the
Financial Statement Area and that item has been linked to a document in the
Financial Statement Area worksheet.



Section Instructions
Associations Control

Click beside Control, to add controls to the risk. The following choices appear:

e Create New (item) - opens the New control dialog to create a new control

¢ Import from RiskSpace - adds controls from the CaseWare Working Papers
RiskSpace.

¢ Import from File - imports controls from a template or other source file, using the
import controls dialog.

e Edit Association - uses an existing control. A dialog appears that lists the
controls that have already been added to this client file. From the dialog, select
one or more controls to be associated with this risk.

This option is available only if you have enabled controls in the AO - General
Options document.

Reportable Item

Click beside Reportable ltem, to add reportable items to the risk. The following
choices appear:
e Create New (item) - opens the New reportable item dialog to create anew
control

¢ Import from RiskSpace - adds reportable items from the CaseWare
Working Papers RiskSpace.

e Import from File - imports reportable items from a template or other sourcefile,
using the import controls dialog.

o Edit Association - uses reportable items. A dialog appears that lists the
reportable items that have already been added to this client file. From the dialog,
select one or more reportable items to be associated with this risk.

This option is available only if you have enabled reportable items in the AO -
General Options document.

Importing individual risks
As the firm author, you can import risks from any other template or from any existing client file.
To import risks from another template or file:
5. Open any work program, checklist, or document that contains the New Risk 0 v drop-down.

6. From the New Risk drop-down, select Import Risks.

7. To import risks from a template, select the Templates radio button and select a template fromthe
drop-down. To import risks from a file, select the Other Source Files radio button and click

Browse.



Import Risks [

Risks may be imported from either template or client files. Click help for more details.

Templates:
@ Audit International

4

Other Source Files:

Browse

Select Risks

Q

Revenue, Receivables, Receipts (12 rizis
Purchases, Payables, Payments (5 rizis
Payroll (9 risks

Financial Reporting (7.7 rizis

4 L 3

OK H Cancel H Help

. 4

8. If you have clicked Browse to select a source file, use the file locator window to select thefile
that you want to import risks from. Click Open.

9. The Import Risks dialog now lists all the risks in the file that you have opened, organized by
business cycle. Select the check box next to a business cycle folder to import all risks for that
business cycle or select the check box for a risk to import it. You can import as many risks as
you like.

Note: Risks that already exist in your new client file are displayed in gray and in italics and
cannot be re-imported.

10.Click OK.

11.The New Risk dialog appears, enabling you to edit the risks that you have imported (or any risk
that you have identified). To edit a specific risk, select it from the drop-down list at the bottom of
the dialog.

Note:

o If arisk that is displayed in the Import Risks dialog is not associated with a business cycle, itis
contained in a folder named Other.

¢ [f the imported risk links to one or more material financial statement areas or Entity level risk
categories in the source location, the links are preserved, provided the financial statementareas
or Entity level risk categories exist in the client file or template into which the risk is being
imported.

¢ [f the imported risk links to one or more Significant Risk Indicators in the source location, the links
are preserved, provided the Significant Risk Indicators exist and the feature is enabled in the
destination file.



Importing risks from CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace

CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace is an online community that provides free content to help you
identify risks. You can import risks from CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace into your template.

To import risks from CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace:

12.0pen any work program, checklist, or document that contains the New Risk o M drop-down.

13.From the New Risk drop-down, select CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace. The
CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace Risks dialog appears, in which you can select risks

CaseWare® RiskSpace Risks [&J

Select CaseWare® RiskSpace Risks to import.

Q

Entity Level (=< rizi:

Financial tatement Preparation (22 rize:
General Information Technology (26 rizis
Revenues/Receipts/Receivables (22 rizis
Expenses/Purchases/Payables (22 rizis

Payroll (23 risks

oK || Cancel || Help

L -

to import.
14. Select the check box next to a folder to import all the risks that it contains.

15. To import individual risks from a folder, expand the folder and select the check box next tothe
risk to be imported.

16.When you have finished selecting risks to import, click OK.

17.The New Risk dialog appears, enabling you to edit the risks that you have imported. To edita
specific risk, select it from the drop-down list at the bottom of the dialog. You canalso click <)
orl> | to move to the previous or next risk to be edited.

18.Click OK to import the risks into your template.

Linking Procedures to Risk

Specific procedures in work programs and checklists can be linked to risks to document how the risk was
addressed in the audit. You must be in the appropriate work program or checklist document to link
procedures, and the document must be included in the Addressed field in the Risk dialog. Once linked,
risks appear beside the linked procedures within work program or checklist documents. As well, the linked
procedures appear with the corresponding risks in the Risk Report under the Audit Response column.



You can link procedures from the Risk dialog or at the procedure level within the work program or
checklist document.

Note: Once a procedure and a risk are linked, this link is maintained even if the risk is removed from the
file and re-inserted.
Link audit procedures from the mini risk report

19. Open the work program or checklist document.

20. Insert the mini risk report at the top of the work program or checklist if it is not already inserted.
To insert the risk report, select Risk Report from the Areas menu.

21.Click on a risk appearing in the mini risk report at the top of the Revenues - Audit Procedures
document. The Link procedures menu button will be enabled.
|
22.Click the Link procedures menu button Al to launch the Procedures dialog.

23.Mark the procedures by selecting the relevant checkboxes and click OK.

€] Procedures L |
[ Select the following precedures to link to this T] |

=23 A. SUBSTAMTIVE PROCEDURES - BASIC =
=) 2 Mone = Cancel J
I ] Analytical proceduies
=[] Pelicies

[ a. Purchase authornzation....

[J b. Capitalization....

O c . Deprecistion/amortization....

O d . Asset retirernent obligations....

[ =. Spare parts, major overhauls or ins...
=[O Schedule

[ a. Ensure the balances agree to the a<...

[] b . Test the arithmetical accuracy of t...

- Baepbedpbs this davieniptinm fnomnd]

| Preview content

Analytical procedumns CEA
Dewedon and dooument expecintions for the pefiod-end property. plant a0

equipment levels based oo information obiained fom undentanding te

enlity:

ne

Igensify sagnificant Changes of tends o the!

= Propertye plafl 88 equipment compdied 1o the peewous perad {owraly

= Coemposition (oost, additions, disposais, refiremants, eic.) of property;

plant and equipmant compased fo the presious period

» Defepcikion amortzilon meenie LOMEIspd oo [ prasces penod

= Addinens dufing the cirod comodred 10 I BOCrOVE] CRCE Badiot fif x

4
il
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Once a procedure is selected, the Addressed reference field in the risk dialog will automatically
reference the current work program or checklist if it has not already been manually selected.



Risk Response

Management Response
Risk treatment/mitigation
Audit Response

Audit has properly addressed this risk

<] [X]

Addressed

Associations

Control ¢

Reportable Item &

Note: Once a procedure and a risk are linked, this link is maintained even if the risk is removed from the

file and re-inserted.

To link risks from the procedure within the work program or checklist document:

1. Open the work program or checklist.
2.

Insert the mini risk report at the top of the work program or checklist if it is not already inserted.
To insert the risk report, select Risk Report from the Areas menu.

W
3. Place the cursor on the procedure to link the risks to and click ! (Link Risks to A Procedure)

on the top button bar.

4. Select the risks applicable for the procedure. Once done, click OK.

r
2] Risks
[ Select the risks to link to this procedure:

=] Property plant p - risk]

] Preview content

Proger Dar eQup - M CuRrEEe

|‘_||E|: E .."

i Cancel |

Note: Once a procedure and a risk are linked, this link is maintained even if the risk is removed from the

file and re-inserted.



Risk Report

As you accumulate risks, you can view, edit or copy them in the Risk Report. This report summarizes
risks in various views and includes procedure responses.

In the Risk Report, shading is used to highlight risks that are more severe. The colors used, in order from
least severe to most severe: white (least severe), grey, violet, magenta, scarlet, bright red (most severe).

Different Views can be created and saved by selecting various Filters, applying a Layout, adding and
removing columns, and changing column widths.

Document  Report  Options  Help

0-0- 0 | a@E-MAac/[F o 8RBl @

2 View: Training View - [ Default |
Categories: All - Potential RMM: All -
Date ldentified: All - Business Cycles: All -
Risk Determination: All - Materiality: All -
Assertions: All -

To add or remove columns for display, right-click the risk report and check or uncheck the column name.

To resize the columns in the Risk Report Table, click the ruler button ju. Click on the worksheetheading
that you wish to resize, then drag the bars on the ruler.

Once Filters and Layouts have been applied, the View can be saved and become available from a drop-
down list. Firms can define custom views and use the drop-down to save these views. Auditors can then
easily view risk reports and include them in the documentation of risk analysis in their engagement files.

Document  Report  Options  Help

0-0- 0| aE- WKAaac/[Flol BB

[ % View: Training View -
Defautview —___gn
Categories: Erfm VEEW1 Potentia
Date Identified: an.“ :Jlew.Z = Business
raining View
Risk Determination: | pisk Identification Material
Assertions: Fraud Risk
Business Risk
[ 1| Risk Assessment (Work Programs) - A B

Creating and Modifying Risk Reports
Customized risk report views created in one risk report will be available to all other risk reports.

Note:

e The firm can decide to include columns for Assets, Liabilities and Income Statement in the
General Risk Options dialog. The Risk Report Assertion Details option, under Available
Properties, is deselected by default, meaning only the assertions will be displayed in the Risk
Report (no assets, liabilities or income statement). To display these columns in the Risk Report
simply select the option. However, if the firm does not use ratio class only one columnassertion
will appear in the risk report.



¢ All columns are included in the risk report in the default view that may exceed a page. Some
suggested print views are available from the default menu. You can edit either of these print
views or create a new view and define the columns you wish to print on each page.

o Utilize CaseView's split screen function to keep headings stationary as you scroll. On the
Windows menu, select Split Vertically or Split Horizontally. Drag the dotted line to the desired
split location. For more information, refer to CaseView's Help.

To add customized introduction and conclusion text to a risk report:
24 .Open the risk report.
25.Click on the input area below the introduction guidance area and type the introduction text.
26. Click on the input area below the conclusion guidance area and type the conclusion text.

27.1f these sections are not needed, from the Options menu, unselect Display Custom
Introduction and Conclusion to hide the section.

6.3 Controls

As firm author, common controls can be predefined in the master template to be used and modified by
the engagement team in each client file. Controls can be added from any template-specific document,
including work programs and checklists. Each control can also be associated to identified risks as part of
determining whether risks have been mitigated or prevented.

6.3.2 Adding a Control

Prerequisites

Before adding controls, ensure Controls are enabled in the AO - General options. Also, some risks
options are enabled and disabled by default. For more information, see "Defining Controls Options" on
page 43.

Procedures
6.3.2.1 From within the applicable document, or from the CaseWare toolbar, click the Control icon ]
6.3.2.2 Complete the fields in the New Control dialog.

6.3.2.3 You can click Apply to save changes already completed in the dialog without closing it.

6.3.2.4 When the information is complete, click OK.



6.3.3 Controls Dialog

Note: Some options in the dialog may not be available as they are disabled by your firmauthor.

= Control

Risk & “ Control Documentation ~
Edit association New control name Identifier

Reportable ltem & New control description
Edit association Financial Statement Areas

Business Cycles Affected

Attributes

Maturity Level [ v]
Indirect Control [ v]
Manual / Automated [ v
Frequency of Control [ v
Key Control [ v]
Evaluate Control Environment

Supporting Working Papers

Control Design [ v]
Evaluation Results [ v]
Changed Since Previous Evaluation | v|
Roll forward

Tests of Control

Test Control [ v]
Supporting Working Papers

Control Is Effective | vl

Associations

Risk & Reportable [tem &

oK Apply Cancel Help



Section

Control
Doormat
Menu

Title

Navigation
Buttons

Control Docu
mentation

Instructions

Click the doormat icon (E) to open the Control Doormat menu. The menu lists risks,
controls and reportable items that have been defined. You can create, delete and edit a
risk, controls or reportable items from this menu.

RISKS CONTROLS REPORTABLE ITEMS
Create Mew (item) Create MNew (item) Create Mew (item)

Slnventory clerk * Cut-off procedures Reportable ltem test

7 Poor control *~ Credit manager ap... Establish credit ...
Revenue recognition Accounts over 90 ... Develop accounts ...

< Receipts not depo... * Cheques received

*3 Use of related party < Sales and a/r report
# Salesman's bonus Aged a/r listing

Type a description entered in the New control name field.
Click the arrows to display the previous and next controls.

New control name

Type a short description of the identified control.
New control description

Type the detailed description of the control.
Identifier

The identifier field is automatically populated with the user ID and a sequential number so
that each risks, controls and reportable items are unique. This field can be enabled in the
AO - General Options in the master template.

Financial Statement Areas

Click to display a list of entity level risks and material financial statements areas (FSAs).
From the dialog that appears, select one or more items that affect the identified risk. Once
the relevant items have been selected, check off the related assertions within the Financial
Statement Areas Affected area. As the material FSAs and assertions populate from the
Financial Statement Areas worksheet, the worksheet must be generated before they can
be selected.

Note: The master template lists all the FSAs, whereas the engagement client file lists
only the material FSAs.

Business Cycles Affected

Click to display a list of affected business cycles associated with the risk. The list in
business cycles is defined in the Financial Statement Areas worksheet. Note: If an FSA
item in the Financial Statement Areas worksheet is already associated with a business
cycle through the Financial statement areas worksheet, this area will be automatically filled
out with the selection of Financial Statement Areas Affected.



Section

Attributes

Evaluate
Control
Environment

Test of
controls

Instructions

Maturity Level

Select to rank the maturity level of the control from a range of 1 (low) to 5 (high).
Indirect Control

Select to indicate whether the control is dependent upon other controls.

Manual / Automatic

Select to indicate whether the control is a manual or an automatic control.
Frequency of control

Select to indicate how frequent the control is being applied.

Key control

Select to indicate whether the control provides reasonable assurance that material errors
will be prevented or detected in a timely manner.

Supporting Working Papers

Click to open a listing of documents in the Document Manager. In this dialog, select
applicable supporting documents from Working Papers.

Control Design

Select to indicate whether the control design is satisfactory or unsatisfactory.
Evaluation Results

Select to Indicate whether the control environment was satisfactory or unsatisfactory.
Changed Since Previous Evaluation

Select to indicate whether the control is identical with the previous year or has been
changed.

Roll forward

Select to include the control in next year's file. This is selected by default for all new
controls.

Test Control

Select to indicate if a control is to be tested or in which period it was last tested. Tests of
control are used to gather evidence of the operational effectiveness of internal control
procedures. It may be appropriate to use audit evidence about the operating effectiveness
of controls obtained in previous audits.

Supporting Working Papers

Click to open a listing of documents in the Document Manager. In this dialog, select
applicable supporting documents from Working Papers.

Control is Effective

Select to indicate whether the control is effective, not effective or not tested.



Section Instructions

Associations Risk

Click beside Risk, to add risk to the control. The following choices appear:

e Create New (item) - opens the New risk dialog to create a new risk
¢ Import from RiskSpace - adds risks from the CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace.

e Import from File - imports risks from a template or other source file, using the import
controls dialog.

o Edit Association - uses an existing risk. A dialog appears that lists the controls that
have already been added to this client file. From the dialog, select one or more
controls to be associated with this risk.

Reportable Item

Click beside Reportable Item, to add reportable items to the risk. The following choices
appear:
e Create New (item) - opens the New reportable item dialog to create a new control

¢ Import from RiskSpace - adds reportable items from the CaseWare Working Papers
RiskSpace.

¢ Import from File - imports reportable items from a template or other source file, using
the import controls dialog.

o Edit Association - uses reportable items. A dialog appears that lists the reportable
items that have already been added to this client file. From the dialog, select oneor
more reportable items to be associated with this risk.

This option is available only if you have enabled reportable items in the AO - General
Options document.

6.3.4 Importing individual controls
As the firm author, you can import controls from any other template or from any existing client file.

To import controls from another template or file:

6.3.4.1 Open any work program, checklist, or document that contains the New Control Q -
drop- down.

6.3.4.2 From the New Control drop-down, select Import Controls.



6.3.4.3 To import controls from a template, select the Templates radio button and select a
template from the drop-down. To import controls from a file, select the Other Source Files radio
button and click Browse.

Impaort Controls [&J

Controls may be imported from either template or client files. Click help for more details.

Templates:
@ Audit International -

Other Source Files:

Browse

Select Controls

Revenue, Receivables, Receipts (12 conrrals
Purchases, Payables, Payments (5 conools
Payroll (9 contrals
Financial Reporting (22 conerals
Fi i 3

QK || Cancel || Help

L™

6.3.4.4 If you have clicked Browse to select a source file, use the file locator window to select
thefile that you want to import controls from. Click Open.

6.3.4.5 The Import Controls dialog now lists all the controls in the file that you have opened,
organized by business cycle. Select the check box next to a business cycle folder to import all
controls for that business cycle or select the check box for a control to import it. You can import
as many controls as you like.

Note: Controls that already exist in your new client file are displayed in gray and in italics and
cannot be re-imported.

6.3.4.6 Click OK.

6.3.4.7 The New Control dialog appears, enabling you to edit the controls that you have imported.
Toedit a specific control, select it from the drop-down list at the bottom of the dialog.

Note:

¢ [f a control that is displayed in the Import Controls dialog is not associated with a businesscycle,
it is contained in a folder named Other.

¢ [f the imported control links to one or more material financial statement areas or Entity level risk
categories in the source location, the links are preserved, provided the financial statementareas



or Entity level risk categories exist in the client file or template into which the control is being
imported.

CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace is an online community that provides free content to help you
identify controls. You can import controls from CaseWare RiskSpace into your template.

To import controls from CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace:

1. Open any work program, checklist, or document that contains the New Control o drop-down.

2. From the New Control drop-down, select CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace. The
CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace Controls dialog appears, in which you can select

|=| CaseWare® RiskSpace Controls Iﬁ
Select CaseWare® RiskSpace Controls to import.
Q
» [T Hiring & Training (26 risks -

; |:| Policies and Documentation (54 rizis
: DAccess and security (24 risis

: DApprnvals 37 risks

» O] Review (52 risks

; |:| Document Controls (25 rizis

: |:| Exception Reporting (22 rizis

4 |:| Segregation of Duties (26 risis

» [7] system Contrals (25 risis

: |:| Reconciliations (22 rizis

. |:| Payments /& risis

» [C] Budgets (12 risks

» [T Reports (12 rizks

: Dlmplementatinn of controls (25 rizes
. |:| Service Providers (2 risis

» [T] Banking (2 rises

» [ 1T General 7

m

: |:| Governance (12 rizks
» [O7] Risk (10 risis e

» [T Frwirnnment 74 rizis
1 | 1] 3

ok || cancel || Help

controls to import.
3. Select the check box next to a folder to import all the controls that it contains.



4. To import individual controls from a folder, expand the folder and select the check box next tothe
control to be imported.

5. When you have finished selecting controls to import, click OK.

6. The New control dialog appears, enabling you to edit the controls that you have imported. To
edit a specific control, select it from the drop-down list at the bottom of the dialog. You canalso

click e or e to move to the previous or next control to be edited.

7. Click OK to import the controls into your template.

6.3.5 Control Matrix

As controls accumulate in an engagement, users can view, edit or copy controls in the Control Matrix.
The Control Matrix provides a quick and useful view, by business cycle or Financial Statement area, of
the controls and the associated risks that are prevented or detected.

Depending on your jurisdiction, you master template may include several predefined Control Matrix
documents. You can edit these documents or create additional Control Matrix documents to view controls
in a variety of combinations.

The bottom row of the Control Matrix lists, for each risk factor, whether the control procedures mitigate
the risk. Possible values are Yes, Some, and No. If the Control Matrix is displayed in vertical
presentation, these are abbreviated to Y, S, and N. The engagement team makes this selection within
each risk.

Year End: Completed by  Reviewed by

December 31, 2013

Document  Options  Help
0- 0- 0|4 |F |0/ DB R @G

Business Cycles: All -

Control matrix reports accumulates by business cycles, the relationship between controls and their associated risk. Key attributes relating to the testing of the controls are included ir
the report

1

1

This is an introduction section; you can enter a customized introduction, and also change the paragraph styles.

To showrhide this section, go to: "Options = Display Custom Introduction and Conclusion™

1

Control Transfer to
Control Implementation Tests of

Implementation Evaluation Key Control Control is | Reportable

Control procedures | Evaluation Results Control | Test Control| Worksheet| Effective Item

Foreign exchange error
Faulty or invalid data

Receipts wrong period

Payroll wrong account
Fictitious sales

®
2
i}
&
w
[id

1 Match inveices to shipping S Yes Yes Yes P&D

-

Do the control procedures mitigate the risk factors? s Y s N

6.3.6 Control Matrix Customization
Firm authors can add customized introduction and conclusion text to each control matrix.

To customize the introduction and conclusion:

6.3.6.1 In the document manager, find the applicable Control matrix document you want to
customize and open it.

6.3.6.2 Click in the input area below the introduction guidance text and type your introduction.

6.3.6.3 Click in the input area below the conclusion guidance text and type your conclusion.



6.3.6.4 If the custom introduction and conclusion are not needed, from the Options menu, unselect
Display Custom Introduction and Conclusion. This will hide the introduction and conclusion.

Note: The engagement team can choose to display or hide the introduction and conclusion.

To resize the columns in the Control Matrix table:

1. Click the ruler button j‘m.
2. Click anywhere in the control matrix table.

3. Drag the bars on the ruler.

6.3 Reportable Items

As part of the client engagement process, the engagement team may identify issues or items that require
reporting to management or other parties charged with governance. 's Reportable ltem feature allows for
the accumulation, management and automatic reporting of reportable items.

Record reportable items as they are identified throughout the engagement process by clicking 4 in any
work program or checklist document, and from other selected forms. This displays the New reportable
item dialog, which enables you to select the applicable reportable item attributes, add recommendations,
and link each item to specific letter types. If you do not need reportable items for your client files, youcan
disable them in the AO - General Options document.

Reportable items identified throughout the engagement can be accumulated in the Management Letter
Report. From within the Management Letter Report, reportable items can be created, copied, and edited.

Management letters can be created that automatically link and generate with the appropriate reportable
items.

6.3.7 New Reportable Item Dialog

Note: Some options in the dialog may not available as they are disabled by your firmauthor.



Risk &
Edit association

Control
Edit association

<<

Reportable ltem

Reportable Item
New reportable item name
Observation/Weakness
Weakness
Other reportable item
Source
Addressed
Status

Recommendation and Response

New reportable item name * #
Management Response

Reason

Roll forward

ldentifier

include in the following letters:

] ¥ [

0y
0y
0y

Letter Structure
Year ldentified
Classification
Rating

Grouping

Current Year
| v

| v

| v]

Associations

Risk ¢

(0] 4 Apply

Confrol &

Cancel Help

Section/Buttons

Reportable ltem Doormat
Menu

Title

Navigation Buttons

Description

Click E to open the Reportable Item Doormat menu. The menu lists
risks, controls and reportable items that have been defined. You can
create, delete and edit a risk, controls or reportable items from this menu.

Displays the description entered in the New reportable item name field.

Display the previous and next reportable item. The order in which risks are
displayed is specified in the risks drop-down. This field is visible only ifyou
have accessed this dialog from within a risk report.



Section/Buttons

Reportable Iltem

Description
New reportable item name

Type a short description of the reportable item. This short description
appears in the document 360. - Management letter report and by the letters
linked to specific reportable items.

Observation/Weakness

Type a description for the observation or weakness for which the reportable
item has been created.

Identifier
Type an alphanumeric identifier.
Weakness

Type an additional description for the weakness for which the reportable
item has been created.

Another reportable item

Select if the reportable item is not a Current Finding or a Previous Finding.
When this check box is selected, the Associated Controls, Associated
Risks and Add Recommendation fields are hidden.

Source

Click to open a link to the original source document where the reportable
item was identified in the Document Manager dialog. The source/reference
is automatically populated when adding a reportable item inside a
document. Note: You can link a specific procedure to a reportable item by

clicking near the work program.
Addressed

Click to add a reference link to where the audit work was completed to
address the reportable item.

Status

Select the status of the reportable item to assist in tracking the reportable
item.



Section/Buttons Description
Recommendation and Add Recommendation
Response .
Click L4 beside the reportable item name, to add recommendations. When
you click button the following choices appear:
o Create New (item) - opens the New Recommendation dialog and
create a new recommendation

e Import from RiskSpace - adds a recommendation from the
CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace Management
Letter Points dialog

e Import from File - - imports risks from a template or other source file,
using the Import Reportable Items dialog.

o Edit Recommendation - edits an existing recommendation. A dialog
appears that lists the recommendations that have already been added
to this client file, select a recommendation to edit and click OK.

When you have selected the recommendations to add to the reportable
item, you can then select the letters that are to contain the reportable item
and the recommendations.

Management Response

Type the details of any response from management and any controls that
have been implemented with respect to the reportable item.

Reason
Type the reason for choosing this response for the reportable item.
Roll forward

Select to include the reportable item in next year's file. This is selected by
default.

Letter Structure Year Identified Select from current or prior year in which the reportable
item was identified.

Classification

Select the grouping to use. This can be left blank or can be any defined
business cycle.

Rating

Select the rating for this reportable item. The firm author specifies the list of
available ratings.

Grouping

Select the grouping to use. This can be left blank or can be any defined
business cycle.



Section/Buttons Description

Associations Risks

Click beside Risk, to add risk to the control. The following choices
appear:
o Create New (item) - opens the New risk dialog to create a new risk

e Import from RiskSpace - adds risks from the CaseWare Working
Papers RiskSpace.

e Import from File - imports risks from a template or other source file,
using the import controls dialog.

o Edit Association - uses an existing risk. A dialog appears that lists the
controls that have already been added to this client file. From the
dialog, select one or more controls to be associated with this risk.

Controls

Click beside Control, to add controls to the risk. The following choices
appear:

e Create New (item) - opens the New control dialog to create anew
control

e Import from RiskSpace - adds controls from the CaseWare
Working Papers RiskSpace.

e Import from File - imports controls from a template or other source
file, using the import controls dialog.

o Edit Association - uses an existing control. A dialog appears thatlists
the controls that have already been added to this client file. From the
dialog, select one or more controls to be associated with this risk.

6.3.8 Management Letter Report
The management and presentation of audit findings can be organized into a collection of reportable
items. The Management Letter Report document displays these findings in an easy-to-view format.

You can use the Management Letter Report to keep track of what findings are to be published to various
types of letters, or to keep track of other significant issues. By default, the letters that are tracked are the
management letter and the report for those charged with governance. The list of letters to be tracked can
be added to or changed in the AO - General options document.

As the Firm Author, you can add reportable item letters (such as a management letter) populated with
each reportable item type in the master template, to be used and modified by the engagement teamin
each client file, or you can let the engagement team create their own.
To create a new reportable item letter:
6.3.8.1 From the Document Manager, open the New Master Documents folder.
6.3.8.2 Right-click the MGTLETTER Sample management letter document and select
Copy. Note: Only this document can be used with reportable items.



6.3.8.3 Right-click the location in the Document Manager for the new management letter and select
Paste.

6.3.8.4 Right-click the new document and select Properties.

6.3.8.5 Change the document Number and Name and click OK.

6.3.8.6 Open the new document and click the Configure( L4 )icon.

6.3.8.7 Select applicable options and areas to display for your letter.

These letter types are defined in the General Reportable Iltem options.

.
6.3.8.8 Click the Refresh button ® to populate the letter with the specified settings and for pre-
defined reportable items.

Note: Selecting Refresh will overwrite any changes to reportable items that have been modified.
Any changes to the text of reportable items must be made to the reportable item by selecting
each item from within the letter or from the 360. Management letter report Significant
Deficiencies/Material Weakness/Other Deficiency Reports.

Each letter has the following properties that the author can define:

Structure: ] Additional areas:

e
"
|

Changes are applied upon refreshing. Choose sections to be shown.

Letter Type Management letter report - Cover Page [
Ordering Table of Contents O
Classification Summary of Detailed Audit Findings [

Grouping Display Reportable Item Headings

Rating Display Mote Mumber in Headings

O

Property

Structure

Letter Type

Ordering

Additional Areas

Cover Page
Table of Contents

Summary of Detailed
Audit Findings

Display Reportable
Item Headings

Display Reportable Item Identifiers

Description

™
Click 24 to lock configuration structure settings to prevent other authors from
performing modifications.

Select an applicable letter type. Available types include: Management Letter,
Report for those charged with governance, Internal audit.

Click an option and then the up and down arrows to change the ordering
sequence.

™
Click = to lock areas settings to prevent other authors from performing
modifications.

Select to add a cover page to the Management Letter.
Select to add a table of contents to the Management Letter.

Select to add a summary of detailed audit findings section to the Management
Letter

Select to display reportable item headings that are selected to display in the
Management Letter.



Property Description

Display Note Number  Select to display note number references in reportable items headings.

in Headings

Display Reportable Select to display reportable item identifiers that are selected to display in the
Item Identifiers Management Letter.

Note: When note number headings are skipped or not displayed, the tabs in the Management Letter will
automatically adjust its alignment.



7 OPTIMISER

7.1 Introduction

The Optimiser enables the engagement team to build a better and customized engagement file by
removing unnecessary default documents, risks, controls, and work program and checklist procedures
based on responses to predefined questions and RMM thresholds.

The Optimiser is an optional component that must be enabled and configured prior to releasing the
master template. To activate the Optimiser, open the AO - General Options document from the master
template. Select the Optimiser option and select the appropriate check boxes.

In this section, we will examine the following components of the Optimiser:

¢ Using Optimiser checklist documents and defining procedure actions to remove default
documents, work program and checklist procedures, risks and controls from the client file based
on User responses.

¢ Using the Financial Statement Areas (FSA) worksheet to remove default documents from the
client file based on the engagement's Overall Materiality.

¢ Removing work program document procedures based on the assigned Risk Thresholds and the
client file's assessed RMMs by assertions.
The Optimiser feature enables the Engagement team to enhance or customize the template program by
removing:
¢ Unnecessary documents,
¢ Risks that are not applicable for the client,

¢ Work program procedures that do not meet the assessed level of risk for the financial statement
area, and

o Procedures from checklists or work programs based on checklist responses.
The table below lists the capabilities that you, as the Firm Author, can include in the Optimiser. Each
option can be selected or unselected as needed.

Optimiser options:

Option Description
Financial statement areas worksheet (FSA)
Delete This option deletes documents if the financial statement area is not material (as
documents determined in the materiality assessment) in the FSA worksheet. Only documents
based on associated in the Working Papers reference (W/P ref. column) are affected.
materiality in
the FSA y Optimiser includes all documents suggested for deletion in the Audit Optimiser

Confirmation Report.



Option

Delete
procedures
based on risk
thresholds in
the FSA

Delete
procedures
based on
audit
responses in
the FSA

Description

This option deletes procedures if the assigned risk threshold is higher than the
determined risk for the financial statement area in the FSA worksheet.

When selecting this option, procedures are also deleted if their assertions are not
included in the list defined in the FSA worksheet.

Documents must be associated to the financial statement area in the W/P ref. column of
the FSA worksheet.

This option deletes groups of procedures by assertion based on the audit response.
Rather than manually deleting individual procedures, use this option to automate the
process.

Optimiser Checklist

Delete
documents
based on
checklist
responses

Delete
procedures
based on
checklist
responses

Delete risks
based on
checklist
responses

Other

Insert
procedures
linked to a
risk

Delete
industry
specific
documents
Delete

unassociated
controls

This option deletes documents by document tags based on the checklist response. You
must enable document deletion in procedure actions and then proceed to define an action
for deleting documents with or without specific tags. The action is triggered when your
checklist response matches the recommended action.

This option deletes procedures by procedure tags based on the checklist response. You
must enable procedure tagging in documents and procedure deletion in procedure
actions, and then proceed to define an action for deleting procedures with or without
specific procedure tags. The action is triggered when your checklist response matches
the recommended action.

This option deletes risks and controls in the master template based on the checklist
response. You must enable risk and control deletion in procedure actions, and then
proceed to define an action for deleting specific risk and controls in the master template.
This action is triggered when your checklist response matches the recommended action.

This option inserts procedures into documents based on risk. You must link the procedure
to a risk. This action is triggered when you open a document linked to that risk (the
procedure is then automatically inserted)

Note: This option is only available when Risks is enabled in AO | General Options.

This option deletes all documents that are not related to the industries specified in the
client file.

This option deletes all controls that are not associated with any of the defined risks

Note: When procedure actions are defined in a checklist, the % icon displays at the top left of the
document and Optimiser will not delete any tagged procedures.



7.2 Optimiser Checklist Documents

As part of setting up the Optimiser, the Firm Author can create or use existing checklist documents
to remove specific default documents, work program or checklist procedures, pre-defined risks and
controls from the engagement client file based on User responses.

You can set the components to be deleted from the Optimiser pane of the AO - General options
document, under Optimiser Checklist.

Optimiser Checklist

Delete documents based on checklist responses:
Delete procedures based on checklist responses:
Delete risks based on checklist responses:

Note: The template provides the Optimiser checklist documents that include predefined questions, set
to mark associated documents for deletion based on the engagement teams' answers.

For each procedure in a checklist document, you define Procedure Actions where you specify the
default documents, procedures, Controls and Risks to delete based on a selected User response.

Before defining Procedure Actions to delete documents, you must create and assign document Tags
from the Document Manager. To create and add a document tag, right-click the document from the
Document Manager and select Tags. For more information on Tags, view the Working Papers Tags
help.

Tags @
Mew
|
Unassigned

Audit Condensed

Before defining Procedure Actions to delete work program or checklist procedures, you must create and
assign Tags in the applicable document. To create and add a procedure tag, right-click on the procedure
and select Tag Procedures.



-

|£| Tags ﬁﬁ

Default | Previous | HNext |
New
Unassigned
audit - condensed S owl110 )0 ow0120 )0 ewdZ210 - ewlZ20
cwi310 )i ow0320 )0 cw0400 0 ow05300 ) w600 | cw0700
cwi310 )i cwld20 ) ow0830 )0 cwie40 )| w810 )+ cwi920
cw 1010 )0 ow1020 )0 ow1030 00 ow1100 ) cw 1200 )+ cw1300

You can set a condition on a procedure to delete or insert procedures based on a response or calculation.

Procedure conditions are best used in cases where:
¢ Impact of a response is limited to one, or a few, individual procedures,
¢ Condition is dependent on more than a “yes” or “no” type of response and,

¢ Relevant factors in procedure conditions (responses, calculations) are not known orcompletable
at the beginning of the engagement.

Procedure

1. In a checklist or work program, right-click on a procedure and select Edit Procedure Condition
to open the corresponding dialog.

2. Fill in the procedure conditions.

Edit Procedure Conditions

[

this procedure when conditions are met
B [ inthis document v 2. Policies v | is | Completed, no exceptions v

<+ Response Condition <+ Calculation Condition

oK Cancel

Field/Option Instructions



Field/Option

Behavior

Condition List

Response Condition

Calculation Condition

Instructions
Select Custom to create the procedure condition.

Select to delete or insert the procedure based on any or all conditions are met.

Click on Response Condition or Calculation Condition to add conditions to
the list or edit existing conditions.

Select the checklist/work program document, the procedure, and the response
to the procedure that will cause the behavior to occur from the provided drop-
down menus.

Click i to delete the condition.

Enter a valid CaseView calculation and whether the calculation needs to be
less than, equal to, or greater than a specified value for the behavior to occur.
For more information on CaseView calculations, please refer to the CaseView

Help.

Click i to delete the condition.

3. Click OK to add the conditions. Anicon ( @ ) appears beside the procedure to indicate there is

a condition.

7.3 Financial Statement Areas Worksheet and Materiality

The Optimiser can use the Financial Statement Areas (FSA) Worksheet to remove default documents
from the engagement client file based on the engagement's assessed Materiality. You can enable this
option from the AO - General options document and selecting Delete documents based on materiality
in the FSA in the Optimiser pane.

The documents referenced to financial statement area items that are not material are selected for
removal and included in the Audit Optimiser Confirmation Report. As well, documents in the same
folder as the associated documents in the Document Manager will also be suggested for removal.

Within a client file, once the engagement team determines the Materiality assessment and refreshes the
FSA Worksheet, the Optimiser will automatically suggest that the W/P ref. documents associated with
non-material financial statement area items be removed.

atters considered significan| Balance as

Financial Statement Balances

Unrecorded | Prior Year 2 Mate riality

assessment

Entity level and IT general
weaknesses and controls

equipment
# 5 Investment property 10,000 10,000 8,000
# 10 Intangible assets and 7,000 7,000 8,000
goodwill

[+ 15 Biological assets - non- 13,000 13,000 8,000
current

Property, plant and 15,000 15,000 10,000 % 8,000 1101
8- 7,000 5101
8- 7,000 10101
$- 7,000 @
7,000 7,000 7,000 8- 7,000 20101

20 Investments



http://documentation.caseware.com/2015/CaseView/en/Content/Calculations/About_cell_calculations.htm
http://documentation.caseware.com/2015/CaseView/en/Content/Calculations/About_cell_calculations.htm

As well, documents in the same folder as the associated documents in the Document Manager will also
be suggested for removal. For example, where Investment Property is found to be not material, the
associated document 5.101 and all other documents in the same folder will be suggested for deletion.

,jﬁ Investment property leadsheet
5. 1 Investment property - Cost
hﬂﬂ. 2 Imvestment property - Depreciation and impairment
] 5.101 Investment property - Audit procedures
Intangible Assets

Optimiser includes all documents suggested for removal in the Audit Optimiser Confirmation Report
where the engagement team can confirm their deletion. Where all documents in a folder have been
confirmed for deletion, the folder will also be removed.

As the Firm Author, you should pre-generate the FSA Worksheet in the master template and associate
the appropriate work program to each financial statement area item. This will save time and provide
consistency across all client files. For more information on the FSA Worksheet, refer to the Financial
Statement Areas Worksheet section.

7.4 Risk Thresholds

The Optimiser can automatically remove work program procedures based on the Risk Threshold
assigned by the Firm Author and the RMMs by assertions assessed by the engagement team. As partof
this option, Optimiser will automatically remove work program procedures whose assertions are not listed
in the list of assertions specified for a financial statement area in the FSA. You can enable this option
from the AO - General options document and selecting Delete documents based on risk thresholds
in the FSA in the Optimiser pane.

As part of setting up the Optimiser, the Firm Author can assign risk thresholds to procedures in work
program documents in the master template.

i Procedure Obj | -ﬁ.ssert| Threshold

A. SUBSTANTIVE PROCEDURES - BASIC

1. Anaiytical procedures CEA Default [ Low )
Dievelop and document expeciations for the
period-end accounts receivable balances
based on information obtained from
understanding the entity.

Investigate significant changes or trends in
the:

= Accounts receivable balance

When these documents are associated in the Financial Statement Areas (FSA) Worksheet and the
engagement team has assessed RMMs by assertions, procedures with a risk threshold that exceed the
assessed RMM will be automatically removed from the client file. For example, if your firm determines
that a procedure is only necessary if the RMMs for the assertions in the financial statement area are

High, the procedure will be automatically removed from the engagement client file if the assessed RMM is
less than High.
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Note: provides the ability to Lock User Procedure Customizations within work program documents,
which ensures that the Optimiser cannot delete procedures. The lock is automatically removed after a
year end close has been performed, allowing the reassessment of procedures in the following year

To assign a risk threshold to a procedure:

1. Right-click on the procedure or sub procedure in a work program or checklist and select
Assertions.

2. From the Select the minimum risk assessment threshold drop-down, select the appropriate
level of risk. The default for all procedures is Low.

~
|=| Change assertion ﬂ
Please check/uncheck applicable assertions:
C - Completeness i

[C1E - Existence or Occurrence
[ A - Accuracy

[Fw - valuation

7l RO - Rights and Obligations
[C1TA - Training assertion

m

Select the minimum risk assessment threshold:
Default (Low) -

[ oK ] [ Cancel Help




8 CONTENT MANAGEMENT

8.1 Introduction

Content is updated on a regular basis to incorporate new standards by the content authors. Audit
includes several tools to help the Firm Author manage and update the work program and checklist
documents in the master template.

As well, Audit allows you to determine how these changes flow to the engagement client file level to
ensure that updates are effectively and efficiently performed by Users.

In this section, we will examine how the firm can:
8.1.1  Update the master template content.
8.1.2 Set version numbers for the User update process.

8.1.3 Set update options.

8.2 Managing the Content

From time to time, your firm may receive an update to the template and the corresponding library
components. As the Firm Author, you must install the update and manage any firm content previously
added or modified.

The Highlight Options feature within work program and checklist documents will indicate the state of the
procedures, such as out-of-date. The Check for based on procedure feature checks the status of
procedures previously added by the firm that were based on other procedures. The status easily allows
you to determine which procedures require modification or removal. Check for updates within the master
file documents can be used to ensure the most up-to-date procedures are included in the master file.

Firm authors can also indicate that documents in the template have been updated or changed, and that
mapping or grouping structures have changed. In addition, work programs and checklists can be marked
as having had their content changed. Client files can then be updated to include these changes.

8.2.1 Procedure Highlighting

The Highlight Options feature under the Document menu allows you to review procedures highlighted
for various states. Highlighting is helpful before or with Check for Updates.

When selected, highlighting will mark specific procedures with a distinctive color and outline style around
specific procedures. This helps to identify changes the firm may wish to review.

Procedures can be highlighted as follows:

Item Description Highlight
Color
Updated Procedures updated through check for updates. I !
Procedures I
Inserted Procedures inserted after the document was initially created.
Procedures
Out of Date Procedures where there is a more current version available in Taida b :

Procedures the content library. T p



To highlight procedures:
8.2.1.1 From the Document Manager, open the work program or checklist you wish to review.
8.21.2 From the Document menu, select Display Highlight Options.
8.2.1.3 Check the Highlight Options as shown.

8214 Review the highlighted procedures that were previously changed.

8.2.2 Checking procedures status

When modifying a procedure provided with the original template, the modified procedure automatically
becomes a new procedure based on the original and the Procedure is based on an existing procedure
checkbox is automatically turned on. If the original procedure is later updated, the Check for Based on
Procedure Status feature allows you to easily identify the procedures based on an existing procedure
that may also need updating.

To check the procedures status:
8.2.2.1 From the Document menu, select Check for Based on Procedure Status.

8.2.2.2 Review the information in the column Based on Procedure Name appearing on the right
end of the document. A status indicator displays along with the name of the base procedure
and the owner of the base procedure. The three status indicators are:

Indicat Description
eor

v No change has been made to the original procedure.
Pk} A change has been made to the original procedure.
X The original procedure has been deleted.

8.2.2.3 Click on the name of the original procedure to view the current content of the original procedure.

8.2.2.4 Review the status indicators and the original procedure that the current procedure is
based on. Make changes to the procedure as necessary by right-clicking the procedure,
selecting Modifiable, and typing your change. Update the version number and modified date.

Once your status review is complete, from the Document menu, clear Check for Based on Procedure
Status.

Note: When adding new procedures, you also have the option to base them on existing procedures by
selecting the Procedure is based on an existing procedure check box and selecting the base
procedure.

Resetting the procedure status
You can reset the procedure status to remove procedure highlighting for a checklist or work program. To
do this, select Reset Procedure Status from the Author menu. Resetting the procedure status is useful

if an engagement team is creating a new client file and does not need to know what changes have been
made to the updated template.



8.3 Client File Updates

This template provides your engagement staff with the ability to update each engagement file using an
Update from Template notification process. When opening a client file a notification balloon appears
informing your staff that parts of the source template have been upgraded to a newer version. Clicking in
the balloon launches a series of dialog boxes that display the available updates and enable your staff to
select the updates to apply to your client file

To enable this process, you must change the various version numbers when any of the following
happens:

e Settings have been changed because the AO - General Options document has been changed -
Document Version number.

e A CaseView or external document, such as Word or Excel, has been modified - Document
Version number.

e Procedures in a work program or checklist document have been added, deleted, or updated -
Content Version number.

o A CaseView or external document has been added, deleted, or updated - Document Structure
number.

e A mapping or grouping structure has been changed - Structure number.

To update the Document Version and Content Version number of a document:

1. In the Working Papers Document Manager, right-click the document that has been modified or
replaced and select Properties.

2. In the Document Properties dialog, click the Template tab.

3. Type the new (increased) version number.



General | Roles | Headings | Issues | History Template | Synchronization

Document |dentifier | |

Document Version: 1.0.0.0

Content Version: 4.0.0.0

0K Cancel Help

To update the structure version number:
1. From the Working Papers Tools tab, in the Templates group, select Template Versions.
2. In the Template Versions dialog, click the General tab.

3. Where a CaseView or external document has been added, deleted, or updated, type the new
(increased) Document Structure number.

4. Where a mapping or grouping structure has been changed, type the new (increased) Structure
number.



Template Versions

General Option

Identifier
Template ID: AuditlNT

Component Version

Template (overall): 17.0.352 Mapping Structure: 1.0.0
Group 1 Structure: 1.0.0 Group 2 Structure: 1.0.0
Group 3 Structure; 1.0.0 Group 4 Structure; 1.0.0
Group 5 Structure: 1.0.0 Group 6 Structure: 1.0.0
Group 7 Structure: 1.0.0 Group 8 Structure: 1.0.0
Group 9 Structure: 1.0.0 Group 10 Structure: 1.0.0
Document Structure: | 3.0.0 Template (Part A): 1.0.0
Temnplate (Part B): 1.0.0 Template (Part C): 1.0.0

Update Motification
Enable update from template notification on this template

oK Cancel Help

Note: The following convention is used for version numbers:
o The first digit of the version is reserved for changes created by CaseWare.
e The second digit of the version is reserved for changes created by distributors.
¢ The third digit of the version is reserved for firm authors.

In practice, as the firm author, you will only need to change this third digit. For example, if the current
version is 2.1.3, the next version to use would be 2.1.4.

8.4 Update Options

The firm can select the update process that the engagement team will use when content updates for work
programs or checklists are distributed to Users. This option sets the update process that occurs when
Users select the Check for Updates feature in a work program or checklist document.

The firm should review the options and ensure they meet the firm’s requirements. The firm has the option
to set the update process by selecting the desired option from the drop-down list.



General options

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

‘Waork Programs and Checklists
Industry
Roll Forward
Check For Updates

Work Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

Check For Updates

Check when completed: [

During the update process all existing procedures are updated and new procedures are added to each work program and
checklist automatically.

Check for Updates is applicable in work programs and checklists in the engagement file when:

e The user marks documents as N/A during the procedure update process.

* The document "Content Version” is not updated by the Author when updating the template.

o Checking for deleted procedures. (The update process will never delete procedures from an engagement file.)

The check for updates process must be initiated in each work program or checklist in the engagement file. Select the behaviour
of the document when Check For Updates is performed.

User selects individual procedures to update in each document.
= All existing procedures are updated. New procedures are stored in the library.
@  All existing procedures are updated. New procedures are added to the document.

Option

User selects individual
procedures to update in
each document.

All existing procedures are
updated. New procedures
are stored in the library.

All existing procedures are
updated. New procedures
are added to the document.

Description

All procedures marked as Required are automatically updated in
each engagement.

No other procedures are updated, or new procedures added. Users
are required to update procedures on a procedure-by-procedure
basis.

Document properties are updated in each work program or checklist
when Check for Updates is performed.

All procedures marked as Required are automatically updated in
each engagement.

Automatically updates all existing procedures in an engagement file if
they have not been modified at the engagement level.

Procedures that have been customized at the engagement level have
an option to update or retain on a procedure-by-procedure basis.

New procedures remain in the content library and must be added to
the engagement as needed.

Document properties are automatically updated.

All procedures marked as Required are automatically updated in
each engagement.

Automatically updates all existing procedures in an engagement file if
they have not been modified at the engagement level.

Procedures that have been customized at the engagement level have
an option to update or retain on a procedure-by-procedure basis.

New procedures are automatically added to each work program or
checklist and must be deleted in the engagement as needed.

Document properties are automatically updated.

If users update the engagement file using the Update from Template notification method, the template
ignores this Update setting and only uses the option to Update all existing procedures, add new



procedures. For firms that only want their staff to update work programs and checklists using the other
two options, they should advise their staff to either not use the Update from Template method or to Skip
the Procedures component.

8.4.1 Updating Procedures in the Master Template Only
There may be some situations where you do not want to push certain changes to the engagement files.

Audit has implemented minor version on procedures to trigger the update in the master template but not
in the engagement file.

Procedure
8.4.1.1 In a work program or checklist, right-click the applicable procedure and select Modifiable.
8.4.1.2 Once the changes have been made, change the second digit in the Ver column.
Document  Procedures  Areas Suthor  Options  Help
)~ F |0 - O- 8- | 2¥ |~ | U | oD 8B e
n [P AUDIT CONCLUSIONS (based on profess..
Engagement nsk assessment Ret Hame “E‘:::_“
1. JQuality assurance manualf 3 Cualily asguranté manual “@ 4202014 = [(add)
Would accepling this engagement confravans
any of the firm's guality assurance palicies
_The firm's quality assurance manual should Major
includs policies on efhics, ndependence and Minor
whare relevanl anti-mongy laundering
requiremenis
Result

The changes will only be updated in the master template and will not be pushed to engagement files
when a user checks for updates.

9 REPACKAGE

9.1 Introduction

If any customizations have been made to the master template, the Repackage function must be run and
the resulting template package (.cwp) file must be distributed to your Users and installed on their
workstations. Customizations include changes to procedures, documents, mappings/groupings, settings,
etc. The Repackage installation file includes the master template, the content library, and all the
necessary files required for the installation. Copying selected files to individual computers may cause the
template to work improperly.

Prior to repackaging, ensure that all customizations have been completed. You may consider specifying
any additional firm specific documents in the Document Manager for inclusion in the repackaged
installation.

Since the Repackage file contains the entire template, repackaging can be used to back up the template
during the authoring process. You can manually add the time and date to the file name to keep multiple
backups.

In this section, we will examine how the firm can repackage the master template file.

9.2 Repackaging a template



To repackage a template:
Note: If you do not want users to have the ability to modify work programs, checklists and general
options, "Lock Author Mode" on page 88 before repackaging.

1. In Working Papers, select Tools | Templates. The Templates dialog opens.

2. Select the template.

3. Click Repackage. Only when you select a packaged template that was designed to allow
repackaging and that has already been installed does the Package button change to
Repackage; non-packaged templates have the Package button available. The Templates
Package wizard opens, welcoming you.

4. On the wizard, click Next. The Global Options page opens. Identify the path where the packaged
template will be located and, if you want, give the template a different name from the original.
You can choose repackaging rights.

5. Click Finish on the wizard. If the repackaging was a success, the wizard displays a message
indicating that the process was successful. A CaseWare Packager file (.cwp) is created whichis
used to launch the Template Installer wizard. ®

6. If the application detected errors, those errors are displayed; fix the errors and follow the
preceding steps to repackage the template.

7. Click the Close button to exit the wizard.

9.3 Distribution

Once repackage is completed, you can distribute the customized template by providing the template
package (.cwp file) to the users for installation. You will have defined the name and location of thisfile
during the Repackage process.

Double-click the. cwp and the installation process will begin.

The distribution process is the same for the initial installation of a firm-customized template as well as any
subsequent updates.

Note:

9.3.1 If you are using a firm-customized template, your staff should not install from the
original installation files.
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1 Practice Sets Objectives

When the course is complete, users of the Audit Template will be able to:

0

O 0o od

Create files incorporating Audit into either existing or new client files.

Create and track risks, controls and reportable items throughout the audit process.
Customize work programs and checklists to meet client requirements.

Review client files using tools in Audit and Working Papers.

Update client files with changes in content.



2 Practice Set — Author in the Audit template

2.1 Open the Audit master template

At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:
e Open the master file.

e Access a document from the Document Manager.

2.1.1 Objective: Open the master file

1. Open Working Papers.

2. From the File menu, select Templates.

: y —
-

O

- g £

File

Mew 0 p e n

I:] } "
Ben Places Recent Files

Sign In/Out @ Recent Files

____ ED Computer
Copy Components Py

Tracker

Rename File

Templates

Protection Setup

Help




3. Select the Audit International template icon.

GJ Templates r=mpc
A'Jd:’t Remove
International
Edit
Propertie
Package | Make Patch OK Cancel ] ’ Help

4. Click Edit or double-click on the icon.

Results

The Audit master template opens.



2.1.2 Objective: Access a document from the Document Manager

From the Navigation toolbar in Working Papers, click Documents.

|I Documents ' Issues Trial Balance  Adj. Entries  Other Entries

2. Click the icon beside the folders to expand and collapse them.

Tip: You can also press the Enter key to expand and collapse the folders.

£ MName
<] WPGFO0 Mew Work Program
o Waorking paper index
E] g pap

. General

. Audit

. Planning

. Risk Assessment

. Risk Response

. Audit Plans And Procedures - Assets

. Audit Plans And Procedures - Liabilities And Equity
. Audit Plans And Procedures - Income Statement

. Completion Documents

j ——- CaseWare Audit System Documents -——-—-

. ===-- Other Audit Documents -----
ﬂ Name
|} WPGFDO Mew Work Program

- LMo Working paper index

411 General
‘_JZ 05 Financials ratio report
JZ. 10 MNotes to financial statements
3215 Woerking papers supporting statement of cash flows
_jl. 25 Trial balance - By leadsheet
2. 30 Trial balance - By map no
,,j.l‘- 35 Trial balance - By account number
jl. 50 Reclassifying journal entries
;,_i.l. 55 Elimination entries
JE. 60 Closing entries
g 2. 65 Tax journal entries
@2.75 Tickmarks
32100 Issues - All
jl.lﬂ-S Issues - My issues
;,j.l.llﬂ Issues - Outstanding
jl.llS Issues - Review notes

a1 Audit
] OMEFORM.  Audit memo

(4] Planning

3. Right-click the document to open it.

FE &

Tags

CWPRO1
f,j',- Tags
[¥]
[# CWPROL
& CWPRDL
[# 1 (CWPROL:
¥ CWPROL
[ CWPROL
[# CWPROL
[+ CWPRO1
/| CWPROL
[ (cweRol .
¥ CWFROL
[# CWPROL
[+ CWPROL
[ CWPROL
[¥] 1 (CWPRO1
| CWPROL
[ CWPROL
[# ONEFOR




£l Mame B Tags
Q WPGFI0 New Work Program =
o Working paper index il CWPROL
4 | General
2. 05 Financials ratio report : il CWPRGL .
2,10 Motes to financial statements [#] Properties Alt+Enter
_:IZ. 15 Working papers supporting statement of cash flows
_jl. 25 Tnal balance - By leadsheet r Lpai 25 ]
H‘il. 30 Trial balance - By map no El Delete Del
_,-il. 35 Trial balance - By account number ‘e Print Ctrl=P
JE. 50 Reclassifying joumal entries
2. 55 Eliminaticn entries B AddNewlssue..
i2.60 Closing entries =
= Ta
jl. 65 Tax journal entries = =
@275 Tickmnarks @7 Check Out
2100 Tssues - All ¥ | Checkn
,,-.iz.ws Issues - My issues
w2110 Issues - Outstanding L4 Compare..
.“il_llﬁl lssues - Review notes _ :
| Audit 1? Save Milestone...
| Planning ahy Saveas Web Page...
. Risk Assessment ) Saveas POF File..
* Risk Response % Saveas Excel File...
. Audit Plans And Procedures - Assets
| Audit Plans And Procedures - Liabilities And Equity Send To b
. Audit Mans And Procedures - Income Statement
| Completion Documents Hew .
- CaseWare Audit System Documents ----- X Cut Crle X
PR Dther Audit Documents ----- i:J Copy Chbet

4. Click the close button to close the opened document.

Results

The selected document opens and closes in a new window.




3 Practice Set — General options

3.1 Complete general options
At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:

Enable engagement profiles.

Add a Trivial misstatements section to the Materiality document.
Define the areas and set firm assertions for the work programs.
Remap a combined assertion.

Define the completion responses for audit procedures.

Enable the Optimiser.

3.1.1 Objective: Enable engagement profiles

1.
2.

3.

In the Document Manager, select CaseWare Audit System Documents | Control Documents.
Double-click document AO — General Options to open it.

a4 g - CaseWare Audit System Documents -----
. New Master Documents
. Update
4 | Control Documents
.E:]DOC‘-IEF{ Document version report
|| DSORPT Docurnent sign-off report

|| EP7 Firm information
| ,ﬂ AQ General options |
SR Other Audit Documents -----

Select the Engagement Profiles tab.

General options

Product Settings

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

Materiality

Assertions

Work Programs and Checklists
Waork Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet



4. In the Engagement profile setup drop-down menu, select Documents only.

Engagement profiles allow authors to define unique profiles for different types of engagements. Profiles include documents and global settings and
will be specified upon creation of new client files.

Engagement profile setup: CSSE—¢EOM}r D

MNumber of profiles: 1-10 =
Last loaded profile:

Cwner:

Check the preview of engagement profile dialog: Preview

5. Scroll down and select the OneForm button as the pre-selected profile. Click ‘5

6. Click the first Documents icon . A list of document tags that are associated with the profile
displays.

Note: Documents with any of these tags in the Document Manager will be included in the client
file when a new client file is created based on the master template.

= Tags @

Assign Tags

+  Click here to assign a new tag

Assigned

Unassigned

audit condensed cwi210 cwiZ20 cw 0400 cw 0500 cwDE00
cwia10 cwig20 cwig30 cwiB40 cw 1100 cw 1200 cw 1300
=small

7. Close the Tags dialog by clicking the close button.
8. Click =

Results

The updated engagement profile includes documents only. The global settings will be identical for all
profiles as defined in the master template.

Note: When a new client file is created from the master template, the Engagement Profile Selector will
default to OneForm.



3.1.2 Objective: Add a Trivial misstatements section to the Materiality document

1.

In document AO — General Options, select the Materiality tab.

General options

Product Settings
Engagement Profiles
All Farms

Terminology
Materiality
Assertions Cwverall: Overall
Work Programs and Checklists Per_‘Formance: Perfo_r_mance
Work Programs Adjuste_d:_ o Specific overall |
o Abbreviation for Preliminary: P
Optimiser Abbreviation for Final; F
Risks
Controls

Materiality Displayed on all documents
Reportable ltems

Preliminary Materiality:

Final Materiality:

2. Scroll down to Sections Included in Materiality Document and select Trivial misstatements.

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

Type Trivial misstatement in the Description box and enter the value 5 in the Percentage box.

FETTUTITIANCE TIALET I 107 Spreciie Cr Curmsidnces L1
Trivial misstatements
Final materiality assessments O

Trivial Misstatement

Calculate Trivial Misstatement based on preset percentages

Mumber of preset options 1 |

Description Percentage

Trivial misstatement 3%
Results

The Trivial misstatements section is added to the Materiality document.

4

420. Materiality (Core)

Document Options Help
O~ O~ @ ~ i & v @) N B & s & Search On-line Heip
Preliminary Materiality Final Materiality
Owerall ] - ] -
Performance 5 - 5 -

To determine the overall materiality based on the users of the financial statements (ISA 320.10); the performance
materiality required to reduce (to an acceptably low level) the probability that the aggregate of uncerrectediundetected
misstatements exceeds overall materiality (154 320.11); and the specific materiality and specific performance
materiality where required (15A 320,10 and A.12).

A. Trivial misstatements

(ISA 450.42)

Trivial misstatement is calculated based on -

Amount below which misstatements would be clearty trivial and not recorded on Form 335. ] -
Comments




3.1.3 Objective: Define the areas and set firm assertions for the work programs

1.

2. Change the Number of combined assertions to 6 — six assertions.

In document AO — General Options, select the Assertions tab.

General options

Product Settings
Engagement Profiles

All Forms
Materiality
Assertions

Wark Programs and Checklists

Waork Programs

Optimiser
Risks
Contraols

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

Note: To define a new custom assertion, you must select six assertions or more.

For Assertion 6, type Training assertion in the Firm Standard field and TA in the Abbr. field.

Combined assertions =~

Completeness Completeness C
Existence Existence E
Accuracy Accuracy A
Waluation Valuation v
Rights and Obligations Rights and Obligations RO
|assertion 6 Training assertion TA

4. Select the Include box beside each corresponding assertion to include them to the template file.

Terminology Firm Standard Abbr. Include
Pervasive risks

Entity Level Entity Level P

Combined assertions

Completeness Completeness C
Existence Existence E
Accuracy Accuracy A
Waluation Valuation v
Rights and Obligations Rights and Obligations RO O
Assertion 6 Training assertion TA




11.
12.

&

Click the Associate base assertions icon.

Note: A Warning £A icon will display if any combined assertions are not associated with a base
assertion.

In the Associate base assertions dialog, select the base assertions that correspond to each
combined assertion.

|=| Associate base assertions *

Combined Assertions

Classes of Transactions

Occurrence O O O O O] O
Completeness ] O @] @] Q @]
Accuracy O O ® O O O
Cutoff @] @] @] @] @] O]
Classification O O] O O O O
" Presentation O O O O] O O
E Account Balances
t - _ ; ~ - _
o Existence @] @] O O @) ®
E Rights and obligations @] @] O O @] O]
§ Completeness O O O O O ®
Accuracy, valuation and allocation O O O O O O]
Classification @] O O O @] .
Presentation @] @] O O @] O]
Presentation and Disclosure
Occurrence O O O O O O]
Completeness @] @] @] @] @] O]
Classification and understandability @] O O O @] .
Accuracy and valuation @] @] O O @] O]
Lo
Click OK.

Click ,,_h to return to the Document Manager.

Select Audit Plans and Procedures — Assets | Cash And Cash Equivalents.
Open document 140.101 Cash — Audit procedures.

# . Cash And Cash Equivalents

8140 Cash and cash equivalents leadsheet
[9140.101 Cash - Audit procedures
(€1140.110 Bank reconciliation procedures

Select Areas | Insert List of Assertions.

Select the Financial Statement Assertions tab to view the new assertions.



Results

The new assertion displays in all work programs. When using a new assertion system in a template,
procedures are automatically updated, and Risks and Controls automatically associate with the
equivalent combined assertions.

3.1.4 Objective: Remap a combined assertion

1. Open document AO — General Options.
2. Select the Assertions tab.

General options

Product Settings

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

Materiality

Assertions

Waork Programs and Checklists
Work Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

Click %7 .

In the Associate base assertions dialog, select the assertions that correspond to each combined
assertion. If there is no assertion, select N/A.

|=| Associate base assertions *

Combined Assertions

Classes of Transactions
Occurrence
Completeness

Accuracy

Cutoff

Classification

Presentation ®
.g Account Balances
E Existence O @] O O O ®
f Rights and obligations O @] O O O ®
ﬁ Completeness ®

Accuracy, valuation and allocation
Classification
Presentation

Presentation and Disclosure

Occurrence O O O O (

Completeness
Classification and understandability

Accuracy and valuation




5. Click OK.,
Results

The combined assertion is remapped. When modifying your assertions, your procedures willautomatically
update to store the applicable assertions.

Note: When opening the Financial Statement Areas (FSA) worksheet after updating your assertions in
an engagement file, you will receive a warning indicating that your assertion settings have been modified
and assertions enabled on FSAs should be reviewed. To enable your changes, you will need tomanually
add the relevant assertions to your FSAs.

3.1.5 Objective: Define the completion responses for audit procedures

1. In document AO — General Options, select Work Programs | Completion Responses.

General options

Product Settings

Engagement Profiles

&ll Forms

hateriality

Assertions

Work Programs and Checklists

Work Programs
Areas
Completion Responses
Procedure Allocation

Optimiser

Risks

Contrals

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

2. Change the Number of responses to 8 — eight responses.
3. For the new response, select Other from the drop-down menu.

4. Type Incomplete in the description box.

Firm Standard =
1. Completed, no exceptions = L
2. Completed with exceptions noted below =
3. Mot possible to complete -
4. Yes =
5. Mo -
6. MNfA -
7. Other -

Other
8. Other -

Incomplete



5. Select only Explanation and Explanation is required and clear the rest of the boxes.

8. Other - il o L ]
Incomplete

Results
The new response is added to all work program procedures.

Note: The responses can only be seen in work programs at the client engagement level.

3.1.6 Objective: Enable the Optimiser

1. In document AO — General Options, select the Optimiser tab.

General options

Product Settings

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

Materiality

Assertions

Work Programs and Checklists
Work Programs

Qptimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet



2. Select only the following check boxes:

Financial statement areas worksheet (FSA)

Delete documents based on materiality in the FSA:

Delete procedures based on risk thresholds in the FSA:

Delete procedures based on audit responses in the FSA:

Optimiser Checklist

Delete documents based on checklist responses:
Delete procedures based on checklist responses:

Delete risks based on checklist responses:

Other

Insert procedures linked to a risk:
Delete industry specific documents:

Delete unassociated controls:

LYY

[« [«

I

3. Close document AO — General Options.

Results
The Audit Optimiser is enabled.



4 Practice Set — Forms

4.1 Firm information and logos
At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:

o Complete the firm information document.

e Add a firm logo to all audit documents.

4.1.1 Objective: Complete the firm information document

1. In the Document Manager, select CaseWare Audit System Documents | Control Documents.
2. Double-click document Firm information to open it.

4| | - CaseWare Audit System Documents -----
New Master Documents
Update
4 || Control Documents
(_] DOCVER Document version report
|C] DSORPT Document sign-off report

€| EPT Firm information
ﬂ Al General options
3. Complete as shown:
Name of the practicing unit Training Firm
Address of the practicing unit 12345 Audit Street
City Audit Town
The followang information is required for the firm as a whole. The information i1s used in correspondence such as
the engagement, representation and management letters
Mame of the practicing unit Training Firm
Address of the practicing unit 12345 Audit Street
Crty Audit Town
Prov/State
Country

Postal/Zip Code
Telephone number
Facsimile number

E-mail address

Practicing unit is referred to as Firm =
Firm designation Certified Public Accountants o

4. In the Firm designation drop-down menu, select Certified Public Accountants.
Results

The firm information displays in the header of the letter.



4.1.2

1.

2
3

5.

Objective: Add a firm logo to all audit documents
Select Browse and locate the firm logo file.

Logo CWinterface\FIRM.BMP

Browse...| Preview

| Show the firm logo in all documents

| Show the firm name in all documents

. Select the file and click Open.
. Select Preview.
4,

In the bottom pane, scroll down and select Edit Company Name Style.

L

Year End:
!/ . . . December 31, 2013
iptions __ Help )
ol B W e
Instructions

This document provides a preview of the logo and firm name when included at the bottom of each CaseView audit
document.

To modify the logo or firm name:

1. Click on the table atthe bottom of this document where the firm name and logo appear.

2. Adjustthe column width using the ruler. Itis recommended that you first resize the firm name column to fit just the
firm name with very little space on both sides of the name, and then resize the middle column to change the width of
the whole table so that the table is as wide as the sample work program table.

3. Click Edit Company Name Style to adjust the styles.

4. Once completed click the back button to return to Firm information.

Mote: the logo and the firm name are defined in the Firm information document.

I RS S e S | R LR | W S |- B £ T L ST L2 AN A HE AR T
X T T

118 |

i I I i i i
1 -|[r
2.
3 -l
b -|{™
r
r
International Engagement Forms - Audits ( —Z , Training Firm
uly 2010
TI232015
11:13 AM

C\PROGRAM FILES (X88)\CASEWARE\DOCUMENT LIERARYAUDIT INTERMNATIOMALY

Edit Company Mame Style___

Click OK.



Note: You can resize the table columns by adjusting the margins in the ruler.

6. Select the Back button to return to the Firm Information.

Options  Help

i~ O g (8 e o
7. Close document Firm information.

Results

The logo and the firm designation display in the footer of all audit documents.

4.2 Create new letters
At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:

e Create a new blank letter.

4.2.1 Objective: Create a new blank letter

1. In the Document Manager, select CaseWare Audit System Documents | New Master
Documents.

Right-click document LETTER Sample letter and select Copy.

Expand folders Audit Plans And Procedures — Assets | Cash And Cash Equivalents.
Right-click the Cash And Cash Equivalents folder and select Paste.

Right-click document LETTER Sample letter and select Properties.

Change the document Number to A.125 and Name to Bank Confirmation Letter.

Click OK.,

N o o s e

Results

A new blank letter is created and added to the Cash and Cash Equivalents folder in the Document
Manager.

Notes:

¢ You can create new letters based on either an existing letter or a blank sample letter. To create
a new letter based on an existing letter, copy and paste the existing document instead of the
Sample letter document.

e Don’t confuse the Sample letter with the Same management letter. The Same management
letter contains the reportable items feature.



4.3 Modify letters

At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:
4.3.1 Modify a letter in form mode.
4.3.2 Modify a letter in design mode.

4.3.1 Objective: Modify a letter in form mode

1. In the Document Manager, select Audit Plans And Procedures — Assets | Cash And Cash
Equivalents.

2. Double-click document A.125 Bank Confirmation Letter to open it.

In the Document Guidance text box, type To confirm bank account balances.

December 3

,; LETTES Sample Letter

Document  Options Help
0O- O~ @~ F L) A\ E 3 h @ Search On-line Help

US Firm

12345 Audit Street
Audit Touun

To confirm bank account balances

[Mame of firm]
[Address 1]

[Address 2]

[City]. [Province/State]
[Postal/Zip Code]

4. Select Options | Display Document Guidance to disable the Document Guidance area.

Results

The letter is modified in form mode.



4.3.2 Objective: Modify a letter in design mode

1. In document A.125 Bank Confirmation Letter, select View | Design Mode.
2. Click the body text Input text here to place the cursor there.

3. Right-click and select Paragraph to access the paragraph properties.

4

Check Permit editing in Form mode and click OK.

Options

Permit editing in Form Mode

Context menu:

Clear on Roll Foraard

__(nan:} I == Apply sibling styles only

Skip
Print: '_Nnﬂe x|
Condition: |

5. Delete Input text here and type In connection with our audit, we request confirmation ofall
account balances as at.

ACFIRMB
| [Postal’Zip Codelq]
1

RECEIVER

: Dear Bank v

: In connection with our audit, we request confirmation of all account balances as aty]

Click the space after the word "at".

In the Home tab, select Cell.

Type BANKDATE and click OK.
Enter Cell Number

Cell Number:
| BANKDATE ‘

9. Inthe Cell Type drop-down menu, select Date.



10.
11.
12.
13.

“" ] Cell Group: MNone

[ Hide/Skip Blank

Mew Cell: BANKDATE
Properies General
General Cell Mumber:  BAMNEDATE
Dat
i Cell Type: Date
Farmatting
Borders D_p#;l:-ns &
| Display Qnly
Fant  Auto Skip on Input
Events

W Accept Focus on Input
Roll Forward
Alignment

Diagnostics [ Use Theme

Custom Properties Calculation Properties

® Calculated Cell

] Alwiays Modifiable in Enable Editing
| Abwrarys Deletable in Enable Editing

[CIinput Cell

Hide/Skip Zero
[ Hide Selection Bonder

Menuw: | None

Cheerridden

) Popup Cell || Esternal Data Access |#] Query on Ovemride
Select the Date tab.
Select the Use Long Format option and clear the Use Regional Settings box.
In the Date Style drop-down menu, select MMMM dd, yyyy.
Select Calendar Control and click OK.
Properties Date
General Display Properties
IDate | Cell Width: | Variable v 254cm 7 [] Allow Wrapping
Formatting Cell Height: | yariable v 250ecm o [] Accept Underline Space
Borders
Date Format
Font (") Use Short Format
Events (®) Use Long Format
Roll Forward
Alignment []Use Regional Settings
Diagnostics Date Style: | [BAMBM dd, yyyy] w
Custom Properties
Language:
Sample: December 31, 2002
Calculation

Capitalization: | Normal

Input Mode and Validation
I [+] Calendar Control I
Validation:

Mone

[] Override Indicator




14. Select View | Form Mode.

ample Letter

Document Options Help
0 vy W c_’) hd ™ Q B B & :] 2 Segrch On-line Help
US Firm
12345 Audit Street
Audit Town,
il

[Name of firm]
[Address 1]

[Address 2]

[City]. [Province/State]
[Postal/Zip Code]
Dear Bank,

In connection with our audit, we request confirmation of all account balances as at  m|.

15. Close and save the new letter document.

Results

The paragraph is modified to allow the user to edit text. Cells are created to allow the user to enter a
balance and select a date.



4.4 Create new work programs
At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:

Create a new work program.

4.4.1 Objective: Create a new work program

1.

o g bk~ wDd

In the Document Manager, select CaseWare Audit System Documents | New Master
Documents.

Right-click the document NWPG New work program and select Copy.

Expand folders Audit Plans And Procedures — Income Statement | Revenues.
Right-click the Revenues folder and select Paste.

Right-click document NWPG New work program and select Properties.

Change the document Number to 1102-2 and the Name to Contract Revenues - Audit
Procedures. Click OK.

CaseView Document Properties - NWPH New work program

General Roles | Headings | Issues | History | Template | Synchronization

MNumber: 1110-2

Mame: Contract Revenues - Audit Procedures
Identifier: 00000100

CV Group: W

Period: Current Period -



7. Double-click document 1110-2 Contract Revenues — Audit Procedures to open it.

Note: The Document Properties dialog initially displays for newly created work programs and

checklists.
Document Properties
General Addritional Details
Mame: Conftract Revenues - Audit Procedures
Structure Version: 1.0.0

Description 1:

Description 2:

Description 3:

[ Completed, no exceptions [+ Completed with exceptions noted below
¥ Mot possible to complete [+ ves

¥ Mo [] My

¥ [ Incomplete

] Use Input Response
+| Show Mote Row

QK | Cancel Help

8. Click OK.

Do urend Procedunes Aread Aibar Dplsons Help

©-2ti0-r0-0-vfizca® a-Fr|ie- 0lDRER

Risk Repart

Hisks ienfied Vihat Can Go Weong Avdessed Ackrence

Document Guidance

gt Documest Guidance
Mendifsizd
Procedure Asserl Threshkold Het Mame Aeq | Wer Date
Basic procedures
* 05 Chefaull 1= 100 12002015W (s
Freadur
L | [t
Conclusion

Right chck tn et conclusion
Compisted by
Qmvewed by

9. Close and save the document.

Results

A new work program document is created and added to the Revenues folder in the Document Manager.



4.5 Creating new checklists
At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:

Create a new checklist.

4.5.1 Objective: Create a new checklist

1.

® N o o bk~ w0 DN

In the Document Manager, select CaseWare Audit System Documents | New Master

Documents.

Right-click document NCHKLST New checklist and select Copy.

Expand folders Audit Plans And Procedures — Assets | Cash And Cash Equivalents.

Right-click the Cash And Cash Equivalents folder and select Paste.
Right-click document NCHKLST New checklist and select Properties.

Change the document Number to A.115-2 and Name to Cash Count Checklist.

Click OK.

Double-click document A. 115-2 Cash Count Checklist to open it.

Note: The Document Properties dialog initially opens for newly created checklists.

[I\II'

Document Properties

General Additional Details
Name: [cash Count Checklist x|
Structure Version: |1,0,0 |
Procedure Sign-off Reference
MNotes
Procedure: |Procedure |
Result: |Resu|t |
Conclusion: Conclusion ‘
Response Type: Work Program Responses ~
Conclusion Area: Conclusion & Sign-off ~

Description 1: |

Description 2: |

Description 3: |

[ Completed, no exceptions
Mot possible to complete
[+ No

[v] other

[] Completed with exceptions noted below
[+]ves

[~ My

[+l Incomplete

QK || Cancel ||

Help




9. Under Procedure Response, clear the boxes Not possible to complete and Other.

Procedure Response

Completed, no exceptions Completed with exceptions noted below

[ INot possible to complete [¥]ves
No N/A
[ | other [+] Incomplete
10. Click OK.
Pracedunes AUDIT CONCLUSIONS (haned cn profess_.
Document Guidance
Input Decisment Guidancsq a
| Procedure el Hame Ver M'E:-EM
GEMERAL
1. 3 Deedaut Procedure 100 2212014m [
E | Iadd)
Conclusion
Rigi click 1o adil conchusion|
Completed by
Redawad by

11. Close and save the document.

Results

A new checklist document is created and added to the Cash and Cash Equivalents folder in the
Document Manager.



4.6 Procedures
At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:

Modify existing procedure content.

Insert a new procedure.

Insert a new procedure based on an existing procedure.

Insert a new common procedure that is available in other work programs or checklists.
Delete procedures.

Set procedure availability.

Filter procedures.

4.6.1 Objective: Modify existing procedure content

1.

o o~ w

In the Document Manager, select Audit Plans And Procedures — Assets | Cash And Cash
Equivalents.

Double-click document 140.101 - Cash - Audit procedures to open it.

4 . Cash And Cash Equivalents

8140 Cash and cash equivalents leadsheet
c] 140,101 Cash - Audit procedures
c] 140,110 Bank reconciliation procedures

Select the Filter Procedures tab.

In the Filter Procedures dialog, click OK.

Right-click Analytical procedures and select Modifiable.
Click Yes to change ownership of the procedure.

Note: The procedure changes color to indicate it is modifiable.

Scroll to the end of Analytical procedures.



8. Press Enter to insert a new bullet and type The quick current ratio compared to other years.

Procedure Assert Threshold Ref Name Req | Ver M;‘;f:d
Develop and
document

expectations for
the period-end
cash balances
kased on
information
obtained from
understanding the
entity.
Investigate and
document
significant
variances
between the
expectations
developed and
the actual cash
balances.
Consider the
followeing:

« (Cash and
cash
equivalents
balance
compared to
the previous
period

= The
reasonablene
55 of interest
received on a
month-to-
month or
quarterly bazis

* The quick
current ratio
compared to
other years.

9. Select File | Save or click H to ensure the content library is updated.

Results

The existing procedure content is modified.



4.6.2 Objective: Insert a new procedure

In the Document Manager, select Audit Plans And Procedures — Income Statement |

1.

Revenues.

Double-click document Contract Revenue - Audit Procedures to open it.

Right-click in the empty space under Substantive Procedures and select Insert New

Procedure.

Click OK to add 1 procedure.

In the New Procedure dialog, complete as shown:

Mew Procedure

MName! New Procedure

Industry: j
Grouping: Required Procedures ﬂ Manage

Sub Grouping: None ﬂ Manage
Version: 1.00

Procedure is always required for the work program

[ Procedure is library only
[ Procedure is based on an existing procedure

[ Procedure is available in other wark programs

[ Override procedure response type

oK

Cancel Help

Click OK.

Type Confirm that all variable considerations (for example, royalties, milestone payments)
are included in the transaction price.

Document Guidance

Input Document Guidancey]

Procedure Assert Threshold Ref Name Req | Ver M%:f:d
Basic procedures
R Default v 1.00 123020152

Procedure
a.
Required Procedures
New Procedure rd 1.00 1230/2015@ [sdd)

2 2. _Confirm that all

variable

considerations (e.g
royalites, milestone
payments) are
included in the
tranzaction price Y




Right-click the new procedure and select Assertions.
Select the following check boxes:
e C —Completeness
e E — Existence
e AV — Accuracy / Valuation
10. Select (Hi)gh in the minimum risk assessment threshold drop-down menu. Click OK.
11. Right-click the new procedure and select Procedure Guidance.

12. Type This is a required procedure.

Regquired Procedures

#w 2 _Confrm that all CEARY fHigh Ne'w Procedure ¥ 1.00 12002015 m (sdd)
varabie

conaideralions (8.9
royaies, mieshioe

payments| ane
nciuded in the

D Thin i s
requined
prooedue. §

13. Select File | Save or click H to ensure the content library is updated.
Resulits

A new procedure is inserted.



4.6.3 Objective: Insert a new procedure based on an existing procedure

1. Right-click anywhere on the previously created procedure and select Insert New Procedure.
2. Leave the Number of procedures to insert as 1 and click OK.

In the New Procedure dialog, complete as shown:

=] Mew Procedure >
Name: New Procedure based on existing procedure

Industry: ﬂ
SLL L Required Procedures ﬂ + Manage

Sub Grouping: None ﬂ + Manage
Version: 1.00

[] Procedure is always required for the work program
[[] Procedure is library only

Procedure is based on an existing procedure

[] Procedure is available in other work programs

] Override procedure response type j

OK Cancel Help

4. Click OK.

5. Select New Procedure and click OK.

6. Select File | Save or click H to ensure the content library is updated.
Results
A new procedure based on an existing procedure is inserted.

Note: In your work program or checklist, you can make an existing procedure a common procedure.
Right-click on the procedure, then select Procedure Properties | Procedure is available in other work
programs.



4.6.4 Objective: Insert a new common procedure that is available in other work
programs or checklists
1. Right-click anywhere on the previously created procedure and select Insert New Procedure.
2. Leave the Number of procedures to insert as 1 and click OK.

In the New Procedure dialog, complete as shown:

|=| Mew Procedure >
Mame: MNew Procedure that is available in other work programs

Industry: ﬂ
Grouping: Required Procedures M|+ Manage

Sub Grouping: None j + Manage
Version: 1.00

[]1 Procedure is always required for the work program
[1 Procedure is library only

[1 Procedure is based on an existing procedure

|i¥} Procedure is available in other work programs |

[] Override procedure response type

OK Cancel

Note: In a checklist, select the option Procedure is available in other checklists.
4. Click OK.
5. Select New Procedure and click OK.
6. Select File | Save or click H to ensure the content library is updated.

Results

A common procedure that is available in other programs or checklists is inserted.

Modifications to a common procedure are automatically applied to all other documents containing the
procedure. Template authors only need to edit the procedure once and all instances will automatically
update the next time the document is opened.

Help




Notes:

¢ In template mode, icons are added next to common procedures to indicate that changes to
those procedures will affect other documents.

$ 2 Analytical procedures

[@ Develop and document expectati
property, plant and eguipment lev]
\‘\ obtained from understanding the

" !
Procedure is available in other documents.
Changes to the procedure description will

be reflected in other documents.
b o

o When you add or modify unique conditions to a common procedure, you can choose to apply
the conditions globally or locally.

WARNIMG X

Apply these changes to all instances of this procedure found in other
documents?

If no, the modified conditions will only apply to the procedure in this
document,

Yes Mo Cancel

o When you apply unique conditions to a common procedure at the document level, the
procedure condition icon will display a red dot .

¢ You can also revert unique conditions in a common procedure back to the globally defined
conditions.

. Edit Procedure Conditicns o4
Eshavouc: [Cumom )

[Insert V:Ethis procedure when all | conditions are met

' | 1.101 Property, plant and equi || 1. Significant estimales V s | Completed, no axceptions W

+ Response Condition <+ Calculation Condition

Rewvert O Cancal




4.6.5 Objective: Delete procedures

1. On the navigation bar, select Procedures | Delete Procedures.

2. Select the check box beside New Procedure based on existing procedure.
] Delete procedures - o HE

Select from the following:

—|- 123 Basic procedures QK
L3 None

—-23 Required Procedures Cancel
= None:

-] "New Procedure based on existing procedure”

3. Click OK.
4. Click Yes to confirm deletion.
5. Select File | Save or click H to ensure the content library is updated.
6. Close the document.
Resulits

The selected procedure is deleted.

Notes:
e You can only delete firm created procedures.

¢ Deleting a common procedure from the Content Library in one document will automatically
remove all instances of the same procedure in other documents.



4.6.6 Objective: Set procedure availability

1. In the Document Manager, select Audit Plans And Procedures — Assets | Cash And Cash
Equivalents.

Double-click document 140.101 Cash — Audit procedures to open it.

Select Author | Set Procedure Availability....

In the Select Procedures dialog, select Translation from the Available column.
Click OK.

Select Procedures | Insert New Procedure from Content Library to view the library.

R e

Note: There is a Common column to help you identify common procedures. If a common
procedure is not relevant in a document, unselect the common procedure to prevent it from
being inserted incorrectly.

Aailable lhcluded  Mame Commion | Industry Code
-| & SUBSTANTIVE PROCEDURES - BASIC
-| Mone
Analytical procedures
Palicies
Schedule ]
Additians []

Click Cancel after viewing it.

8. Close and save the document.

Results

The selected procedure availability is set for users.



4.6.7 Objective: Filter procedures

1.
Equivalents.

Double-click document 140.101 Cash — Audit procedures to open it.

Select Filter Procedures.
@ Y 140.101 Cash - Audit procedures

In the Document Manager, select Audit Plans And Procedures — Assets | Cash And Cash

Document Procedures Areas Author Opticns Hel
“._;‘:I - i %‘l’ o - t_j - |-f}| - j E 1; @ - Al - 3'“" _I
All Risk Report Detailed Audit Response Objectives Filter Procedures AUDITC
Current Balance Prior Balance
Planning - Owverall
Final - - - Performance

4. Select None under the columns Assertion, Thresholds and Linkages.

Filter Procedures

[,

None

None

~  Accuracy- A

~ Valuation -V

A SUBSTANTIVE PROCEDURES -.. MNone
~ Completeness - C +~ High ~ Risks
~ Existence-E ~ Medium ~ Controls
~ Low ~ Reportable items

~ lIssues

Click OK.
Close the document.

Results

Any procedures that belong to the deselected categories are no longer displayed in the document.




4.7 Complete the financial statement areas worksheet
At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:

e Generate a new financial statement areas worksheet.
e Customize parts of the worksheet including:
o Sort account descriptions or group numbers
o Add a subtotal
o Add atitle

e Complete the W/P ref. and Business Cycle columns of the worksheet.

4.7.1 Objective: Generate a new financial statement areas worksheet
1. In the Document Manager, select Risk Assessment | Identify Financial Statement
Assertions and Underlying Business Process.
2. Double-click document FSA. Financial statement areas worksheet (Core) to open it.

4 Risk Assessment
4 | Identify Financial Statement Assertions and Underlying Business Process
g(_f] F5A. Financial statement areas worksheet (Core)
Risk Assessment Procedures
Understanding the Entity

Click 4 to open the Configure options.

4. Inthe top pane, scroll down and set the Mask level to 2.

Allow column headings to be modified: O

Allow assurance types to be modified O

Sort items when column headings selected:

Lock both refresh and generate options in engagement files ';"
Reset Options

| Pl

Refresh: Changes are applied upon refreshing or regenerating the FSA Regenerate: Changes are applied upon regenerate 14
Include zero amount

Planning: Current Year - Sort by Col: 4 Group Number v
Grouping: Lis -
Include From: -
Include To: -|
Mask Level: 2 - DT

Include Parent Numbers [w]

5. Click Z3 to Generate.



6. Click Yes in the Warning dialog.

[ Warming et

Regeneration will delete all details you have entered related to each F34. Do you
want to continue?

e [

Results

The newly generated FSA document displays. Under column Relevant Assertions, the previously six set

up assertions are displayed.

Accountsidisclosures or Planning Unrecorded Materiality Relewant
other matters considered Balance as AJEs assessment Assertions
significant of
1243002015

Entity level and IT general

weaknesses and controls Al
A Cash and cash eguivalents = = = N CEAVPDM
B Short term investments - - - O CEAVPDM

4.7.2 Objective: Customize parts of the worksheet

There are three parts of the worksheet that can be customized:

e Sort account descriptions and group numbers.
e Add a subtotal.
e Add atitle.

4.7.2.1 Sort account descriptions and group numbers

1. Right-click on a heading under Accounts/disclosures or other matters considered
significant.



2. Select Sort | Ascending to sort the description in ascending order.

Refresh

Change Assertions...

Insert Business Cycle...

Display Materiality Details
Display Mon-Material ltems
Display Hidden tems

Display All Assertion Rows

Audit Area
Titles
Totals

Insert Mew ltem

Materiality
assessment

Delete Item
Hide ltem a
Sort 3 Manual...
Insert Mew Reference %?Scendmg
Delete Reference escending
Areas " - 1 B
Edit... r 1o O C
Annotate Reference - Reference 1

- D C
Annotate - Annotate
Add Mew Issue - L] c

3. Right-click on any heading under Group Number.
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4. Select Sort | Ascending to sort the rows by group number.

+ 20
+ 20 1
H20 2
+H20. 3
+ 33

110

Results

<] <]

Refresh

Change Assertions...

Insert Business Cycle...

Display Materiality Details
Display Men-Material ltems

Display Hidden ltemns

Display All Assertion Rows

Audit Area

Titles

Totals

Insert Mew ltermn
Delete ltem
Hide [tem

Sort

Insert Mew Reference

Delete Reference
Areas

Edit...

Annotate Reference - Reference 1

Annotate - Annotate

Add New lssue

The account descriptions and group numbers are sorted in ascending order.



4.7.2.2 Add a subtotal

1. Right-click on the last asset row, for example 140 Cash and cash equivalents, and select
Totals | Insert New Subtotal.

nvestment n associates

Investment m jpint ventures

Receivables, non-current

Refresh

Change Assertions...

Insert Business Cycle...

N Display Materiality Details
E Display Non-Material [tems

Raw materials ¥ | Display Hidden ltems

Work in progress Display All Assertion Rows

Finished goods Audit Area

Merchandise Titles

Production supplies Totals

Dther inventories for sale

—_—————————————"

Insert New ltem

[

LT E ]

LI L L

LEAW
CEAV
CEAWV
CEAV

CEAV

CEAV
CEAV
CEAV

| CEAV
Insert Mew Total

© © 0 O ¢

© © 0 O

Insert New Subtotal

Edit Total/Subtotal

Other Delete Hem
sy Hide e Delete Total/Subtotal
Other financials assets,
current Sort CEAV
Recemvables, current insest Mew Reference ] Ay '+ ]
Delete Reference
Trade receivables Areas L] CEAV o
Other receivables Edit... [] CEAV [+)
Prepayments Annotate - Annotate ] o ¥
Cash and cash equivalents Annotate Reference - Reference 1 H Ay o
Add MNew lssue
2. Type Assets in the dialog box and click OK.
LB MNew Subtotal
Enter new subtotal name oK
Assetsi
Cancel

3. Select the following items:

Prepayments

Other financial assets, current

Receivables, current

Cash and cash equivalents




5. Click OK,
Results

A new subtotal is added to the document.

4.7.2.3 Add a title
1. Right-click on the newly created row Assets and select Titles | Insert New Title.

Cash and cash equivalents - - - -

Ass ets| - -

Refresh
Equity - -

) Change Assertions...
Equity - Shares = =
Insert Business Cycle..,

Equity - Reserves v Display materiality details - B
Equity - Treasury v Display Mon-Material ltems - -

Equity - Retained ez ¥ Display Hidden ltems - -

Equity - Other Titles 3 Insert Mew Title
Insert Mew Subtitle
Delete Title/Subtitle

Borrowings, non-cu Totals »

Interest-bearing bor Insert New Trem
nnn-rirrant f

2. Type Liabilities and Equity in the dialog box and click OK.

+ 130. 1 Trade receivables - -
# 130, 2 Other receivables - -
+ 135 Prepayments - -
+ 140 Cash and cash equivalents - -

| Asszets - -

I Liabilties and Equity I

+ 200 Equity - -

Results

A new title is added to the document.



4.7.3 Objective: Complete the W/P ref. and Business cycle columns

4.7.3.1 WIP ref.
1. On the Trade receivables row, double-click the reference button I@under the W/P ref. column.

Note: Click on the empty space just left of the Group Number to highlight the entire row. You can
scroll across the table without losing your place.

current

+ 130 Feceivables, current -

Trade receivables

Other receivables

&= 125 Proanauvmantc -
2. Select the New Reference drop-down meu.
Expand folders Audit Plans and Procedures — Assets | Receivables, Current.

Select document 130.101 Accounts receivable, trade and other — Audit procedures.

Annotation 28
MNumber Description
Mew Reference Mew Reference | |
' =) Other Financial Assets. Current E
4 [ ) Receivables, Cument
4130 Recaivables, cunent leadshest
A130. 1 Trade recervables
130, 2 Other recevables
| 130100 Aizcounks recervable, rade and ulh..l
) 120770 Accounts recenable conhrmahion - .
| 1300120 Wwioksheet - Recervablas, curent -
| 130125 Wwiorksheet - Recervablas, curent -
) Prepayments
[ Cash And Cash Equivalents
jAudit Plans And Procedures - Li...
Label —j#wudit Plans And Procedures - In...
MNew Manual Reference L Q) Completion Documents — =
5. Click OK.,

Results

The W/P ref. column is completed.



4.7.3.2 Business cycle

1. Right-click row 130 Receivables, current and select Insert Business Cycle.

2. Select Revenue, Receivables, Receipts (RRR) and click OK.

Please select Business Cycle to insert:
[WFinancial Reporting ( FR)
[“linvestments (INS )

[linventory ( INV)
[“1Payroll { PAY )

["1Purchases, Payables, Payments ( PPP )
Revenue, Receivables, Receipts (RRR )

3. Close and save the document.

Results

The business cycle column is completed.



5 Practice Set — Risks, controls and reportable_
items

5.1 Add a risk

At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:
e Enable risks.
e Create a predefined common risk in the master template.
e Import risks from CaseWare RiskSpace.
¢ Link audit procedures from the mini risk report.

e Link audit procedures to the risk from the procedure.

5.1.1 Objective: Enable risks

1. In the Document Manager, select CaseWare Audit System Documents | Control Documents.
2. Double-click document AO — General options to open it.
Select the Risks tab.

General options

Product Settings

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

Materiality

Assertions

Work Programs and Checklists
Waork Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Repaortable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

4. Ensure the Enable Risks check box is selected.

Enable Risks:
Click "General Risk Options" to configure risks: [General Risk Clptiuna...]

5. Leave document AO — General Options open.

Result

The Risks feature is enabled.



5.1.2 Objective: Create a predefined common risk in the master template

This practice set teaches you to create three risks in the master template.
Risk 1

1. In the Document Manager, select Audit Plans And Procedures — Income Statement |
Revenues.

2. Double-click document 1500.101 Revenues - Audit procedures to open it.
General
Audit
Planning
Risk Assessment
Risk Response
Audit Plans And Procedures - Assets
Audit Plans And Procedures - Liabilities And Equity
4 | Audit Plans And Procedures - Income Statement
Analyticals
4 | Revenues
,._I}IEEID Revenues leadsheet
‘(_fl 1500101 Revenues - Audit procedures
|€]1500.120 Worksheet - Revenues - Substantive analytical procedures
€] 1500125 Worksheet - Revenues - Substantive sampling - Tests of detail
Operating Expenses
Other Income
Other Expenses

3. Click the New Risk icon 0
Click E and select Create New (item).

In the Risk Identification area, type the following:
¢ New risk name: Firm - sales in wrong period
¢ New risk description: Sales recorded in the wrong period
¢ What Could Go Wrong: Revenue and income are materially over/understated
Note: The Source/Reference field is automatically populated.
6. Click the edit icon next to Financial Statement Area.

Select the box beside Revenues and select the C for Completeness and E for Existence
assertion.

Note: If you do not see the assertion M, refer to Practice Set 3.1.3.

[ N W R T ] . E iy v FL) M
Revenues A VI|PD M
Click OK.

Select Revenues, Receivables, and Receipts for the Business Cycle Affected.



10. Click OK. The Risk dialog will be populated with the following fields:
Financial Statement Areas Revenues | CE
Business Cycles Affected Revenue, Receivables, Receipts

11. Inthe Assessment area, select the following options:
e Likelihood to occur:  Medium

¢ Monetary Impact: Low

¢ Inherent Risk: Medium
e Control of Risk: Medium
¢ RMM: Medium

¢ Significant Risk
¢ Roll forward

Note: The Addressed field is automatically populated with the documents associated with the
Revenues FSA.

12. Inthe Risk Response area, select Audit has properly addressed this risk.
13. Click Apply.

Risk 2
1. Click E and select Create New (item).
2. Inthe Risk Identification area, type the following:

¢ New risk name: Fictitious Sales
¢ New risk description: Recorded sales are unsupported or fictitious

e What Could Go Wrong: Revenue and income are materially over/understated

3. Select Fraud in the Financial Statement Areas dialog. Click OK.

Financial Statement Areas n

Entity Level 2

[J Business
Fraud

Financial Areas

Non-material

[J Property, plant and equipment C | E| AVIIPD RO TA

L] Property, plant and eguipment - cost C | E| AVIIPD RO TA

[ Property, plant and equipment - depre... c | El AV PD RO!lTA

O Investment property C E AV PD RO TA

OK Cancel



4. Select Revenues, Receivables, and Receipts for the Business Cycle Affected.
5. Inthe Assessment area, select the following options:
¢ Likelihood to occur: Medium

¢ Monetary Impact: Medium
¢ Inherent Risk: High
¢ Control of Risk: High
e RMM: High

¢ Significant Risk
¢ Procedures other than Substantive
6. Inthe Risk Response area, select Audit has properly addressed this risk.

« DUSINESS LYCIEs AllECLEU HEVENUE, RECSIVAaDIEs,
Control ¢ Receipts
Edit association Assessment
Reportable Item ¢ Likelinood to occur Medium
Edit association Monetary Impact Medium
Inherent Risk High
Control Risk High
RMM High
Significant Risk
Procedures other than Substantive
Roll forward O

Risk Response

Management Response

Risk treatment/mitigation

Audit Response

Audit has properly addressed this risk Yes

Addressed 1500
1500101
1500.120
1500125

Associations

Confrol < Reportable ltem ¢

7. Click Apply.

Risk 3
1. Click E and select Create New (item).



2. In the Risk Identification area, type the following:
¢ New risk name: Revenue Recognition
¢ New risk description: Personnel fail to follow revenue recognition policies

e What Could Go Wrong: Revenue and income are materially over/understated

Risk Identification

Revenue Recognition
Personnel fail to follow revenue recognition policies
Revenue and income are materially over/understated

3. Select the box beside Revenues and select the C for Completeness, E for Existence and A for
Accuracy assertion. Click OK.

Revenues v IpDIM

4. Inthe Assessment area, select the following options:
e Likelihood to occur:  Medium

e Monetary Impact: Low

¢ Inherent Risk: Medium
e Control of Risk: Medium
e RMM: Medium

¢ Significant Risk
¢ Roll forward



5. Inthe Risk Response area, select Audit has properly addressed this risk.

H = Revenue Recognition * lll

Control & “ Business Cycles Affected A
Edit association Assessment
Reportable Item ¢ Likelihood to occur Medium
Edit association Monetary Impact Low
Inherent Risk Medium
Control Risk Medium
RMM Medium
Significant Risk
Procedures other than Substantive O
Roll forward
Risk Response
Management Response
Risk treatment/mitigation v
Audit Response
Audit has properly addressed this risk Yes
Addressed 1500
1500.101
1500.120
1500.125
Associations
Control ¢ Reportable ltem ¢
W
OK Apply Cancel Help

6. Click OK.,

Results

The three new risks are saved and displayed at the top of the document in the mini risk report. The risks
also shown in the Risk Report document, which is accessible by selecting the Risk Report tab.



5.1.3 Objective: Import Risks from CaseWare RiskSpace

1. In the Document Manager, select Audit Plans And Procedures — Income Statement |
Revenues.

2. Double-click document 1500.101 Revenues - Audit procedures to open it.

Click the New Risk drop-down menu button '0' T | and select CaseWare Working Papers RiskSpace.

Type foreign in the search bar and select the risk Sales in foreign currency are not
translated accurately to import.

Click OK to import the risk.

o

Likelihood to occur:
Monetary Impact:
Inherent Risk:
Control of Risk:
RMM:

Significant Risk

Roll forward

In the Assessment area, select the following options:

N/A
N/A
High
Medium

Medium

7. Inthe Risk Response area, select Audit has properly addressed this risk.
8. Click OK,

Results

The risk from CaseWare RiskSpace is imported to the document.



5.1.4 Objective: Link audit procedures from the mini risk report

1.

In the Document Manager, select Audit Plans And Procedures — Income Statement |
Revenues.

Double-click document 1500.101 Revenues - Audit procedures to open it.

Select the new risk Firm — sales in wrong period.

Click the Link procedures menu button at to launch the Procedures dialog.

|¢] Procedures = 238
Select the following procedures to link to this |:0K
= =3 A, SUBSTANTIVE PROCEDURES - BASIC -

=3 None | Cancel

[0 "Analytical procedures”
-0 "Composition of revenue’
=[] "Revenue - completeness”
i~ a. Ask personnel responsible for or fa...
[0 b. Select a sample of shipping docume...
i~ c. Assess the possibility of a materia...

LM A W a rsterisl rricckatemeant caiild s

V| Preview content

L Lt |

Select the following check boxes to mark the relevant procedures:

¢ Analytical procedures
¢ Revenue - completeness
¢ Revenue - existence, accuracy and valuation

Sales returns

Revenue - cut-off




4. Click OK.

i,

* Firm - sales in wrong period < >

Control & « Monetary Impact Low S
Edit association Inherent Risk Medium
Reportable Item & Control Risk Medium
Edit association RMM Medium
Significant Risk
Procedures other than Substantive O
Roll forward

Risk Response

Management Response

Risk treatment/mitigation v
Audit Response
Audit has properly addressed this risk Yes
Addressed 1500101
Analytical procedures
Revenue - completeness
Revenue - existence,
accuracy and valuation
Sales refurns
Revenue - cut-off
1500.125
Associations
Confrol & Reportable ltem &
(V]
OK Cancel Help

Results

The linked procedures are added to the Risk dialog.

You can also access the linked procedures in the Risk Report document by selecting the Risk Report
tab.



5.1.5 Objective: Link audit procedures to the risk from the procedure

1. Place the cursor anywhere on Analytical procedures.

2. Click ! to launch the Risk dialog.

Document  Procedures  Areas Author
@~ & 2l | O~||0O~- @
All Risk Report Detailed Audit Rs

3. Select the risk Firm — sales in wrong period to link it to the procedure.

-

€] Risks
Select the risks to link to this pmced.url:

] i ol in wrong period

| Preview content

Cancel

-
Lo ]
[_conca) ]

FIrm - BAEE 1 W Rong Serisd FMetust I ESTE BRE T EEIE SvEnN0M BINeS
4 | b
1 |
]
L
4. Click OK.
19. Cut-off A (Med)ium @ Cut-off - 1.00  S30:2015

a. Document the entity’s procedures to ensure
sales are recorded in the correct accounting
period at period-end.

b. Select sales invoices and credit memos, both
before and after the period-end, and ensure the
transactions were recorded in the appropriate
period.

@ In determining the extent of this procedure,
consider the work performed in other parts
of the transaclion stream, such as accounts
recsivable

5. Close and save the document.

Results

! Revenue Recoqnition

! Sales in wrong pericd

The procedure is linked to the selected risk. The risk displays as a link next to the procedure.

Note: You need to manually link each procedure to the selected risk.



5.2 Defining risk report views
At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:

o Define filters and display options for the risk report.

5.2.1 Objective: Define filters and display options for the risk report

1. In the Document Manager, select Risk Assessment | Risk Assessment Summary.
2. Open document 520E. Risk report (Core).

4 . Risk Assessment
» . Identify Financial Statement Assertions and Underlying Business Process
» . Risk Assessment Procedures
. Understanding the Entity
» | Identified Risks
¢ . Risks per Business Cycle
. Control Design
» . Implementation of Controls/Walkthrough Procedures
¢ . Summary of Control Risk
4 | Risk Assessment Summary
,Q 520E. 6 Risk report - Risk assessment
|c] 520E. Risk report (Core)

3. Select the following options:

e Categories: Fraud (P)
¢ Date Identified: New Today
o Materiality: Materiality assessment
8- 0- 8- af- I F ol DB &@
< Viaw Dofmult View = Dataalt
Catogories: Frawd [P . Pogential Fliks: All
Dhate blaatifiad Haw Taday b Blussingss Cyclhes; an
Risk Determination: Al . Maseriality: Miaierialicy assessment

FisRniTins il -




4. Right-click the column headings to select the columns you want to hide.
Edit Risk

Delete Risk

Dates ¥

Date |dentified

Risk Description

What Can Go Wrong

Assertions - P, C, E, AV, PD, RO, TA, M
Likelihood to occur

Monetary Impact

Inherent Risk

Significant Risk

Management Response

Risk treatment/mitigation

Control Risk

RMM

Procedures other than Substantive
Audit Response

Reportable ltem

Source/Reference
Addressed/Reference

Audit has properly addressed this risk

R T T S

Sort »
Reset Column Width

5. Click the ruler icon ™ to resize the column headings.

This is an introduction section; you can enter a customized introduction, and also change the paragraph styles.
To show/hide this section, go to: "Oplions = Display Custom Introduction and Conclusion™

1
Assertions -P, C,E, A,V Inherent Risk Assessment
Risk Name Date Risk Description What Can Go Wrong Assets | Liabilities | Income |Likelihood| Monetary | Inherent | Significant
Identified to occur Impact Risk Risk

This is a conclusion section; you can enter a customized conclusion, and also change the paragraph styles
To show/hide this section, go to: "Oplions = Display Custom Introduction and Conclusion™
1

6. Select Document | Save View.

Report Options  Help

Generate

Delete View

7. Type Training View in the box and click OK.



8. Select Default View from the View drop-down menu.
Document  Report  Options  Help

0-0-0 ad-|daFel dRy
[ % View: Training View -
Detaurtview g
Categories: Pr!nt UEEW 1 Potentia
Date ldentified: P"r.“ .‘Jlew.z = Busines:
Training View
Risk Determination: | pisk Identification Material
Assertions: Fraud Risk by
Business Risk
[ no) Risk Assessment (Work Programs) - e PR R

Results

The new view is saved and added to the View drop-down menu.

5.3 Add a control

At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:
e Enable controls.

e Customize the controls dialog options.

5.3.1 Objective: Enable controls

1. In the Document Manager, select CaseWare Audit System Documents | Control Documents.

2. Open document AO — General options and select Controls.

General options

Product Settings

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

Materiality

Assertions

Waork Programs and Checklists

Work Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet
3. Ensure the Enable Controls check box is selected.

Enable Controls: |

Click "General Control Options” to configure controls: [General Control Optionﬁ...]

Note: If risks are disabled, controls are also disabled, which means this check box cannot be
selected.

4. Leave document AO — General options open.



Results

The Controls feature is enabled.

5.3.2 Objective: Customize the controls dialog options

1. In document AO - General Options, select Controls.

General options

Product Settings

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

hateriality

Assertions

Work Programs and Checklists

Work Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable ltems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet
Click the General Control Options button.
Select Identifier to enable the field.

Type, both to add another list item after Manual, Automatic.

I |Identifier | |
|Eusmess Cycles Affected |
O
|Ind|red: Contraol |

I |Mamua| / Automatic ||Mamua|, Automatic, Both

O

|Eva|uatiun Results

|Contro| is Effective

|Key Caontrol

|
|
|
|Suppcr‘ting Working Papers |
O
|Test Contraol |

|Suppor‘ting Working Papers |

|Contro| Design |
O

[prevent |[r

Detect |[o

oK H Cancel ||

Help




5. Click OK.

X

New control name * < >

Risk ¢
Edit association

Reportable ltem ¢
Edit association

Control Documentation

New control name

New control description
Financial Statement Areas
Business Cycles Affected

Identifier

Attributes
Indirect Control

Manual / Automatic

Key Control

Evaluate Control Environment
Supporting Working Papers
Control Design

Evaluation Results
Roll forward

Tests of Control

Manual
Automatic
Both

Test Control
Supporting Working Papers
Control is Effective

Associations

Risk &

Reportable Item &

Results

OK Apply

The Control dialog is customized based on the options above.

Cancel Help



5.4 Add reportable items

At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:
e Enable reportable items.

e Customize control options.

5.3.1 Objective: Enable reportable items

1. In the Document Manager, select CaseWare Audit System Documents | Control Documents.

2. Open document AO — General options and select Controls.

General options

Engagement Profiles

All Forms

Materiality

Work Programs and Checklists
Work Programs

Optimiser

Risks

Controls

Reportable tems

Financial Statement Areas Worksheet

3. Ensure the Enable Reportable Items box is selected.

Enable Reportable kEems: v

Click "Reportable Fem Options” to configure reportable items: Reporiable kem (}ptionﬁ...]

Results

The reportable items feature is enabled.



5.3.1 Objective: Customize reportable items

1
2
3.
4

In document AO - General Options, select Controls.

Click the General Reportable Items Options button.

Select Status to enable the field.

In the Ratings field, click +.

E Reportable Item Fields
[ | dentifier

Status.

|Observaﬁun/Weakness

Source

|Weakness

‘Addressed

|Management Response

|Reascm

‘ Classification

|Yaar Identified

|
|
| ‘Rating
|
|

5.
Results

Bl Letters
|Management letter report | [ |Letter 6
|Repor't for those charged with governance | [ |Letter 7
|\nterna\ Audit | O |Letter &
[ |Letter 4 [ |Letter 9
[ |Letter 5 [ |Letter 10
Ratings Statuses
‘S\'gm’ﬁcant VI | + | |0pen V‘ ‘ + | | - |
Classifications
‘ Misstatements Vl | + | | - ‘
oK H Cancel || Help

In the New Rating dialog, type High.,

The reportable items dialog is customized based on the selected options.

X

= Hew reportable item name * < 3

Risk & « Reportable Item ~
Edit association New reportable item name
Control & Observation/Weakness
Edit association Weakness
Other reportable item ]
Source AOQ
Addressed
Status \ v |
Recommendation and Response
Inciude in the following letters:
New reportable item name * #
Management Response
Reason
Roll forward
Letter Structure
Year |dentified Current Year
Classification \ v
Rating I
Grouping Significant )
Procedural/Minor Administrative
Associations Hriederate
Risk & gt?w::r I
(¥
OK Apply Cancel Help




6 Practice Set — Optimiser

6.1 Create an Optimiser checklist
At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:

e Create a new Optimiser checklist document.
¢ Insert new procedures.

¢ Define a procedure action to:

e Delete risks.
e Delete documents.

¢ Delete procedures.

6.1.1 Objective: Create a new Optimiser checklist document

1.

7.
8.

In the Document Manager, select CaseWare Audit System Documents | New Master
Documents.

Right-click document NCHKLST New checklist and select Copy.
Expand folders Planning | Overall Audit Strategy.
Right-click the Overall Audit Strategy folder and select Paste.

Note: It is recommended that you add Optimiser checklist documents near the top of the
document manager / workflow panel or in an area from where users start their engagements.
This ensures that only the relevant documents and procedures are completed for the
engagement.

Right-click the new document and select Properties.

Change the document Number to OPT1 and document Name to Optimiser checklist.

CaseView Document Properties - OPT1 Optimizer chiecklist ﬁ

General | Roles i Headings | lssues His.tnr:,ri Template i Synchronization

Mumber OPT1
Mame: Optimiser checklist
Identifier 00000101

Click OK.

Open the new document.



9. In the Document Properties dialog, under the Procedure Response area, select the options No,

Yes and N/A.
[ | completed, no exceptions [ | completed with exceptions noted below
[ | Mot possible to complete [+ ves
No N/A
[ other
10. Click OK,
Results

A new Optimiser checklist is created and added to the Document Manager.



6.1.2 Objective: Insert new procedures

1. Right-click anywhere on the first procedure and select Insert New Procedure.

2. Change the Number of procedures to insert to 3 and click OK.

Insert itemns (Up to 99) >

Mumber of procedures to insert? oK

=
" Cancel

3. Type Risks as the Name of the procedure and click OK.

Note: When adding more than one procedure, procedures will have the same name followed by
a number.

|5 Mew Procedure ﬂ

—— — — —

MName: Risks

Industry: | Mone

Grouping: GEMERAL - ;-_r_] | Manage

4. Type the Procedure and Name texts as follows:

Procedure Name
2. Does the client include sales in foreign currencies? Risks
3. Does the client maintain significant physical cash on Documents
hand?
4. Does the client require foreign translation? Procedures
Procedura | Ref | Hame Ver Modified
| ] Date
GENERAL
h Pt | Default Procedure 100 ZZ12014m
.. |
2 _Does the clientinclude sales in foreign Risks 100 2I212014=
currendes?
3. _Does the client maintain significant physical cash Documents 100 2212014 =
on hiand?]
4 Does the client require foreign translation 7y Procedures [f0f 2212094m

5. Save the document.
Results

The new procedures are inserted into the new Optimiser checklist.



6.1.3 Objective: Define procedure actions

6.1.3.1 Delete risks

1.
2.

Right-click the Risks procedure and select Edit Procedure Action.

Select Custom from the Behavior drop-down menu.

=| Edit Procedure Action [

(1w

Behaviour:

W

Recommend actions when the response is:

Custom

OK

I

Cancel

I

Help

L9

Select No from the Recommend actions when the response is drop-down menu.

-

Edit Procedure Action

[

e

Behaviour:

Recommend actions when the response is:

Custom

I~ |

1

Yes

I

Cancel

I

Help ]

L9

IMAA

Click the Delete Risks button E] to choose from the pre-populated risks in the

master template.

a

=| Edit Procedure Achon

| Mol |
Behaviour: Custom v
Recommend actions when the response is: Mo it

Mo "




5. Select the risk to delete and click OK.

Select Risks X I
Available

[Fictitious Sales Select All
[JFirm - sales in wrong period

[JRevenue Recognition Deselect All

Sales in foreign currency are not translated a

6. Click OK in the Edit Procedure Action dialog.

7. Close and save the document.

Results

The selected risk is deleted from the Risk procedure, which is saved to the Optimiser checklist document.



6.1.3.2 Delete documents

1.

® N o o &

10.
11.
12.

Results

In the Document Manager, select Audit Plans And Procedures — Assets | Cash And Cash
Equivalents.

Right-click document 140.115 Cash count procedures and select Tags.

Type CashOnHand in the new tag box and click + on the right side of the dialog.

Tags

New
CashOnHand| !

[
-

Unassigned

Audit Condensed owd110 o120 CWo210

CWio220 CW0310 CWio320 CW0400 CW0500
CW0e00 o700 owlE10 ow320 o830 o840
o910 owd920 owl010 owl020 owl030 CW1100
owl 200 owl300

Close the Tags dialog by clicking on the x at the top right corner of the dialog.

Open document OPT1 Optimiser checklist by selecting Planning | Overall Audit Strategy.
Right-click the Documents procedure and select Edit Procedure Action.

Select Custom from the Behavior drop-down menu.

Select No from the Recommend actions when the response is drop-down menu.

Select with any of the following tags from the Delete documents drop-down menu.

Click on the + part of the CashOnHand tag in the Tags dialog. Click OK.

Click OK in the Edit Procedure Action dialog.

Close and save the document.

The selected tag is deleted from the Documents procedure, which is saved to the Optimiser checklist
document.

Note: When the user opens any work program document in the engagement file, the Audit Optimiser
program removes specific procedures based on the answers in the Optimiser checklist document.



6.1.3.3 Delete work program procedures

1. In the Document Manager, select Audit Plans And Procedures — Assets | Cash And Cash
Equivalents.

Open document 140.101 Cash - Audit procedures.

Right-click procedure 12 Translation and select Tag Procedures.

12, Translation AV Defawit { Low )

Ensure all cas[’
balances in ot
have been tran: Tag Procedures

appropriate pes
exchange rate. Moditiable
Bold

Procedure Properties

17 Arenuntinn nnl

4. Type Translation in the new tag box and click + on the right side of the dialog.

( Tags I,&,r

rs

Default | Previous | HNext |

Hew
Translation| +
Unassigned 3

- audit | condensed Fewd110 )i ew0120 ) - ow0210 ) (- owi220

Fowd30 )0 w0320 00 cw0400 (- ew0500 )| ew0E00 (- cw0700

Fowd310 )0 w0320 ) ow0B30 (- ow0340 ) ew0910 ) cw0920

Fow 1010 )i ew 1020 )+ cw1030 (- ow1100 )+ ew1200 )|+ cwi1300 il

L A

Close the Tags dialog by clicking on the x at the top right corner of the dialog.
Select Options | Display Procedure Tags to view tags.
To view tags, select from the Options menu, Display Procedure Tags.

Close and save document 140.101 Cash - Audit procedures.

© © N o a

Return to document OPT1 Optimiser checklist by selecting Planning | Overall Audit
Strategy.

10. Right-click the Procedures procedure and select Edit Procedure Action.

11. Select Custom from the Behavior drop-down menu.

12. Select No from the Recommend actions when the response is drop-down menu.

13. Select with any of the following tags from the Delete procedures drop-down menu.

14. Click on the + part of the Translation tag in the Tags dialog. Click OK.

15. Select N/A from the Recommend actions when the response is drop-down menu.
Note: You can define multiple procedure actions for any checklist procedure.

16. Select with any of the following tags from the Delete procedures drop-down menu.

17. Click on the + part of the Translation tag in the Tags dialog. Click OK.

18. Click OK in the Edit Procedure Action dialog.

19. Close and save the document.



Results:
The selected tag is deleted from the Procedures procedure, which is saved to the Optimiser checklist
document.

To access the Author's Action Report, select Author | Author’s Action Report.

Procedures

Documents Controls.

Procedure Name

Procedure Short Name Associated

Tag

1.Default Procedure__|N/A /s i/ i/ i/ hra /s i/ i/ /A /A
1a I ) v/ /2 i/ /A ) v/ /2 /A /A
1 [Firm 2.Risks o [Delete procedures v/ Delete documents A A [+ Sales in foreign v/ /s /A /A
without any of the without any of the currency are not
[fallowing tags [fallowing tags translated accurately
1 [Firm 5 Documents o [Delete procedures v/ [Delete documents with |cashonhand [[140.115] Cash count W/a v/ /e /A /A
without any of the any of the following tags lprocedures
[following tags
1 [Firm 4 Procedures o [Delete procedures with |Transiation [Delete documents /A A /s v/ /e /A /A
lany of the following tags without any of the
[Followiing tags
A [Delete procedures with |Transiation [Delete documents /A A /A /A /e /A /A
lany of the following tags without any of the
[Following tags




7 Practice Set — Content management

7.1 Content management
At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:

e Tag a document as required.
e Manage procedure content updates to client files.

e Manage document updates to client files.

7.1.1 Objective: Tag a document as required

1. In the Document Manager, select Planning | Materiality.
2. Right-click document 420. Materiality (Core) and click Tags.

Click on the + part of the CWI_REQ_TAG tag in the Tags dialog to tag the document as

Required.

¢ 428, Worksheet - Selecting an auditor's expert CWo40! Tags

(€] 430. Owerall audit strategy (Core) awoz1i -

(€] 430c. Owerall audit strategy (Core) awoz2i CW0O000 )| CW0001 )| CW0110) - CW0120)( + OW0210
(€] 43s. Audit planning letter (Those charged with governance) w2010 CW0220 ) CWO310) - w0315 )| - CWD320 1 - CW0400
[F430. Independence confirmation letter (listed entities) owlett SIS0 GEENNONN) (RN Goulliilil) e
€] 443, Worksheet - Understanding and evaluation of a service org Cwaosol $§g $g§;g g?i‘:g g?i:g $?2$
l;:(‘I:I]ﬁ: ‘g:erlkshee;t Ulnderstandmg and evaluation of the internal x?‘lﬁz CW1100) (- CW1200)( - CW1300) (| CW1400) (- CW1500

T . pp audit planning - - w1510 CW1600 w1910 w2010 COWCOMP
|CIPROCALLRP  Procedure allocation maintenance report Cwoool “owlett) - CWPRO1) (- CWPR03 ) - CWPRO4
Client Meetings and Deliverables CWPROS CWPROE CWRIAS [ CWRIRE € CWWPRG

. Team Discussions GHEEDE) (REEREOE) GROBIMAE) (ROEIMIND GROSIONE

| Time Budget BE

4 | Materiality
¢l 220, Materiality (Core) CWPLAN )| CWPR02
! Risk Assessment

4. Close the Tags dialog by clicking on the x at the top right corner of the dialog.

Results

The document is tagged as Required.

Note: Required documents cannot be deleted by the Audit Optimiser or Profile Features. Required

documents are automatically updated when the template is updated.

~



7.1.2 Objective: Manage procedure content updates to client files

1. In the Document Manager, select Audit Plans And Procedures — Assets | Cash And Cash
Equivalents.

2. Open document 140.101 - Cash - Audit procedures.

# . Cash And Cash Equivalents

8140 Cash and cash equivalents leadsheet
¢ 140,101 Cash - Audit procedures
¢ 140,110 Bank reconciliation procedures

3. Right-click procedure Analytical procedures and select Modifiable.
4. In the Ver column, change the version 2.0 to version 3.0.

Procedure Obj Aszszert Threshold Ref Name Req | Ver MT]:?;&"
Procedures
A. SUBSTANTIVE PROCEDURES - BASIC
1. Analytical CEA G] Analytical r 3.00 | &72015=
procedures procedures

WMaodify procedure for
training

5. Close and save the document.
6. Right-click document 140.101 - Cash - Audit procedures and select the Properties.
7. In the Document Properties dialog, select the Template tab.
8. Inthe Content Version field, change 1.0.0.0 to 1.0.0.1.
General | Roles | Headings | Issues | History | Template | Synchronization

Document ldentifier: | |

Document Version: 1.0.0.0

Content Version: 1.0.0.1
9. Click OK.

Note: As a firm author, in practice, you will only need to change the third and fourth digit.
Results
The changes are updated in the master template.

When the user opens the engagement file, an Update from Template notification will display. The user
will need to update these changes to the engagement file.



7.1.3 Objective: Manage document updates to client files

1. In the Document Manager, select CaseWare Audit System Documents | New Master
Documents.

Right-click document LETTER Sample letter and select Properties.
In the Document Properties dialog, click the Template tab.

In the Document Version box, change the version number to 1.0.0.1.

CaseView Document Properties - LETTER. Sample letter X f

General Roles  Headings lssues  History] Template |Synchronization

Document |dentifier: | |

Document Version: |'I.D.D.'I Content Version: 1.0.0.0

[JIn Progress Effective After Effective Until

‘D 1/29/2019 v| ‘lj 1/29/2019 v‘

5. Click OK.

Note: As a firm author in practice, you will only need to change the third and fourth digit.

Results

The changes are updated in the master template.

When the user opens the engagement file, an Update from Template notification will display. The user
will need to update these changes to the engagement file.



8 Practice Set — Repackage the master template

8.1 Repackage the master template
At the end of this practice set, you will be able to:

¢ Repackage the master template file.

8.1.1 Objective: Repackage the master template file

Launch Working Papers.

On the ribbon menu, select Tools | Templates.

Select the Audit template and then select Repackage.

Note: The Repackage button displays only if you are in the master template.

4. Select Next in the Template Packager Wizard.

( ) Create Template Package l'ér
E Welcome to the Template Packager Wizard

The Template Packager allows for the creation of a single compressed file, called
a Template Package, which can contain all the necessary files for a Template to
operate properly. The Template Package allows for convenient and
straightforward deployment of Templates,

When a Template Package file is launched it will start an installation routine.
Thi= process takes the form of a short wizard dialog that guides the user through
the steps.

Mext > Cancel Help




5. The Global Options page opens. Select Browse to change the location and file name ofthe
template package file.

| Create Tempiate Package &
Global Options
Output File: rogram Files (x86)% CaseWare\Document Library\Copy of Audit International.cwp | v
Client File: C:\Program Files (w86 )\ CaseWare) Document Librand\Audit International\Audit -
Template Mame:  Audit International
Version: 16 0 N Version Tag: Rev A
|+f] Allow this Template to be Repackaged
< Back Finish Cancel : Help

6. Click Finish on the wizard.

Note: Once repackaging is complete, the wizard displays a message indicating that the process
was successful.

7. Click the Close button to exit.
Results:
A template package file, with the extension. cwp, is created.

After distributing the template package file, your users can double-click the .cwp file and start the
installation process.

Note: The distribution process is the same for the initial installation of a firm-customized template and any
subsequent updates.
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